
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

December 6, 2022
Tray Payne, Mayor
Shelia Patterson Harris, Mayor Pro Tem, District 2
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Councilwoman, District 1
Mark W. McBrayer, Councilman, District 3
Steve Massengale, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.

 

11:30 a.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers. Upon convening, the City Council
recesses into Executive Session.
           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

1. 1. 1. Chapter 22 of the Lubbock City Code and Chapter 13 of the Texas Water Code   

 

1. 1. 2. Approximately 14 acres out of BLK O, Sec 3, AB 24, Park TR North of Parkway
Drive

  

 

1. 1. 3. Discuss Chapters 501-504 of the Texas Local Government Code   

 

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 2. 1. Approximately 14 acres out of BLK O, Sec 3, AB 24, Park TR North of Parkway
Drive
 

  

 

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.074, to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or
reassignment of the following:

  

 

1. 3. 1. City Secretary   

 

1. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087,
to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body
seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and
with which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; and
to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect described
herein above.

  

 

1. 4. 1. Evergreen   

 

1. 4. 2. Blizzard Falls   

 

1. 4. 3. 176   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

2. Ceremonial Items   

 

2. 1. Invocation   

 

2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on December 6, 2022. Citizen Comments
provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items. Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be
referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  



 

4. Minutes   

 

4. 1. November 1, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
 

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
No. 2022-O0159, Amendment 3, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal
purposes respecting the Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Capital
Fund to establish Capital Improvement Project 92810, Business Park Median Irrigation;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget
Ordinance No. 2022-O0160, Amendment 4, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for
municipal purposes respecting civil service positions; providing for filing; and providing
for a savings clause.

 

5. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 5, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Streets Capital Project Fund to establish approved projects from the 2022 Street Bond
Election; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

5. 4. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be
incurred for various capital projects approved by the Citizens of Lubbock in the November
8, 2022 Street Bond Election, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of obligations
that will be issued after the expenditure of funds, to pay costs of such projects.

 

5. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a
portion of a stormwater storage and drainage easement (V8489 P177), located in Tract D,
The Falls at Suncrest Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

5. 6. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a
portion of alley right-of-way, located west of Lot 93, Hatton Place Addition, Lubbock
County, Texas.

 

5. 7. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
an underground utility easement and portions of two drainage easements, located on Tract
J, Commons South Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

5. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for



5. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street Dedication Deed and all related documents,
in connection with certain real property located in Section 20, Block AK, Lubbock County,
Texas, to be utilized for unpaved road improvements.

 

5. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street Dedication Deed and all related documents,
in connection with certain real property located in Section 42, Block AK, Lubbock County,
Texas, to be utilized for unpaved road improvements.

 

5. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Street Dedication Deed and all related documents,
in connection with certain real property located in Section 2, Block A, Lubbock County,
Texas, to be utilized for unpaved road improvements.

 

5. 11. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a General Warranty Deed and all related documents,
associated with certain property which is more or less a 1.315-acre tract located in Section
5, Block B, Lubbock County, Texas, owned by Lubbock Independent School District.

 

5. 12. Resolutions - Water Treatment: Consider four resolutions authorizing the Mayor to
execute four separate contracts with DPC Industries, Inc., Chemtrade Chemicals US, LLC,
Chameleon Industries, Inc., and Chemrite, Inc., for the purchase of chemicals for the North
and South Water Treatment Plants and the Bailey County Well Field.

 

5. 13. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31070176, with Warren CAT, for the purchase of one Caterpillar D8 Track
Dozer for the Solid Waste Landfill.

 

5. 14. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31070383, with Yellowhouse Machinery Co., for the purchase of two John
Deere backhoe loaders for the Water Distribution & Maintenance Department.

 

5. 15. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
amend Purchase Order 31062734, with Romco Equipment Company, for the purchase of a
cement mixing truck for the Water Distribution & Maintenance Department.

 

5. 16. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31070037, with Cemen Tech, Inc., for the purchase of one 2023
M2-106 Freightliner cab & chassis truck for the Water Distribution & Maintenance
Department.

 

5. 17. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Service Contract No. 16747, with Genserve, LLC dba L.J. Power Generators, Inc.,
for fixed generator repair and maintenance of City-owned generators at various locations.



 

5. 18. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the
Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2 to the Department of State Health Services Contract
No. HHS001120300005, under the STD/HIV-DIS Prevention Services Grant Program, and
all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas
Department of State Health Services. 

 

5. 19. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 2 to Community Development Funding Contract 16001, and all
related documents, with YWCA of Lubbock, to provide Childcare Assistance to qualified
persons.

 

5. 20. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement 16872, with Strategic Government Resources, Inc., for
executive recruitment services.

 

5. 21. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, for the
purchase of certain real property located in Block B, Section 2, Abstract 659, Lubbock
County, Texas, owned by BNSF Railway Company.

 

5. 22. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0161,
for Zone Case 0604-A, a request of George Castillo, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at 303 North Avenue Q,
located north of Baylor Street and west of North Avenue Q, Manson Heights Addition,
Block 1, Lot 2.

 

5. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0162,
for Zone Case 2565-F, a request of Jessie R. Romero, for a zone change from Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at
915 32nd Street, located south of 32nd Street and west of Interstate 27, Flynn Place
Addition, Block 3, the west 28.59 feet of Lot 10 and Lot 11.

 

5. 24. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0163,
for Zone Case 3257-I, a request of Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Concepts, for a zone
change from Garden Office District (GO) to Apartment-Medical District (AM), at 3226
140th Street, located north of 140th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, Viridian Estates
Addition, Tract D.

 

5. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0164,
for Zone Case 3274-E, a request of Betenbough Homes, for a zone change from Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A),
generally located east of Avenue U and north of 133rd Street, Bell Farms Addition, Lots
1652 through 1676, 1681 through 1692, 1698 through 1709, 1718 through 1739 and Tracts
CC and DD.

 



 

5. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0165,
for Zone Case 3472, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon
Development, LLC, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Restricted Local
Retail District (C-2A) and Local Retail District (C-2), generally located south of 146th
Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 19.4 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 6.

 

5. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0166,
for Zone Case 3126-D, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for SWLLD, LLC and
FADEV, LLC, for a zone change from Transition District (T), Interstate Highway
Industrial District (IHI), General Retail District (C-3) and High-Density Apartment District
(A-2) to Two-Family District (R-2), High-Density Apartment District (A-2), Local Retail
District (C-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), generally located north
of 130th Street (proposed Loop 88) and west of Frankford Avenue, on 99.4 acres of land
out of Block AK, Section 20.

 

5. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinnance No.
2022-O0167, for Zone Case 1875-Y, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for H&M
Investments & Rentals LLC, for a zone change from High-Density Apartment District
(A-2) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 6606 26th Street, located north of 26th Street and
west of Norwich Avenue, Commanders Addition, the south 440 feet of the east 400 feet of
Lot 2.

 

6. Regular Agenda   

 

6. 1. Board Appointment - City Secretary: Consider the appointment of the Chairperson of
the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment Zone Board of
Directors, for the 2023 calendar year, with the term ending on December 31, 2023.

 

6. 2. Board Appointment - City Secretary: Consider the appointment of the Chairperson of
the Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment Zone Board of
Directors, for the 2023 calendar year, with the term ending on December 31, 2023.

 

6. 3. Board Appointment - City Secretary: Consider the appointment of the Chairperson of
the North Overton Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone (TIF) Board of Directors,
for the 2023 calendar year, with the term ending on December 31, 2023.

 

6. 4. Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance
for a request for annexation, from Red Canyon Development, LLC, to annex an area of
approximately 17.33 acres, adjacent to the southern city limits of the City of Lubbock,
north of Woodrow Road and west of Quaker Avenue.

 

6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0168,



6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0168,
for Zone Case 0417-A, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Gary Randall Andrews,
for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District (GO),
generally located north of 23rd Street and west of Slide Road, on 2.02 acres of land from
Sisco Addition, Lot 1-A.

 

6. 6. Resolution - Finance: Consider adoption of a Resolution authorizing publication and
posting of notices of intention to issue (i) water and wastewater system revenue bonds in a
principal amount not to exceed $17,500,000 for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing,
constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging and equipping property, buildings,
structures, facilities and related infrastructure for the City’s Water and Wastewater System
and (ii) combination tax and revenue certificates of obligation in a principal amount not to
exceed $18,750,000 for the purpose of funding improvements to the City’s Solid Waste
Disposal System.

 

6. 7. Resolution - Business Development: Consider adoption of a Resolution approving the
resolution of the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc., authorizing the issuance
of sales tax revenue bonds in a principal amount not to exceed $32,500,000 for the purpose
of funding projects for the promotion and development of new and expanded business
enterprises, including the acquisition of interests in land and the design, construction,
acquisition, rehabilitation, renovation, expansion, improvement and equipment of streets,
roads, water and sewer utilities, and related infrastructure and improvements; approving a
Sales Tax Remittance Agreement; and resolving other matters related thereto.

 



 AI# 11154 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 4. 1. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
November 1, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
November 1, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
11.1.2022 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

November 1, 2022
1:30 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 1st of November, 2022, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:30 p.m.

  
1:30 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Tray Payne; Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Steve Massengale; Council
Member Mark W. McBrayer; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett
Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note: City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1-2.2; Citizen Comments 3; 4.1; 5.1-5.12; 6.1-6.4.
Item No. 6.3 failed.

               
1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 1:31 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:10 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:12 p.m.

 
1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
1. 1. 1. Chapter 22 of the Lubbock City Code and Chapter 13 of the Texas Water Code
 
1. 1. 2. Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, for

authority to connect remaining portion of its load with Electric Reliability Council of Texas
and for approval of settlement agreement, PUC Docket No. 53529, proceeding before the
Public Utility Commission of Texas

 
 
 
Following Executive Session, the City Council reconvened in Open Session in City Council
Chambers.
 



 
2. Ceremonial Items
 
2. 1. Invocation

Reverend Paul Carpenter, First Christian Church, led the invocation.
 
2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Shelia
Patterson Harris.

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 2:12 p.m.
 
3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 1:30 p.m. on November 1,  2022.  Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 

Sign ups: 

Paulina Madrid, the proponent, appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 6.3
(a resolution approving and granting a variance for an alcoholic beverage permit for Tipsy's
Sports Grill and Bar).
Rob Nanz, with Lubbock ISD, appeared before City Council to speak in opposition of item
6.3 (a resolution approving and granting a variance for an alcoholic beverage permit for
Tipsy's Sports Grill and Bar).

 
4. Minutes
 
4. 1. September 20, 2022 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board

October 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
  

 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve the September 20, 2022 Special City Council Meeting -
Electric Utility Board minutes; and the October 11, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting
minutes. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
November 1, 2022 Page 2 of 6



  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Steve Massengale,
to approve items 5.1-5.12. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0157,

Amendment 1, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes, respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
5. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2022-O0158,

Amendment 2, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate from the Texas Homeland Security Grant Division; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
5. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2022-R0447 authorizing and directing the Mayor

to accept, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Dedication Deed and all related
documents, with Amarillo Diamond, LLC, in connection with certain real property located in
Section 6, Block E, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for street, curb, gutter, sidewalk,
drainage right-of-way, public utilities, and other public purposes.

  

 
5. 4. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2022-R0448 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No.1 to Contract 14564, with Cartegraph Systems LLC, for professional and
technological services for Asset Management.

  

 
5. 5. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2022-R0449 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 16927, an agreement with Parkhill, for remaining Construction Administration
Professional Services for the Public Safety Improvements Project, Police Department
Headquarters Facility.

  

 
5. 6. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2022-R0450 authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase

Order 25101489, with ADB Safegate Americas, LLC, for Airfield Lighting Systems at the
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

  

 
5. 7. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2022-R0451 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31069794, with Kenloch Equipment & Supply, Inc., for two street sweepers for
the Streets Department.

  

 
5. 8. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2022-R0452 authorizing and approving

the Parks, Recreation, and Open Spaces Master Plan completed by Halff Associates, Inc., as
recommended by the City of Lubbock Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.

  

 
5. 9. Resolution - Lubbock Fire Rescue: Resolution No. 2022-R0453 authorizing the Mayor to

accept eGrant Award No. 4015401, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, from the Texas
Homeland Security Grant Division, Office of the Governor.

  

 
5. 10. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2022-R0454 authorizing the attorneys   

Regular City Council Meeting 
November 1, 2022 Page 3 of 6



5. 10. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2022-R0454 authorizing the attorneys
for the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, in the event a
Stipulation and/or Settlement Agreement, whether unanimous or non-unanimous, is reached in
the future, to execute a Stipulation and/or Settlement, whether unanimous or non-unanimous,
within the parameters set forth in the resolution, resolving all issues related to and regarding the
contested case styled Application of City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power &
Light, for Authority to Connect the Remaining Portion of its Load with the Electric Reliability
Council of Texas and for Approval of Settlement Agreement, PUC Docket No. 53529,
proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

  

 
5. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2022-O0154, for Zone Case

3047-BB, a request of Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Concepts, for a zone change from
Central Business District (CB-3) and Garden Office (GO) to Garden Office (GO) at 4511
through 4531 114th Street, located south of 114th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, Vintage
Office Park Addition, Tracts C through M.

  

 
5. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2022-O0156, for Zone Case

2538-EE, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for South Plains Electric Cooperative, Inc., for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Commercial District (C-4) at 7714 and 7702
32nd Street, located north of 32nd Street, between Alcove Avenue and Yuma Avenue, Alcove
Park Addition, Tract A, and on 10.78 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 42, Tract
C8.

  

 
6. Regular Agenda
 
6. 1. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2022-O0155, for Zone Case

2995-GG, a request of RSDGP, LLC for Endeavour Enterprises, for a zone change from Local
Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4) at 7411 Milwaukee Avenue, located north of
76th Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue, Bacon Crest, Tract E.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Christy

Martinez-Garcia, to approve Ordinance No. 2022-O0155. 
  Vote: 4 - 3 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Mark W. McBrayer 

 
6. 2. Resolution - Planning (District 1): Resolution No. 2022-R0455 approving and granting a

variance from the applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock
Ordinance No. 2009-O0060, at 3121 34th Street, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Frost
Brewhouse, LLC.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Mario Sandoval, co-owner of Mrs. O's Learning Academy, gave comments and
answered questions from City Council.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
November 1, 2022 Page 4 of 6



 
  Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Mark

W. McBrayer, to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0455. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 3. Resolution - Planning (District 2): Consider a resolution approving and granting a variance

from the applicable 300-foot minimum distance provision of the City of Lubbock Ordinance No.
2009-O0060, at 5101 Avenue Q, Suite A, for an alcoholic beverage permit for Tipsy's Sports
Grill and Bar.

This item failed.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Chad Weaver, city attorney; Paulina Madrid, the proponent; and Rob Nanz, with
Lubbock ISD, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
  

Main Motion by Council Member Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member
Mark W. McBrayer, to approve this item as presented at the dais.
 
Motion to Amend the Main Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson, seconded
by Council Member Mark W. McBrayer, as follows:

   
Removal of permit number two, Mixed Beverage Late Hours Permit (LB), from the
proposed alcohol variance as referenced in the text of the Resolution presented at the
dais.

  
Vote on Motion to Amend: 3-4 failed
 
NAY: Mayor Tray Payne

                   Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris
                   Council Member Latrelle Joy
                   Council Member Steve Massengale
  

Vote on Main Motion: 3-4 failed
 
NAY: Mayor Tray Payne

                   Mayor Pro Tem Shelia Patterson Harris
                   Council Member Latrelle Joy
                   Council Member Steve Massengale

  

 
6. 4. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2022-R0456 authorizing the Mayor to execute

a Municipal Services Agreement, with Red Canyon Development, LLC, for the requested
annexation of an area of land generally described as 17.33 acres north of Woodrow Road and
west of Quaker Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits, along with the adjacent right-of-way.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Mike Keenum, divison director of engineering/city
engineer, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
November 1, 2022 Page 5 of 6



engineer, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
 
  Motion by Council Member Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy,

to approve Resolution No. 2022-R0456. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

2:53 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Payne adjourned the meeting.

 
The November 1, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
6th  day of December, 2022.

  
  ____________________________________

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
November 1, 2022 Page 6 of 6



 AI# 11108 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0159, Amendment 3, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lubbock Business Park Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Capital Fund to establish Capital Improvement
Project 92810, Business Park Median Irrigation; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the Ordinance.

I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92810, Business Park Median Irrigation, and appropriate
funding in the amount of $1,272,699. Funding will be from the Lubbock Business Park Tax
Increment Financing (TIF) fund balance.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 3 







 AI# 11121 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 2. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2022-O0160, Amendment 4, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting civil
service positions; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

Exhibit A of the FY 2022-23 Adopted Budget, as passed by City Council on September 13, 2022, is
hereby amended to replace page entitled “Police – Job Grade Summary” of said Exhibit A, with the
amended page “Police – Job Grade Summary”, which is attached hereto and made a part of this
ordinance for all purposes (the “Amendment”) as it relates to the civil service positions.In accordance
with Section 2.06.109 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, the civil service positions, as
set forth in the Amendment, are hereby established by Ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 4 
Exhibit A 







Police ‐ Job Grade Summary
Exhibit A

Actual Actual Actual Budget Amended Change 

CLASSIFIED/SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23 FY 2022‐23 from Budget

Police Chief 143 1                         1                         1                         1                         1                         ‐                          

Assistant Police Chief PCS6 3                         3                         3                         3                         3                         ‐                          

Deputy Police Chief/Police Captain PCS5 8                         7                         7                         7                         7                         ‐                          

Police Lieutenant PCS4 19                       19                       19                       19                       19                       ‐                          

Police Sergeant PCS3 62                       66                       68                       68                       68                       ‐                          

Police Detective/Corporal PCS2 79                       79                       69                       69                       68                       (1)                        

Patrol Officer PCS1 280                     277                     265                     278                     279                     1                          

Police Entry Level II PNCE2 ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          

Police Entry Level 1‐B PNCE1B 13                       13                       13                       ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          

TOTAL CLASSIFIED SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 465                     465                     445                     445                     445                     ‐                          

Actual Actual Budget Budget Amended Change 

NON‐CLASSIFIED NON‐SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23 FY 2022‐23 from Budget
Administrative Assistant 112 7                      8                      7                      7                         7                       ‐                       
Communications Center Coordinator 126 1                      1                      1                      1                         1                       ‐                       
Communications Shift Supervisor 123 3                      6                      6                      6                         6                       ‐                       
Communications Training & Dev Coordinator 125 1                      ‐                       ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                       
Crime Analyst 119 2                      2                      4                      4                         4                       ‐                       
Fleet Services Unit Supervisor 119 ‐                       ‐                       1                      1                         1                       ‐                       
Fleet Services Unit Attendant 116 ‐                       ‐                       2                      2                         2                       ‐                       
Forensic Laboratory Manager 127 ‐                       ‐                       1                      1                         1                       ‐                       
Forensic Specialist i 123 2                      2                      7                      7                         7                       ‐                       
Juvenile Services Coordinator 121 1                      1                      1                      1                         1                       ‐                       
Laborer 108 1                      1                      1                      1                         1                       ‐                       
Lead Administrative Assistant 115 2                      2                      3                      3                         3                       ‐                       
Management Assistant 122 2                      2                      2                      2                         2                       ‐                       
Parking Control Officer 108 6                      6                      6                      6                         6                       ‐                       
Property and Evidence Unit Supervisor 121 ‐                       ‐                       1                      1                         1                       ‐                       
Property Room Attendant 113 4                      4                      4                      7                         7                       ‐                       
Public Information Officer 123 1                      1                      5                      2                         2                       ‐                       
Public Information Specialist 119 1                      1                      ‐                       ‐                         ‐                        ‐                       
Public Safety Dispatcher I 114 28                    28                    28                    28                      28                     ‐                       
Public Safety Dispatcher II 116 15                    15                    15                    15                      15                     ‐                       
Public Service Officer 110 14                    13                    13                    13                      13                     ‐                       
Records System Manager 126 1                      1                      1                      1                         1                       ‐                       
Records System Operator 115 15                    15                    15                    15                      15                     ‐                       
Records System Shift Supervisor 118 4                      3                      3                      3                         3                       ‐                       
Sex Offender Registration Coordinator 117 1                      1                      1                      1                         1                       ‐                       

TOTAL NON‐CLASSIFIED NON‐SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 112                  113                  128                  128                    128                   ‐                       

TOTAL JOB GRADE SUMMARY 577                  578                  573                  573                    573                   ‐                       



 AI# 11170 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 3. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment
5, amending the FY 2022-23 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Streets Capital Project Fund
to establish approved projects from the 2022 Street Bond Election; providing for filing; and providing
for a savings clause.

Item Summary
I. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92811, 98th Street, Alcove to Upland – 22B, and appropriate
$12,000,000 to construct the project. This is an approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and
the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds.  

II. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92812, Upland Avenue, 4th Street to 19th Street – 22B, and
appropriate $3,200,000 for the design of the project.  This is an approved project from the 2022 Street
Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds.

III. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92813, 34th Street, Upland to Milwaukee – 22B, and
appropriate $2,700,000 for the design of the project.  This is an approved project from the 2022 Street
Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds.  

IV. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92814, 34th Street, Avenue Q to I-27 and Quaker to Slide –
22B, and appropriate $7,500,000 for the construction of back of curb improvements.  This is an
approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation
Bonds.  

V. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92815, Upland Avenue, 34th to 50th Street – 22B, and
appropriate $4,000,000 for the design of the project.  This is an approved project from the 2022 Street
Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds.  

VI. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92816, Upland Avenue, 19th Street to 34th Street – 22B. 
 This is an approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and appropriation of funding will occur
in a future year.

VII. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92817, Dunbar/Manhattan Heights – 22B, and appropriate
$6,500,000 for the construction of multiple streets.  This is an approved project from the 2022 Street
Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds.  

VIII. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92818, 66th Street, Alcove to Upland – 22B.   This is an
approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and appropriation of funding will occur in a future
year.

IX. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92819, Milwaukee Avenue, North City Limits to 4th Street –
22B, and appropriate $3,500,000 for the design of the project.  This is an approved project from the 2022



22B, and appropriate $3,500,000 for the design of the project.  This is an approved project from the 2022
Street Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds.  

X. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92820, 114th Street, Frankford to Slide Road – 22B.   This is
an approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and appropriation of funding will occur in a
future year.

XI. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92821, 146th Street, Quaker to Indiana – 22B, and
appropriate $3,200,000 for the design of the project.  This is an approved project from the 2022 Street
Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds.

XII. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92822, 114th Street, Indiana to University – 22B.  This is an
approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and appropriation of funding will occur in a future
year.

XIII. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92823, Residential Unpaved Roads, East of I-27 – 22B. 
This is an approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and appropriation of funding will occur
in a future year.

XIV. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92824, Upland Avenue, 50th Street to 66th Street – 22B. 
This is an approved project from the 2022 Street Bond election and appropriation of funding will occur
in a future year.

XV. Establish Capital Improvement Project 92825, 82nd and Milwaukee – 22B, and appropriate
$5,700,000 for the design and land acquisition for the project.  This is an approved project from the 2022
Street Bond election and the funding source is 2023 General Obligation Bonds

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer.

Attachments
Budget Amendment 5 (c) 









 AI# 11177 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 4. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be incurred for
various capital projects approved by the Citizens of Lubbock in the November 8, 2022 Street Bond
Election, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of obligations that will be issued after the
expenditure of funds, to pay costs of such projects.

Item Summary
The City will issue bonds during FY 2022-23, to fund a portion of the projects that the Citizens of
Lubbock approved in the November 8, 2022 Street Bond Election. To allow projects to be completed
within prescribed time frames, design, engineering, and construction costs may be incurred prior to
delivery of the bond proceeds. For the costs to be eligible for reimbursement with bond proceeds, the
City must declare its intent to reimburse bond-funded costs that are incurred prior to the bond issuance.
 
A total cost of $48,300,000 is planned for FY 2022-23, and divided into the projects listed below. 

92811 - 98th Street: Alcove Avenue to Upland Avenue - 22B is $12,000,000.
92812 - Upland Avenue: 4th Street to 19th Street - 22B is $3,200,000.
92813 - 34th Street: Upland Avenue to Milwaukee Avenue - 22B is $2,700,000.
92814 - 34th Street: Ave Q to I-27 and Quaker Avenue to Slide Road - 22B is $7,500,000.
92815 - Upland Avenue: 34th Street to 50th Street - 22B is $4,000,000.
92817 - Dunbar/Manhattan Heights - 22B is $6,500,000.
92819 - Milwaukee Avenue: North City Limits to 4th Street - 22B is $3,500,000.
92821 - 146th Street: Quaker Avenue to Indiana Avenue - 22B is $3,200,000.
92825 - 82nd Street and Milwaukee Avenue - 22B is $5,700,000

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of projects funded is $48,300,000, and the maximum principal amount of Obligations to be
issued will not exceed $200,000,000, to be issued in one or more series.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
GO Reimbursement Resolution 



Resolution No. 2022 – R___ 

December 6, 2022 

Item No. ___ 

 

 4146-4457-0930.1 

 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING INTENT TO  

FINANCE EXPENDITURES TO BE INCURRED 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock, Texas (the "Issuer") is a political subdivision of the State of 

Texas authorized to finance its activities by issuing debt obligations, including obligations the interest on 

which is excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended (collectively, the "Obligations"); 

WHEREAS, the Issuer will make or has made, not more than 60 days prior to the date hereof, 

payments for capital expenditures with respect to the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement 

and equipment of the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto, which projects were approved by the 

qualified voters of the Issuer at an election held within and for the Issuer on November 8, 2022; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has concluded that it does not currently desire to issue Obligations to 

finance costs associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to reimburse itself for capital expenditures associated with the 

projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto from the proceeds of Obligations to be issued subsequent to the 

date hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer reasonably expects to issue Obligations to reimburse itself for the costs 

associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUBBOCK, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1. The Issuer reasonably expects to reimburse itself for capital expenditures that have been 

or will be paid subsequent to the date that is 60 days prior to the date hereof and that are to be paid in 

connection with the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipment of the projects listed 

on Exhibit A attached hereto from the proceeds of Obligations to be issued subsequent to the date hereof. 

 

Section 2. The Issuer reasonably expects that the maximum principal amount of Obligations issued 

to reimburse the Issuer for the costs associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto will not 

exceed $200,000,000.  

 



 

 4146-4457-0930.1 

 

ADOPTED THIS 6th day of December, 2022 by the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 

 

 

             

             TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

      

Rebecca Garza 

City Secretary 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

 

 

      

D. Blu Kostelich 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

      

Jerry V. Kyle, Jr. 

Bond Counsel 

 

        



 

 4146-4457-0930.1 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

The acquisition, construction and reconstruction of street improvements, including but not limited to 

sidewalks, utility line relocation and traffic signalization, necessary and related storm drainage facilities 

and the acquisition of land and rights-of-way therefor. 



 AI# 11158 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 5. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a portion of a
stormwater storage and drainage easement (V8489 P177), located in Tract D, The Falls at Suncrest
Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of a stormwater storage
and drainage easement (V8489 P177) located south and east of Tract D, The Falls at Suncrest Addition,
Lubbock County, Texas.
 
The total area of the easement being closed is 46,223 square feet. The easement to be closed is to
accommodate the expansion of The Falls Tennis & Athletic Club located at 4705 112th Street, Lubbock,
TX 79424.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer.  

Attachments
Ordinance - Stormwater Storage & Drainage Easement 
Exhibit A - The Falls at Suncrest Addition 
Map - The Falls at Suncrest Addition 







 
 
 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 1.061 acre tract, being a portion of that 5.2486 acre tract described in County Clerk 
File Number 2017046358, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas (OPRLCT), and a portion of that Stormwater Storage 
and Drainage Easement recorded in Volume 8489, Page 177, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, said 1.061 acre 
tract being further described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2" iron rod found in the South right-of-way line of 112th Street, dedicated by plat recorded in Volume 9419, 
Page 276, OPRLCT, in the Northern boundary of that 5.2486 acre tract described in County Clerk File Number 2017046358, 
OPRLCT, at the most Northerly Northeast corner of Tract D, The Falls at Suncrest, an addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock 
County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded in Volume 9419, Page 276, OPRLCT, for the 
Northwest corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 88°10'51" E., along the South right-of-way line of said 112th Street and the Northern boundary of said 5.2486 acre 
tract, a distance of 292.23 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the Northeast corner of this 
tract; 
 
THENCE S. 01°49'09" W. a distance of 315.20 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the most 
Easterly Southeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE S. 46°49'09" W. a distance of 29.40 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "HUGO REED & ASSOC." set for the most 
Southerly Southeast corner of this tract; 
 
THENCE N. 88°10'51" W. a distance of 21.21 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "4460" found in the Western boundary of said 
5.2486 acre tract and the most Southerly Southeast corner of said Tract D; 
 
THENCE N. 46°49'09" E., along the Western boundary of said 5.2486 acre tract and the Southern boundary of said Tract D, a 
distance of 42.43 feet to a 1/2" iron rod found at the most Easterly Southeast corner of said Tract D; 
 
THENCE N. 01°49'09" E., along the Western boundary of said 5.2486 acre tract and the Eastern boundary of said Tract D, a 
distance of 132.55 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap marked "4460" found at the most Easterly Northeast corner of said Tract D; 
 
THENCE N. 88°10'51" W., along the Western boundary of said 5.2486 acre tract and the Northern boundary of said Tract D, a 
distance of 164.74 feet to an "X" chiseled in concrete set; 
 
THENCE N. 43°10'51" W., continuing along the Western boundary of said 5.2486 acre tract and the Northern boundary of said 
Tract D, a distance of 163.33 feet to a "MAG" nail with shiner marked "4460" found; 
 
THENCE N. 01°49'09" E., continuing along the Western boundary of said 5.2486 acre tract and the Northern boundary of said 
Tract D, a distance of 58.11 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
  
Contains: 46,223 square feet 
 
Bearings relative to Grid North, Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North-Central Zone, (2011, epoch 2010.0). 
 
Surveyed on the ground, 

September 14, 2022 

 

 

 

 

Robert A. Christopher 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5167 

Licensed State Land Surveyor 

State of Texas 



 TR C

TR D

5859

UNSUBDIVIDED

TR C

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of a Portion of a Stormwater Storage
and Drainage Easement (V8489 P177)

Located South and East of Tract D, The Falls at Suncrest Addition

0 100 200 300
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

TO
LE

D
O

 A
V

E

Portion of Stormwater Storage
and Drainage Easement

to be Closed
46,223 sq ft

TURNIN
G

POIN
T

THE FALLS

AT SUNCREST

116TH ST

VIN
TAGE

TOWNSHIP

THE FALLS

AT SUNCREST

Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

112TH ST

RI
C

H
M

O
N

D
 A

V
E

TO
PE

K
A

 A
V

E

114TH ST

112TH ST

TO
PE

K
A

 A
V

E
114TH ST RI

C
H

M
O

N
D

 A
V

E

110TH ST

VIN
TAGE

TOWNSHIP

OAKMONT

ESTATES

SUNCREST

Portion of  Stormwater Storage
and Drainage Easement

to Remain Open



 AI# 11159 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 6. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a portion of
alley right-of-way, located west of Lot 93, Hatton Place Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of an alley, located west of
Lot 93, Hatton Place Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.
 
The total area of the easement being closed is 254 square feet. The easement closure will allow
changing the proposed layout from single-family residential development with alleys, to single-family
residential development with no alleys.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Alley ROW 
Exhibit A - Hatton Place Addition 
Map - Lot 93, Hatton Place Addition 













 AI# 11160 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 7. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing an
underground utility easement and portions of two drainage easements, located on Tract J, Commons
South Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close an underground utility easement and
portions of two drainage easements, located on Tract J of Commons South Addition, Lubbock County,
Texas.
 
The total area of the easements being closed is 41,251 square feet. The underground utility easement
will be relocated along the fire loop and the drainage easements will be adjusted to support an
underground storm sewer. Both sets of easements are being relocated due to conflicts with proposed
improvements, and to allow for a more efficient use of the subject property.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Ordinance - UUE & Drainage Easements 
Exhibit A - Tract J, Commons South Addition 
Map - Tract J, Commons South 







1500 OLLIE LANE
MARBLE FALLS, TX. 78654

PH.325-388-3300/830-693-8815
WWW.CUPLINASSOCIATES.COM

©

_______________________________________________________________

EASEMENT ABANDONMENT EXHIBIT

L  E  G  E  N  D





 AI# 11161 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 8. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a Street Dedication Deed and all related documents, in connection with certain real
property located in Section 20, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for unpaved road
improvements.

Item Summary
SWLLD, LLC is dedicating to the City of Lubbock a 32-foot wide, 2,377-foot long strip of land to be
utilized as the east half of Street Right-of-Way for the future Iola Avenue, from 122nd Street to State
Loop 88.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Street Dedication Deed 
SWLLD, LLC - Street Dedication Deed 
Exhibit A - Section 20, Block AK 
Map - Portion of Iola Avenue 













As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Dedication Deed
Describing a Portion of Iola Ave

Located Within Block AK, Section 20

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

IO
LA

 A
V

E

Proposed Street
Dedication Deed

75,358 sq ft

IO
LA

 A
V

E

YOUTH SPORTS

COMPLEX

YOUTH SPORTS

COMPLEX FRANKFORD

FARMS

UNSUBDIVIDED

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 A

V
E

UNSUBDIVIDED

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

130TH ST

114TH ST 114TH ST

STONEWOOD

SPRIN
GFIELD

FOUNTAIN
 HILLS

ESTATES

SUNDANCE

ESTATES

FRANKFORD

FARMS

SOUTH

FR
A

N
K

FO
RD

 A
V

E

130TH ST



 AI# 11162 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 9. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a Street Dedication Deed and all related documents, in connection with certain real
property located in Section 42, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for unpaved road
improvements.

Item Summary
Wesley Garner is granting to the City of Lubbock a 32-foot wide, 194-foot long strip of land to be
dedicated as Street Right-of-Way along 26th Street east of Wausau Avenue. Acceptance of the
6,187-square foot parcel of land is subject to final approval by the City Council.  This land will be
utilized for unpaved road improvements in the future.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Street Dedication Deed 
Wesley Garner - Street Dedication Deed 
Exhibit A - Section 42, Block AK 
Map - Section 42, Block AK 



















 AI# 11163 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 10. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a Street Dedication Deed and all related documents, in connection with certain real
property located in Section 2, Block A, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for unpaved road
improvements.

Item Summary
High Plains Marah2elim LLC is dedicating to the City of Lubbock, a portion of Zenith Avenue for the
purpose of Street Right-of-Way. Acceptance of the 21,472 square-foot parcel of land is subject to final
approval by the City Council.  This land will be utilized for unpaved road improvements in the future.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Street Dedication Deed 
High Plains Marah2elim LLC - Street Dedication Deed 
Exhibit A - Section 2, Block A 
Map - Section 2, Block A 









TR F
L 2

TR F
L 3

UNSUBDIVIDED

TR F
L 1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Dedication Deed
Located in Section 2, Block A

0 100 200 300 400
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

MacKENZIE

TERRACE

Street Dedication Deed
21,472 sq ft - 0.4930 ac

E ERSKINE ST

MacKENZIE

TERRACE

N
 Z

EN
IT

H
 A

V
E

ZE
N

IT
H

 A
V

E

ERSKINE ST

ESTACADO

VILLAGE

WILSHIR
E

PARK

KIN
GS

DOMIN
IO

N

E COLGATE ST

N
 SPRUC

E A
VE



 AI# 11181 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 11. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, a General Warranty Deed and all related documents, associated with certain
property which is more or less a 1.315-acre tract located in Section 5, Block B, Lubbock County, Texas,
owned by Lubbock Independent School District.

Item Summary
Lubbock Independent School District owns 1.315 acres of real property located in Section 5, Block B,
Lubbock, Texas, and desires to convey the land to the City of Lubbock. This land is located at 1323 East
24th Street and is the site of Priority Intervention Academy.  The land is adjacent to Mae Simmons Park
and will be utilized for future improvements to the park.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Michael G. Keenum, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - LISD 
LISD - General Warranty Deed 
Exhibit A 
Map - Section 5, Block B 













314 113 912 59 8 7 811 4 106 21032 11

1038 O
A

K
 A

V

24TH ST

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ General Warranty Deed Describing a Tract of
Land Within Section 5, Block B

0 150 300 450 600 750
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

1.315 acres

19TH ST

PARK

MEADOW

VILLAS

CORONADO

SIEBER

CORONADO

E 23RD ST

MANHATTAN HEIG
HTS

SOUTH PLAIN
S

LIO
NS CLUB

CORONADO

E

SO
UTHEAST DR

G
LO

BE
 A

V
E

M
A

RT
IN

 L
U

TH
ER

 K
IN

G
 J

R 
BL

V
D

DUNBAR

HEIG
HTS

PACKERS

CANYON LAKE DR

E 26TH ST

FI
R 

A
V

E

E 24TH ST

8.0 ACRES
LUBBOCK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

VOL. 961 PG. 683



 AI# 11105 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 12. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolutions - Water Treatment: Consider four resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute four
separate contracts with DPC Industries, Inc., Chemtrade Chemicals US, LLC, Chameleon Industries,
Inc., and Chemrite, Inc., for the purchase of chemicals for the North and South Water Treatment Plants
and the Bailey County Well Field.

Item Summary
The contracts will provide annual unit pricing for the purchase of 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite, 10.0%
Liquid Ammonium Sulfate, 50.0% Citric Acid, Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer Blend, and ACH Coagulant. 
These chemicals will be used for the disinfection, turbidity removal, filter membrane cleaning, and pH
adjustment in the water treatment process. Specialized chemicals are required to produce safe water that
meets Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) and Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) guidelines.

In response to ITB 22-16644-KM, which was issued for annual unit pricing for Water Treatment
Chemicals, the following bids were received and opened on June 24, 2022.
  
Item
#

DPC
Industries

Chemtrade
Chemicals

Chameleon
Industries

Chemrite,
Inc.

Shannon
Chemical

2 $1,781,433.60 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid
3 No Bid No Bid $474,518.25 No Bid No Bid
4 No Bid No Bid No Bid $45,031.00 $61,985.00
9 No Bid $154,500.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid
11 No Bid No Bid $341,640.00 No Bid No Bid
12 No Bid No Bid $360,620.00 No Bid No Bid
13 No Bid No Bid $379,600.00 No Bid No Bid
14 No Bid No Bid $398,580.00 No Bid No Bid

The following recommendations are for one year unit price contracts, plus 4 one-year renewal
extensions, upon written approval from both parties.  All stated annual quantities are approximations of
usage during the one-year time period to be covered by pricing established by bid. Actual usage may be
more or less.  Chemical quantities will be determined by actual need. 

Staff recommends awards to the following vendors, according to the unit price bids submitted:

DPC Industries, Inc.
Item 2 for 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite at $1.92 per gallon and an annual cost of $1,781,433.60



Chemtrade Chemicals US, LLC
Item 9 for ACH Coagulant at $1,030.00 per ton and an annual cost of $154,500.00,

Chameleon Industries, Inc.
Item 3 - Liquid Ammonium Sulfate 10% @ $2.43 per gallon, annual cost of $474,518.25
Item 11 - Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer Blend @ $360.00 per ton, annual cost of $341,640.00
Item 12 - Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer Blend with 1% Copper Sulfate additive @ $380.00 per
ton, annual cost of $360,620.00
Item 13 - Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer Blend with 2% Copper Sulfate additive @ $400.00 per
ton, annual cost of $379,600.00
Item 14 - Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer Blend with 3% Copper Sulfate additive @ $420.00 per
ton, annual cost of $398,580.00

Chemrite, Inc.
Item 4 for 50.0% Citric Acid at $1.838 per pound and an annual cost of $45,031.00

Fiscal Impact
Funding is available in the FY2022-23 Water/Wastewater Operating Budget for the purchase of these
chemicals.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 16644 - Chemaleon Industries, Inc. 
Contract 16644 (c) - Chameleon Industries Inc. - Revised 
Resolution 16802 - DPC Inductries, Inc. 
Contract 16802 - DPC Industries, Inc. 
Resolution 16803 - Chermrite, Inc. 
Contract 16803 - Chemrite, Inc. 
Resolution 16804 - Chemtrade Chemicals US, LLC 
Contract 16804 - Chemtrade Chemicals US, LLC. 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Chemical bids table 
Project Summary 





Contract 16644 
City of Lubbock 

Contract for 
Water Treatment Chemicals 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of , 2022, by and between the 

City of Lubbock ("City"), and  Chameleon Industries, Inc.   , ("Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Water Treatment Chemicals and 
bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Water Treatment Chemicals. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 

financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached 
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Water Treatment Chemicals 
and more specifically referred to as Items 0-3, 0-11and 0-14 on the bid submitted by the 
Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto.

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done 
the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the 
attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein.

3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of two (4), one year extensions, 
said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew automatically for 
the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to terminate the Contract.

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 
pricing established by this bid.  Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 
determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 
contract.

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 
including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance 
is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or 
contract may be terminated for non-compliance.

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 
may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) 
or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 

























City of Lubbock
ITB 22-16644-KM

Water Treatment Chemicals
Bid Form

Location
Total Cost

#

Items
Quantity 
Required UOM

Delivery 
Days
ARO

Unit 
Price

Total 
Cost

#0-3 Liquid Ammonium Sulfate 10% 
w/w  All 3 Plant Facilities, as 
specified.

195275 Gallons 2 $2.43 $474,518.25

#0-11 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend as per specifications for 
North Water Treatment Plant

949 Tons 2 $360.00 $341,640.00

#0-12 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 1% Copper Sulfate 
additive as per specifications for 
North Water Treatment Plant

949 Tons 2 $380.00 $360,620.00

#0-13 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 2% Copper Sulfate 
additive as per specifications for 
North Water Treatment Plant

949 Tons 2 $400.00 $379,600.00

#0-14 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 3% Copper Sulfate 
additive as per specifications for 
North Water Treatment Plant

949 Tons 2 $420.00 $398,580.00

Chameleon Industries
Mesquite, TX
$ 1,214,738.25

170423
Line

170423
Line



























































































































City of Lubbock
ITB 22-16644-KM

Water Treatment Chemicals
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cost

# Items
Quantity 
Required UOM

Delivery 
Days
ARO

Unit 
Price

Total 
Cost

Delivery 
Days
ARO

Unit 
Price

Total 
Cost

0
#0-1 78.0% Sulfuric Acid For South Water 

Treatment Plant, as specified. 30000 Pounds No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-2 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite All 3 Plant 
Facilities, as specified.

927830 Gallons No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-3 Liquid Ammonium Sulfate 10% w/w  All 
3 Plant Facilities, as specified. 195275 Gallons 3 $2.84 $554,581.00 2 $2.43 $474,518.25 

#0-4 50.0% Citric Acid For South Water 
Treatment Plant, as specified 24500 Pounds No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-5 38.0% Sodium Bisulfite For South Water 
Treatment Plant, as specified. 2056 Pounds No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-6 50.0% Sodium Hydroxide For South 
Water Treatment Plant, as specified. 26400 Pounds No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-7 PACL Coagulant for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-8 PACL Coagulant with 1% Copper 
Sulfate additive for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-9 ACH Coagulant for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons 5 $1,030.00 $154,500.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-10 ACH Coagulant with 1% Copper Sulfate 
additive for South Water Treatment Plant 150 Tons No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

#0-11 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend as per specifications for North 
Water Treatment Plant

949 Tons No Bid No Bid No Bid 2 $360.00 $341,640.00

#0-12 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 1% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons No Bid No Bid No Bid 2 $380.00 $360,620.00

#0-13 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 2% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons No Bid No Bid No Bid 2 $400.00 $379,600.00

#0-14 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 3% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons No Bid No Bid No Bid 2 $420.00 $398,580.00

Parsippany, NJ Mesquite, TX

Chemtrade Chemicals US LLC Chameleon Industries

$ 1,954,958.25$709,081.00



City of Lubbock
ITB 22-16644-KM

Water Treatment Chemicals
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cost

# Items
Quantity 
Required UOM

0
#0-1 78.0% Sulfuric Acid For South Water 

Treatment Plant, as specified. 30000 Pounds

#0-2 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite All 3 Plant 
Facilities, as specified.

927830 Gallons

#0-3 Liquid Ammonium Sulfate 10% w/w  All 
3 Plant Facilities, as specified. 195275 Gallons

#0-4 50.0% Citric Acid For South Water 
Treatment Plant, as specified 24500 Pounds

#0-5 38.0% Sodium Bisulfite For South Water 
Treatment Plant, as specified. 2056 Pounds

#0-6 50.0% Sodium Hydroxide For South 
Water Treatment Plant, as specified. 26400 Pounds

#0-7 PACL Coagulant for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons

#0-8 PACL Coagulant with 1% Copper 
Sulfate additive for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons

#0-9 ACH Coagulant for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons

#0-10 ACH Coagulant with 1% Copper Sulfate 
additive for South Water Treatment Plant 150 Tons

#0-11 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend as per specifications for North 
Water Treatment Plant

949 Tons

#0-12 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 1% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons

#0-13 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 2% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons

#0-14 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 3% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons

Delivery 
Days
ARO

Unit 
Price

Total 
Cost

Delivery 
Days
ARO

Unit 
Price

Total 
Cost

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid 5 to 7 $ 1.92 $1,781,433.60 

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

4 $1.84 $45,031.00 No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Buford, GA Sweetwater, TX

Chemrite, Inc. DPC Industries

$45,031.00 $1,781,433.60



City of Lubbock
ITB 22-16644-KM

Water Treatment Chemicals
Bid Tabulation Sheet

Location
Total Cost

# Items
Quantity 
Required UOM

0
#0-1 78.0% Sulfuric Acid For South Water 

Treatment Plant, as specified. 30000 Pounds

#0-2 12.5% Sodium Hypochlorite All 3 Plant 
Facilities, as specified.

927830 Gallons

#0-3 Liquid Ammonium Sulfate 10% w/w  All 
3 Plant Facilities, as specified. 195275 Gallons

#0-4 50.0% Citric Acid For South Water 
Treatment Plant, as specified 24500 Pounds

#0-5 38.0% Sodium Bisulfite For South Water 
Treatment Plant, as specified. 2056 Pounds

#0-6 50.0% Sodium Hydroxide For South 
Water Treatment Plant, as specified. 26400 Pounds

#0-7 PACL Coagulant for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons

#0-8 PACL Coagulant with 1% Copper 
Sulfate additive for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons

#0-9 ACH Coagulant for South Water 
Treatment Plant

150 Tons

#0-10 ACH Coagulant with 1% Copper Sulfate 
additive for South Water Treatment Plant 150 Tons

#0-11 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend as per specifications for North 
Water Treatment Plant

949 Tons

#0-12 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 1% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons

#0-13 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 2% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons

#0-14 Hydrate Aluminum Sulfate/Polymer 
Blend with 3% Copper Sulfate additive 
as per specifications for North Water 
Treatment Plant

949 Tons

Delivery 
Days
ARO

Unit 
Price

Total 
Cost

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

7 to 10 $ 2.53 $61,985.00

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

No Bid No Bid No Bid

Malvern, PA

Shannon Chemical Corporation

$61,985.00



Line 
Item 

QTY Description Location 
Unit 

Price* Bid 
Extended 

Cost 

2 927830 gals. 

12.5% Sodium 
Hypochlorite 

DPC Industries 

 
 
Sweetwater, 
TX 

 
$1.92 

 
$1,781,433.60 

3 195275 gals. 

Liquid Ammonium Sulfate 
10% 

Chameleon Industries 
 
 
Chemtrade Chemicals 

 
 
 
 
 
Mesquite, 
TX 
 
Parsippany, 
NJ 
  

 
 
 
$2.43 
 
 
$2.84  

 
 
 
$474,518.25 
 
 
$554,581.00  

4 24500 Pounds 

50.0% Citric Acid 
 
Chemrite Inc. 
 
Shannon Chemical 

 
Buford, GA 
 
Malvern, PA 

 
$1.84 
 
$2.53 

 
$45,080.00 
 
$61,985.00 

9 150 tons 
ACH Coagulant 
 
Chemtrade Chemcials 

 
 
Parsippany, 
NJ 

 
$1,030.00 

 
$154,500.00 

11 949 tons 

Hydrate Aluminum 
Sulfate/Polymer Blend 
 
Chameleon Industries 

 
 
Mesquite, 
TX 

 
$360.00 

 
$341,640.00 

12 949 tons 

Hydrate Aluminum 
Sulfate/Polymer Blend with 
1% copper additive 
 
Chameleon Industries 

 
 
Mesquite, 
TX 

 
$380.00 

 
$360,620.00 

13 949 tons 

Hydrate Aluminum 
Sulfate/Polymer Blend with 
2% copper sulfate additive 
 
Chameleon Industries 

 
 
Mesquite, 
TX 

 
$400.00 

 
$379,600.00 

14 949 tons 

Hydrate Aluminum 
Sulfate/Polymer Blend with 
3% Copper Sulfate additive 
 
Chameleon Industries 

 
 
 
 
Mesquite, 
TX 

 
 
 
$420.00 

 
 
 
$398,580.00 

 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

ITB 22-16644-KM Water Treatment Chemicals 
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on June 26 and July 3, 2022. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from June 24, 2022 to July 12, 2022. 

52 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

7 vendors were notified separately.  

5 vendors submitted a bids. 

 



 AI# 11167 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 13. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31070176, with Warren CAT, for the purchase of one Caterpillar D8 Track Dozer for the Solid Waste
Landfill.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31070176 is for one 2023 Caterpillar D8 Track Dozer, which will replace a 2013
Caterpillar D8T Tractor Dozer. The new unit will be an essential part of the operations at the landfill,
such as covering the workface, controlling erosion, and heavy machinery recover.
 
This purchase valued at $1,011,675 will be acquired from Warren CAT of Lubbock, Texas, and is made
through the Texas Association of School Boards Local Government Purchasing Cooperative, Contract
597-19, using the electronic purchasing system, BuyBoard.

The purchasing cooperative is an administrative agency created in accordance with Section 791.001 of
the Texas Government Code and used to obtain the benefits and efficiencies that can accrue to members
of a cooperative, to comply with state bidding requirements, and to identify qualified vendors of
commodities, goods, and services.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31070176 for $1,011,675 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92783, the General
Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 2022-23 Tax Note.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 





1Page    -
Date    - 11/3/2022P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31070176 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

WARREN CAT CITY OF LUBBOCK
702 E SLATON ROAD FLEET SERVICES

206 MUNICIPAL DRIVELUBBOCK TX 79404
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight11/3/2022
Taken ByRequested 11/3/2023 S BALLANCE

PUR 16977/ BUYBOARD 597-19Delivery PER B RODRIGUEZ, REQ 59525

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
23 Caterpillar D8 Track Dozer 1.000 1,011,675.0000 EA 1,011,675.00 11/3/2023

Total Order

NET 10 EOMTerms 1,011,675.00

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $1,011,675.00 awarded to Warren CAT of Lubbock, TX, on

_________________, 2022. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated November 01, 2022, from Warren CAT of Lubbock, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 597-19.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ _______________________________________    

Tray Payne, Mayor Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

If you have any questions, please contact Breana Rodriguez: BRodriguez@mylubbock.us or 806-775-2374

INSURANCE REQUIRED: 

Commercial General Liability: 
$1,000,000 occurrence / $2,000,000 aggregate (can be combined 
with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required 
in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all 
insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the 
Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities 
and for completed operations.  
Commercial General Liability to include Products – 
Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, 
Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and 
Medical Expenses (any one person). 

 
Professional Liability: $1,000,000 occurrence/ $2,000,000 
aggregate  

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability:  
Statutory. If the vendor is an independent contractor with no 
employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 
Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained 
from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 
license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with 
Work1ers Compensation. 

Additional Policies:  
Garage Liability: No less than $2,000,000 combined single 
limit 
Carrier Cargo Liability: At minimum, the value of full 
load being hauled

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary 
and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are 
required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day 
written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 
*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 



REV. 3/2022  

    Rev. 3/2022

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER     

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice. 

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED. Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase. 

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices 

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for 

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them.

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid,

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document,

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation.

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us












City of Lubbock, TX
Budget Summary
December 6, 2022

Capital Project Number: 92783
Capital Project Name: General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 22-23 Tax Note

Budget
Encumbered/Expended
Al-Jon 600 Compactor (5815)  $1,101,084 

Agenda Item December 06, 2022
One (1) unit Caterpillar D8 Track Dozer (5815)  1,011,675 

Encumbered/Expended To Date  2,112,759 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Vehicles and Equipment  2,758,573 

Remaining Appropriation  2,758,573 

Total Appropriation  $4,871,332 



 AI# 11168 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 14. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31070383, with Yellowhouse Machinery Co., for the purchase of two John Deere backhoe loaders for
the Water Distribution & Maintenance Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31070383 is for two 2023 John Deere 320 P backhoe loaders, which will replace two
2012 Case 580SM backhoe loaders. These new units will be utilized for pipeline maintenance related to
water utilities, including making repairs to water and sewer pipes.
 
The purchase, valued at $290,000.00, will be acquired from YellowHouse Machinery Co., of Amarillo,
Texas, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 032119-JDC, and will be used in the Water Distribution
and Maintenance Department.
 
Sourcewell has a cooperative purchasing program that manages the solicitation requirements and offers
an established network of awarded contracts that have been competitively bid. Cooperative purchasing is
authorized in Chapter 271 of the Local Government Code and allows a local government to participate in
a cooperative purchasing program. Sourcewell purchases conform to the requirements of Texas
competitive bid statues.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31070383, for $290,000, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92781 the
Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY2022-23.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
CIP Budget Detail 





1 of 2Page    -
Date    - 11/14/2022P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31070383 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

CITY OF LUBBOCK
FLEET SERVICES
206 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

YELLOWHOUSE MACHINERY COMPANY
PO BOX 31388
AMARILLO TX 79120

LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight11/14/2022
Taken ByRequested 4/11/2023 S BALLANCE

PUR 16996/ SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 032119-JDCDelivery PER B RODRIGUEZ, REQ 59553

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
John Deere 320p Backhoe Loaders 2.000 145,000.00  EA 290,000.00 4/11/2023

Total Order

NET 10 EOMTerms 290,000.00

If you have any questions, please contract Breana Rodriguez: BRodriguez@mylubbock.us or 806-775-2374



2 of 2Page    -
Date    - 11/14/2022P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31070383 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

CITY OF LUBBOCK
FLEET SERVICES
206 MUNICIPAL DRIVE

YELLOWHOUSE MACHINERY COMPANY 
PO BOX 31388
AMARILLO TX 79120

LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight11/14/2022
Taken ByRequested 4/11/2023 S BALLANCE

PUR 16996/ SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 032119-JDCDelivery PER B RODRIGUEZ, REQ 59553

INSURANCE REQUIRED: 

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $290,000.00 awarded to Yellowhouse Machinery Company of

Amarillo, TX, on _________________, 2022. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by

reference: Quote dated November 01, 2022, from Yellowhouse Machinery Company of Amarillo, TX, and Sourcewell Contract

032119-JDC.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ _______________________________________    

Tray Payne, Mayor Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

Commercial General Liability: 

$1,000,000 occurrence / $2,000,000 aggregate (can be combined 

with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required 

in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all 

insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the 

Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities 

and for completed operations.  

Commercial General Liability to include Products – 

Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 

Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 

(any one person). 

Automotive Liability: 

$1,000,000 per occurrence

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability: 

Statutory. If the vendor is an independent contractor with no 

employees and are exempt from providing Workers' 

Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained 

from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required 

with Workers Compensation. 

Additional Policies: N/A 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary

and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are

required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day

written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.

*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above.



REV. 3/2022  

    Rev. 3/2022

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER     

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice. 

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED. Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase. 

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices 

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for 

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them.

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid,

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document,

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation.

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


Date: 01 November 2022 Offer Expires: 26 December 2022

Confidential

27721427Quote Id: 

Prepared For:
CITY OF LUBBOCK

Prepared By: JAKE OWENS

Yellowhouse Machinery Co.
3405 E Slaton Road
Lubbock, TX 79404

Tel:  806-763-0473
Fax:  806-763-0331
Email: jakeo@yhmc.com



Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Confidential

Quote Summary
Prepared For:
CITY OF LUBBOCK
404 MUNICIPAL DR
LUBBOCK, TX 79403
Business:  806-775-2170

Prepared By:
JAKE OWENS

Yellowhouse Machinery Co.
3405 E Slaton Road
Lubbock, TX 79404

Phone:  806-763-0473
jakeo@yhmc.com

 This is a Sourcewell Quote 
Travel Time & Mileage covered during warranty 
Hydraulic Hose failure covered during warranty 
Freight to/from YH Shop covered during warranty  
*SOURCEWELL CONTRACT #032119-JDC* 

Quote Id: 27721427
01 November 2022
04 November 2022

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 26 December 2022

Equipment Summary Selling Price Qty Extended

NEW JOHN DEERE 320 P-tier 
Backhoe Loader 103 H.P. - 
FACTORY ORDER

$ 145,000.00 X 1 = $ 145,000.00

John Deere Extended Warranty-60 
MONTH OR 5,000 HOUR FULL 
MACHINE WARRANTY

$ 0.00 X 1 = $ 0.00

NEW JOHN DEERE 320 P-tier 
Backhoe Loader 103 H.P. - 
FACTORY ORDER

$ 145,000.00 X 1 = $ 145,000.00

John Deere Extended Warranty-60 
MONTH OR 5,000 HOUR FULL 
MACHINE WARRANTY

$ 0.00 X 1 = $ 0.00

Equipment Total $ 290,000.00

Quote Summary
Equipment Total $ 290,000.00
SubTotal $ 290,000.00
Total $ 290,000.00
Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 290,000.00



 Selling Equipment

Quote Id: 27721427 Customer: CITY OF LUBBOCK

Confidential

NEW JOHN DEERE 320 P-tier Backhoe Loader 103 H.P. - FACTORY ORDER
Hours:
Stock Number: FACTORY ORDER

Code Description Qty
17C0T NEW 320 P-tier Backhoe Loader 1

Standard Options - Per Unit
183E JDLink™ 1
0202 United States 1
0259 English 1
0351 Translated Text Labels 1
1003 Cab 1
3009 Autoshift Transmission - Mechanical 

Front Wheel Drive (MFWD) with 
Limited Slip Differential

1

4006 John Deere PowerTech™ EWL 4.5L 
(276 cu. in.) Engine Meets Final Tier 4 
and Stage IV Emissions

1

5245 Galaxy 19.5L-24 12PR Rear & 
12.5/80-18 10PR Front

1

6154 Dual Maintenance Free Batteries With 
Disconnect, Jump Post, and Engine 
Block Heater

1

6576 1000 lb. (454 kg.) Front Counterweight 1
6752 Extendible Dipperstick 1
7002 Auxiliary Hydraulics with One & Two 

Way Flow (Hammer & Thumb/Swinger)
1

7028 Pilot Controls, Two Lever, with Pattern 
Selection

1

7037 Two-Function Loader Hydraulics, 
Single Lever

1

7712 New Series Multi-Brand Quick Coupler 
- 42 in. Thumb Ready

1

7804 18 in. (457 mm.) Wide, Heavy-Duty,
5.1 cu. ft. (0.14 cu. m.) Bucket

1

7870 86 in. (2.18 m.) Wide, 1.25 cu. yd.
(0.96 cu. m.) Long-Lip Bucket

1

8062 Backhoe Boom Protection Plate 1
8075 Diagnostic Oil Sampling Ports 1
8096 Premium Mirror Option - Exterior Rear

View Mirrors (2) and Front View Mirror
(1)

1

8109 Sun Visor 1
8115 MFWD Driveshaft Guard 1



        Selling Equipment

Quote Id: 27721427 Customer: CITY OF LUBBOCK

Confidential

8125 Heavy-Duty Backhoe Bucket Cylinder 1
8126 Heavy-Duty Grille Frame 1
8131 Heavy-Duty Stabilizer Pads 1
8142 LED Light Package 1
8146 Left Side Console Storage with Cup 

Holders
1

8165 Auto Ride Control 1
8183 Radio, Bosch Premium Package 1
8208 Seat, Cloth Air-Suspension - Heated 1
8213 Chrome Exhaust Extension 1
8226 Strobe Light with Magnetic Mount 1

Dealer Attachments
HAND HELD HYDRAULICS 1

Service Agreements
John Deere Extended Warranty - 60 
MONTH OR 5,000 HOUR FULL 
MACHINE WARRANTY

NEW JOHN DEERE 320 P-tier Backhoe Loader 103 H.P. - FACTORY ORDER
Equipment Notes:  
Hours:
Stock Number: FACTORY ORDER

Code Description Qty
17C0T NEW 320 P-tier Backhoe Loader 1

Standard Options - Per Unit
183E JDLink™ 1
0202 United States 1
0259 English 1
0351 Translated Text Labels 1
1003 Cab 1
3009 Autoshift Transmission - Mechanical 

Front Wheel Drive (MFWD) with 
Limited Slip Differential

1

4006 John Deere PowerTech™ EWL 4.5L 
(276 cu. in.) Engine Meets Final Tier 4 
and Stage IV Emissions

1

5245 Galaxy 19.5L-24 12PR Rear & 
12.5/80-18 10PR Front

1



 Selling Equipment

Quote Id: 27721427 Customer: CITY OF LUBBOCK

Confidential

6154 Dual Maintenance Free Batteries With 
Disconnect, Jump Post, and Engine 
Block Heater

1

6576 1000 lb. (454 kg.) Front Counterweight 1
6752 Extendible Dipperstick 1
7002 Auxiliary Hydraulics with One & Two 

Way Flow (Hammer & Thumb/Swinger)
1

7028 Pilot Controls, Two Lever, with Pattern 
Selection

1

7037 Two-Function Loader Hydraulics, 
Single Lever

1

7712 New Series Multi-Brand Quick Coupler 
- 42 in. Thumb Ready

1

7804 18 in. (457 mm.) Wide, Heavy-Duty,
5.1 cu. ft. (0.14 cu. m.) Bucket

1

7870 86 in. (2.18 m.) Wide, 1.25 cu. yd.
(0.96 cu. m.) Long-Lip Bucket

1

8062 Backhoe Boom Protection Plate 1
8075 Diagnostic Oil Sampling Ports 1
8096 Premium Mirror Option - Exterior Rear

View Mirrors (2) and Front View Mirror
(1)

1

8109 Sun Visor 1
8115 MFWD Driveshaft Guard 1
8125 Heavy-Duty Backhoe Bucket Cylinder 1
8126 Heavy-Duty Grille Frame 1
8131 Heavy-Duty Stabilizer Pads 1
8142 LED Light Package 1
8146 Left Side Console Storage with Cup

Holders
1

8165 Auto Ride Control 1
8183 Radio, Bosch Premium Package 1
8208 Seat, Cloth Air-Suspension - Heated 1
8213 Chrome Exhaust Extension 1
8226 Strobe Light with Magnetic Mount 1

Dealer Attachments
HAND HELD HYDRAULICS 1

Service Agreements
John Deere Extended Warranty - 60 
MONTH OR 5,000 HOUR FULL 
MACHINE WARRANTY



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended
26,880$  

83,755 

Agenda Item December 6, 2022

290,000 
Encumbered/Expended To Date 400,635 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Vehicles and Equipment 400,635 

Remaining Appropriation 526,907 

Total Appropriation 927,542$  

One (1) Single Turn Valve Maintenance Trailer for Water 
Treatment (6345)

Two (2) units of 2023 John Deere 320P Backhoe Loaders for 
Water Distribution & Maintenance (6331)

City of Lubbock, TX 
Budget Summary 
December 6, 2022

92781
Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 22-23

One (1) unit of Ford Escape SUV (6311)



 AI# 11171 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 15. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to amend Purchase Order
31062734, with Romco Equipment Company, for the purchase of a cement mixing truck for the Water
Distribution & Maintenance Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31062734 for $208,152.56 with Romco Equipment Company was for the purchase of
volumetric cement mixing truck. It was approved by the City Council on November 16, 2021. Romco
Equipment provided the M30 Cement Mixing Body of the truck, and Cemen Tech provided the 2023
Freightliner M2-106 Cab & Chassis.
 
The cement mixing truck arrived in August 2022, and the City received two (2) invoices for payment:
$119,895.56 from Romco Equipment and $88,257 from Cemen Tech. Romco informed the City Fleet
Department that it could not accept the full payment of $208,152.56 because it is not licensed to sell
chassis trucks.
 
Purchase Order 31062734 with Romco Equipment Company needs to be modified to $119,895.56. A
new Purchase Order for Cemen Tech for $88,257 will need to be issued.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31062734 for $119,895.56 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92724
Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY2021-22.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute fo 
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Amendment No. 1 to the Purchase Order 31062734 i 
accordance with Sourccwell Contract No. 052417 for the purchase of a M30 concrete truck, b 
and between the City of Lubbock and Romeo Equipment Co, of Dallas, Texas, and relate 
documents. Said Amendment is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully se 
forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on _____________ _ 

ATTEST: 

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CO TENT: 

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 

�w� 
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

elli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney 

ccdocs/RES.J\mend # I to PO 31062734 concrete truck 

11.29.22 











Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
-$                            

230,000                       
38,060                         
60,728                         

1 Unit of 2023 Ford F250 4X4 Bed Delete (6311) 49,813                         
107,857                       

Agenda Item December 6, 2022
1 Unit of M30 Cement Truck Body (6331) 119,896                       

88,257                         
Encumbered/Expended To Date 694,611                       

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Vehicles and Equipment 97,514                         

Remaining Appropriation 97,514                         

Total Appropriation 792,125$                     

2 Units John Deere Backhoes (6331)
1 Unit of 1/2 ton Ext Cab  4X4 Pickup (6417)
1 Dri-Prime Diesel Pump with trailer and kits (6413)

1 Unit of Cab & Chassis Truck (6331)

City of Lubbock, TX
Budget Summary
December 6, 2022

92724
Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22

Encumbered/Expended

1 Unit of Tandem Axel Diesel Crew Cab (6331)



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

 

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the Water/Wastewater Fund.

6311 Water Meter and Customer Service

(3) 3/4 Ton, Extended Cab, 4x4, Service Body (replacing 22009014, 22008134, and 22013015) - $114,000

6331 Water Distribution & Maintenance

(1) Concrete Truck (replacing 82011007) - $185,000

(2) Backhoe (replacing 92009249 and 92009182) - $240,000

(1) Crew Truck W/ Flatbed (replacing 72010005) - $110,000

6349 Water Reservoir

(1) Land Pride RC2684 3 Point Shredder

(replacing 02012010) - $5,000

6413 Wastewater Collection

(1) 8" trailer mounted pump (replacing 02000178) - $50,000

6417 Industrial Monitoring

(1) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with crane (replacing 22006237) - $35,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$739,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

$53,125 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, BCR# 2022-23, July 21, 2022.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28

Other Activities  792,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  792,125 

Total Project Appropriation  792,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  792,125 



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28

FY 2020 Water/Wastewater Cash  53,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  53,125 

FY 2022 Water/Wastewater Cash  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Funding Sources  792,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  792,125 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 AI# 11173 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 16. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31070037, with Cemen Tech, Inc., for the purchase of one 2023 M2-106 Freightliner cab & chassis truck
for the Water Distribution & Maintenance Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31070037 for $88,257 with Cemen Tech, Inc., is for one 2023 Freightliner M2-106 cab
& chassis truck. This truck had a cement mixing body installed upon it by Romco Equipment.
 
The complete unit is a volumetric cement mixing truck that allows the Water Distribution &
Maintenance Department to produce its own cement materials instead of contracting out this service.
 
This vehicle purchase from Cemen Tech was made in accordance with Sourcewell Contract
052417-CMT.
 
Sourcewell has a cooperative purchasing program that manages the solicitation requirements and offers
and established network of awarded contracts that have been competitively bid. Cooperative Purchasing
is authorized in Chapter 271 of the Local Government Code and allows a local government to participate
in a cooperative purchasing program. Sourcewell purchases conform to the requirements of Texas
Competitive bid statutes.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31070037 for $88,257 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92724
Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY2021-2022.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 10/28/2022P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31070037 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

CEMEN TECH, INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
1700 N. 14TH STREET FLEET SERVICES

206 MUNICIPAL DRIVEINDIANOLA IA 50125-1587
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight10/28/2022
Taken ByRequested 10/28/2022  YBUSBY

SOURCEWELL CONTRACT 052417Delivery PER L MOBBS REQ 59505

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
2023 Freightliner M2-106 1.000 88,257.0000 EA 88,257.00 11/18/2022

Inv
Total Order

NET DUE ON RECEIPTTerms 88,257.00

If you have any questions contact Lisa Mobbs:lmobbs@mylubbock.us Phone 806-775-2185

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $88,257.00 awarded to Cemen Tech, Inc. of Indianola, IA, on 

_________________, 2022. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote 

dated August 22, 2022, from Cemen Tech, Inc. of Indianola, IA, and Sourcewell Contract 052417. 

Resolution # 2021-R0460.

CITY OF LUBBOCK: ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ _______________________________________    

Tray Payne, Mayor Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle



Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Budget
-$                            

230,000                       
38,060                         
60,728                         

1 Unit of 2023 Ford F250 4X4 Bed Delete (6311) 49,813                         
107,857                       

Agenda Item December 6, 2022
1 Unit of M30 Cement Truck Body (6331) 119,896                       

88,257                         
Encumbered/Expended To Date 694,611                       

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Vehicles and Equipment 97,514                         

Remaining Appropriation 97,514                         

Total Appropriation 792,125$                     

2 Units John Deere Backhoes (6331)
1 Unit of 1/2 ton Ext Cab  4X4 Pickup (6417)
1 Dri-Prime Diesel Pump with trailer and kits (6413)

1 Unit of Cab & Chassis Truck (6331)

City of Lubbock, TX
Budget Summary
December 6, 2022

92724
Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22

Encumbered/Expended

1 Unit of Tandem Axel Diesel Crew Cab (6331)



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

 

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the Water/Wastewater Fund.

6311 Water Meter and Customer Service

(3) 3/4 Ton, Extended Cab, 4x4, Service Body (replacing 22009014, 22008134, and 22013015) - $114,000

6331 Water Distribution & Maintenance

(1) Concrete Truck (replacing 82011007) - $185,000

(2) Backhoe (replacing 92009249 and 92009182) - $240,000

(1) Crew Truck W/ Flatbed (replacing 72010005) - $110,000

6349 Water Reservoir

(1) Land Pride RC2684 3 Point Shredder

(replacing 02012010) - $5,000

6413 Wastewater Collection

(1) 8" trailer mounted pump (replacing 02000178) - $50,000

6417 Industrial Monitoring

(1) 1/2 ton, extended cab, 4x4 with crane (replacing 22006237) - $35,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

$739,000 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, Ord. No. 2021-O0126, October 1, 2021.

$53,125 was appropriated in the FY 2021-22 Budget, BCR# 2022-23, July 21, 2022.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28

Other Activities  792,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  792,125 

Total Project Appropriation  792,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  792,125 



Project Name Water/Wastewater Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Project Number 92724

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28

FY 2020 Water/Wastewater Cash  53,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  53,125 

FY 2022 Water/Wastewater Cash  739,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  739,000 

Total Funding Sources  792,125  0  0  0  0  0  0  792,125 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 AI# 11149 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 17. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Service
Contract No. 16747, with Genserve, LLC dba L.J. Power Generators, Inc., for fixed generator repair and
maintenance of City-owned generators at various locations.

Item Summary
This $198,250.00 contract includes services related to the repair and maintenance of City-owned
generators.  The City of Lubbock solicited qualified vendors for this project via RFQ 22-16747-KM.
The responsive vendors were evaluated using the following criteria: Local service center and response
time after notification of emergency repairs needed (25 points), Experience on Qualifications (30 points),
and Price (45 points). Committee members included staff from Facilities Management, and they
provided the following scores:
  

Firms Possible 100 Points
Genserve, LLC dba L/J. Power, Grand Prairie, Texas 86.67
Stewart and Stevenson, Lubbock, Texas Incomplete Bid

Based on these scores, the Selection Committee is recommending Genserve, LLC dba L/J. Power of
Grand Prairie, Texas.  The proposed duration of the contract is for a term of one year plus 4 one-year
extensions.

Fiscal Impact
The total contract is $198,250 and will be funded from different cost centers based on generator
location.  Funds are available in the current budget in the various cost centers.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
T.J. Carpenter, Interim Director of Facilities Management
Darren Densford, Interim Director of Facilities Management

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 16747 
Project Summary 16747 



































 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

RFP 22-16747-KM Fixed Generator Maintenance and Repair at Various Locations 
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on August 28, 2022 and September 4, 2022. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from August 26 to September 20, 2022. 

21 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

10 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted a proposals. 

 



 AI# 11120 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 18. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 2 to the Department of State Health Services Contract No. HHS001120300005,
under the STD/HIV-DIS Prevention Services Grant Program, and all related documents, by and between
the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas Department of State Health Services. 

Item Summary
The purpose of this contract is to control and prevent the spread of Sexually Transmitted Diseases
(STDs), including Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome
(HIV/AIDS) and Viral Hepatitis. 

This amendment increases the contract by $392,969, increasing the total contract amount to $785,938.
The contract term is March 1, 2022, through December 31, 2023. 

Fiscal Impact
The amendment increases the contract amount to $392.969 for Calendar Year 2023. The total contract
value will not exceed $785,938.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 





 
The Honorable Tray Payne, Mayor 

City of Lubbock 

PO Box 2000 

Lubbock, Texas 79457 

 

Subject:  Sexually Transmitted Disease/Human Immunodeficiency Virus 

Disease Intervention Specialists (STD/HIV-DIS) Contract 

  Contract Number: HHS001120300005, Amendment No. 2    

  Contract Amount: $785,938.00 

  Contract Term: March 1, 2022 through December 31, 2023 

 

Dear Mayor Payne: 

 

Enclosed is the STD/HIV-DIS amendment between the Department of State Health 

Services and City of Lubbock. 

 

The purpose of this contract is to control and prevent the spread of Sexually 

Transmitted Diseases (STDs), including Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired 

Immunodeficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS) and viral hepatitis.  

 
This amendment increases the contract amount by $392,969.00 for Calendar Year 

2023, extends the contract term to December 31, 2023, and updates certain terms 
and conditions.   

  
Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Amber Vasché, CTCD, CTCM 

Contract Manager 

(512) 776-6582 

amber.vasche@dshs.texas.gov

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30

mailto:lillie.powell@dshs.texas.gov


 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 1 of 5 

Amendment No. 2 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES 

CONTRACT NO. HHS001120300005 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 

 

The DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES (“DSHS” or “System Agency”), a pass-through 

entity, and CITY OF LUBBOCK ("Grantee"), each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”, to that 

certain grant contract to control and prevent the spread of Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs), 

including Human Immunodeficiency Virus/Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (HIV/AIDS) 

and viral hepatitis under the STD/HIV-DIS Prevention Services Program effective March 1, 2022 

and denominated DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 (“Contract”), as amended, now desire 

to further amend the Contract.   

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to extend the contract term; 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to increase funding to the Contract for Calendar Year 2023; 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to revise the Statement of Work to update project objectives and 

reporting requirements to address the increase in statewide congenital cases and to comply with 

required activities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to incorporate certain terms for compliance with applicable law and 

policy, and to make other modifications as stated herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties modify the Contract as follows: 

 

1. ARTICLE III, DURATION, of the Contract is amended to reflect a revised termination date of 

December 31, 2023. 

 

2. ARTICLE IV, BUDGET, of the Contract is amended to add $392,969.00 for expenditures during 

Calendar Year 2023. The total Contract value will not exceed $785,938.00. All expenditures 

must be in accordance with ATTACHMENT B-2, REVISED BUDGET (SEPTEMBER 2022), which 

also incorporates the indirect cost rate. 

 

3. The Contract is amended to add ARTICLE IX, FUNDING AND NOTICE TO PROCEED, to the 

Contract: 

 

IX. FUNDING AND NOTICE TO PROCEED 

 

Funding for this Contract is dependent upon the approval from the Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention.  Grantee may not incur expenditures above $392,969.00 until DSHS issues a 

Notice to Proceed to Grantee. This Notice to Proceed may include an amended or ratified 

budget, which will be incorporated into this Contract by a subsequent amendment.  Any 

expenditures made beyond the aforementioned dollar amount in this Article prior to the date 

on the Notice to Proceed will be at Grantee’s sole risk. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 2 of 5 

Amendment No. 2 

DSHS written preapproval is required prior to Grantee redirecting any funds for activities 

associated with monkeypox. In addition, all expenditures for activities associated with 

monkeypox must be tracked separately. 

 

4. PARAGRAPH 1 of SECTION II(A) in ATTACHMENT A-1, REVISED STATEMENT OF WORK, of 

the Contract is revised to add subparts f through i under PARAGRAPH 1 as follows:  

 

f.  Ensure that pregnant women with syphilis are identified and treated appropriately and 

timely to prevent congenital syphilis. 

 

g.  Ensure that all infants born to a woman with a history of syphilis in their jurisdiction 

are investigated and reported within 30 calendar days of receiving report of birth as 

outlined by DSHS HIV/STD Program POPS, Chapter 23, Congenital Syphilis, available 

at: https://dshs.texas.gov/hivstd/pops/chap23.shtm. 

 

h.  Provide technical assistance and guidance to providers and systems of care to ensure 

testing for syphilis is conducted, at a minimum, at first prenatal visit, during third 

trimester, and at delivery as testing in accordance with Section 81.090, Diagnostic 

Testing During Pregnancy and After Birth, of the Texas Health and Safety Code. 

 

i.  Ensure that all people of childbearing capacity have a documented pregnancy status in 

the reporting database management system. Grantee shall ensure that people in the 

following population groups have a documented pregnancy status at or above the 

specified thresholds:  

 

1) People of childbearing capacity with reactive syphilis labs. Reported percentage of 

a documented pregnancy status of people of childbearing capacity with reactive 

syphilis labs must be at or above 90 percent; and 

2) People of childbearing capacity who have been identified by a person with reactive 

syphilis labs (e.g., partners, suspects, and associates) with whom the Grantee is able 

to make contact. Reported percentage of a documented pregnancy status of people 

of childbearing capacity identified by a person with reactive syphilis labs and 

contacted by Grantee must be at or above 80 percent. 

 

If the reported percentage for documented pregnancy status is less than either of the 

percentages specified, then DSHS may (at its sole discretion) require additional 

measures be taken by the Grantee to improve reported percentage(s). Grantee must 

follow those additional measures, and do so according to the timetable mandated by 

DSHS.  

   

5. SECTION VI, REPORTING REQUIREMENTS, in ATTACHMENT A-1, REVISED STATEMENT OF 

WORK, of the Contract is revised to add the following table for Calendar Year 2023 reporting 

requirements: 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30

https://dshs.texas.gov/hivstd/pops/chap23.shtm


 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 3 of 5 

Amendment No. 2 

CALENDAR YEAR 2023 REPORTING: 

REPORT NAME PERIOD BEGIN PERIOD END DUE DATE 

1st 2023 Semiannual 

Report 

01/01/2023 06/30/2023 07/31/2023 

2nd 2023 Semiannual 

Report 

 

 

07/01/2023 12/31/2023 01/31/2024 

Congenital Syphilis 

Case Investigation and 

Infant Syphilis Control 

Records 

01/01/2023 12/31/2023 Due thirty (30) calendar 

days after period being 

reported. 

Note:  This Report is 

submitted through 

THISIS and is subject to 

HIPAA and PHI data 

requirements. 

1st 2023 LRP Report  01/01/2023 06/30/2023 07/31/2023 

2nd 2023 LRP Report 07/01/2023 12/31/2023 01/31/2024 

1st 2023 FSR 01/01/2023 06/30/2023 07/31/2023 

2nd 2023 FSR 07/01/2023 12/31/2023 02/15/2024 

 

6. ATTACHMENT B-1, REVISED BUDGET, of the Contract is deleted in its entirety and replaced 

with ATTACHMENT B-2, REVISED BUDGET (SEPTEMBER 2022), which is attached to this 

Amendment and incorporated into the Contract for all purposes. 

 

7. ATTACHMENT C, HHS UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS—GRANT VERSION 3.0 AUGUST 

2021, of the Contract is deleted in its entirety and replaced with ATTACHMENT C-1, HHS 

UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS—GRANT VERSION 3.2, which is attached to this 

Amendment and incorporated into the Contract for all purposes. 

 

8. ATTACHMENT D, HHS CONTRACT AFFIRMATIONS V. 2.0 AUGUST 2021, of the Contract is 

deleted in its entirety and replaced with ATTACHMENT D-1, HHS CONTRACT AFFIRMATIONS 

VERSION 2.2, which is attached to this Amendment and incorporated into the Contract for all 

purposes. 

 

9. ATTACHMENT F-1, FEDERAL ASSURANCES, is attached to this Amendment and incorporated 

into the Contract for all purposes. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 4 of 5 

Amendment No. 2 

10. ATTACHMENT H-1, FFATA CERTIFICATION FORM, is attached to this Amendment and 

incorporated into this Contract for all purposes. Grantee is required to complete the 

Certification to meet the Federal requirement. 
 

11. This Amendment shall be effective as of the date last signed below. 
 

12. Except as modified by this Amendment, all terms and conditions of this Contract, as amended, 

shall remain in full force and effect.  
 

13. Any further revisions to the Contract shall be by written agreement of the Parties. 
 

14. Each Party represents and warrants that the person executing this Amendment on its behalf has 

full power and authority to enter into this Amendment. 

Signature Page Follows  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 5 of 5 

Amendment No. 2 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AMENDMENT NO. 2 

DSHS CONTRACT NO. HHS001120300005 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES CITY OF LUBBOCK 

  

By: _______________________________   By: ________________________________ 

 

Printed Name: ______________________  Printed Name: _______________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________  Title: ______________________________ 

 

Date of Signature: ___________________  Date of Signature: ____________________ 

 
 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 1 of 1 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment B-2 

 

ATTACHMENT B-2 

REVISED BUDGET (SEPTEMBER 2022) 

 

 

CATEGORICAL EXPENDITURES 

Budget Category 

Calendar Year 2022: 

March 1, 2022 – 

December 31, 2022  

Calendar Year 2023: 

January 1, 2023 – 

December 31, 2023 

PERSONNEL $199,667.00 $231,530.00 

FRINGE BENEFITS $101,391.00 $104,189.00 

TRAVEL $2,575.00 $16,925.00 

EQUIPMENT $0.00 $0.00 

SUPPLIES $21,636.00 $14,375.00 

CONTRACTUAL $25,000.00 $3,000.00 

OTHER $42,700.00 $22,950.00 

TOTAL DIRECT CHARGES $392,969.00 $392,969.00 

INDIRECT CHARGES $0.00 $0.00 

TOTAL $392,969.00 $392,969.00 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 1 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

ATTACHMENT C-1  

HHS UNIFORM TERMS AND CONDITIONS – GRANT VERSION 3.2

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 2 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 3 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 4 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 5 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 6 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 7 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 8 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 9 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 10 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 11 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 12 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 13 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 14 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 15 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 16 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 17 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 18 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 19 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 20 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 21 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 22 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 23 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 24 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 25 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 26 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 27 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 28 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 29 of 29 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment C-1 

 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 1 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

ATTACHMENT D-1 

HHS CONTRACT AFFIRMATIONS VERSION 2.2

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 2 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 3 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 4 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 5 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 6 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 7 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 8 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 9 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 10 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 11 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 12 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 13 of 13 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment D-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 1 of 2 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment F-1 

 

ATTACHMENT F-1 

FEDERAL ASSURANCES 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 2 of 2 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment F-1 

 

 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 1 of 2 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment H-1 

 

ATTACHMENT H-1 

FFATA CERTIFICATION FORM 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001120300005 Page 2 of 2 

Amendment No. 2 

Attachment H-1 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C0AD6E12-17EA-416A-A759-83567EC09D30



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: C0AD6E1217EA416AA75983567EC09D30 Status: Sent

Subject: $785,938.00 HHS001120300005 City of Lubbock A-2 HIV-DIS

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 53 Signatures: 0 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 CMS Internal Routing Mailbox

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

11493 Sunset Hills Road

#100

Reston, VA  20190

CMS.InternalRouting@dshs.texas.gov

IP Address: 167.137.1.13   

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             9/28/2022 3:37:59 PM

Holder: CMS Internal Routing Mailbox

             CMS.InternalRouting@dshs.texas.gov

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Tray Payne, Mayor

traypayne@mylubbock.us

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 9/28/2022 3:47:07 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Helen Whittington

helen.whittington@dshs.texas.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 10/6/2022 5:12:45 PM
      ID: 6b28afd2-e841-4d45-a7c2-ea505867b7ea

Patty Melchior

Patty.Melchior@dshs.texas.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 5/5/2022 12:43:08 PM
      ID: f01589da-43a7-481e-996a-7c50409e5d48

Kirk Cole

Kirk.Cole@dshs.texas.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 10/6/2022 4:46:26 PM
      ID: 3e8afcad-272d-4c97-91ea-73804535d689

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp



Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Amber Vasche

amber.vasche@dshs.texas.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 9/28/2022 3:47:06 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Katherine Wells

kwells@mylubbock.us

Director of Public Health

City of Lubbock

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 9/28/2022 3:47:06 PM

Viewed: 10/7/2022 9:18:54 AM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

CMS Internal Routing Mailbox

CMS.InternalRouting@dshs.texas.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 9/28/2022 3:47:06 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  

From time to time, DSHS Contract Management Section (we, us or Company) may be required 

by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms 

and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the 

DocuSign system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can 

access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and 

Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to 

‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the 

DocuSign system. 

 

Getting paper copies  

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send 

to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you 

elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time 

(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to 

send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a 

$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the 

procedure described below. 

 

Withdrawing your consent  

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below. 

 

Consequences of changing your mind  

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to 

receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents 

from us. 

 

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 9/14/2020 7:10:18 PM
Parties agreed to: Helen Whittington, Patty Melchior, Kirk Cole



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us. 

 

How to contact DSHS Contract Management Section:  

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: alison.joffrion@hhsc.state.tx.us 

 

To advise DSHS Contract Management Section of your new email address  

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at alison.joffrion@hhsc.state.tx.us 

and in the body of such request you must state: your previous email address, your new email 

address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address.  

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your 

account preferences.  

 

To request paper copies from DSHS Contract Management Section  

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an email to alison.joffrion@hhsc.state.tx.us and in 

the body of such request you must state your email address, full name, mailing address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 

 

To withdraw your consent with DSHS Contract Management Section  

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 



i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page, 

select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an email to alison.joffrion@hhsc.state.tx.us and in the body of such request you must 

state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need any other 

information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences of your withdrawing consent for 

online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process.. 

 

Required hardware and software  

The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The 

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-

signing-system-requirements.  

 

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically  

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have 

read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for 

your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address 

where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, 

if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described 

herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before 

clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system. 

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm 

that: 

 You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and 

 You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send 

this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future 

reference and access; and 

 Until or unless you notify DSHS Contract Management Section as described above, you 

consent to receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided 

or made available to you by DSHS Contract Management Section during the course of 

your relationship with DSHS Contract Management Section. 

https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements


 AI# 11169 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 19. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 2 to Community Development Funding Contract 16001, and all related documents, with
YWCA of Lubbock, to provide Childcare Assistance to qualified persons.

Item Summary
Grantee: YWCA of Lubbock
Funding Source: Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus Relief and Economic Security Act
CARES (CDBG CARES) funds from HUD
Use of Funds: This is voucher program administered by YWCA through licensed childcare facilities in
Lubbock, Texas, is for Childcare Assistance for low-income citizens of the City of Lubbock affected by
COVID-19. 
Original Allocation: Up to $200,000
1st Amendment Allocation: Up to $700,000 (additional $500,000)
2nd Amendment Allocation Up to $1,100,000 (additional $400,000)
Original Terms: October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2022
1st Amendment Terms: October 1, 2021 - September 30, 2023

The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB) met on November 9, 2022, and approved
reallocation from Mortgage Assistance to Childcare Assistance.  CDSB recommends to the City Council
the reallocation of CDBG CARES funding to the Childcare Assistance Program.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The maximum amount allocated to YWCA for the
CDBG/CARES Childcare Assistance program is $1,100,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment 2 











 AI# 11200 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 20. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional
Services Agreement 16872, with Strategic Government Resources, Inc., for executive recruitment
services.

Item Summary
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued to solicit responses from interested firms to perform
executive search services in the recruitment of various management positions on an as-needed basis.

The firms were asked to demonstrate to the City the qualifications, competence, and capability to
identify, screen, and recruit. The selected firms will utilize their experience and knowledge of executive
searches to translate the City’s needs into a detailed recruiting profile of the position and environment,
and then to encompass a nationwide search.

The evaluation committee evaluated and ranked the written proposals based on the following criteria: 30
Points - Qualifications and experience, 25 Points - Rates and expenses, 30 Points - Methodology,
including technical approach and understanding of the scope of work, and 15 Points - References.

The following firms submitted proposals and were rated according to the above criteria;
  

Firms Points
Strategic Government Resources, Keller, Texas 93.00
Baker Tilly US, LLP, Plano, Texas 82.67
CPS HR Consulting, Sacramento, California 81.67
22nd Centure Technologies, Inc., Austin, Texas 73.00
GovHRUSA, Northbrook, Illinois 71.33

The evaluation committee makes the following recommendations:
1) Contract award to Strategic Government Resources, for a proposal fee per search of $24,150; and
2) Contract award to Baker Tilly US, LLP, for a proposal fee of $25,725 per search, which will be
brought for City Council approval at a later date, once the contract is finalized.

Fiscal Impact
Fees associated for services will be based on each recruitment. Funding for the services will be
appropriated in the City's Operating Budget at the department level.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer



Attachments
Resolution 
Contract - SGR 
Project Summary Sheet 









































































 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
RFP 23-16872-MA- Executive Recruitment Services  

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 25, & October 2, 2022. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from September 23 to October 11, 2022. 
29 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
6 vendors were notified separately.  
5 vendors submitted proposals. 

 



 AI# 11212 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 21. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute for and on behalf
of the City of Lubbock, a Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement, for the purchase of certain real
property located in Block B, Section 2, Abstract 659, Lubbock County, Texas, owned by BNSF Railway
Company.

Item Summary
The BNSF Railway Company desires to sell a portion of the railroad of Right-of-Way located
at Block B, Section 2, Abstract 659, Lubbock, Texas,  to the City of Lubbock, as outlined in Exhibit A
of the Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement. The land will be used for a public purpose determined
by the City at a later date.  

Fiscal Impact
The purchase price of the land is $10,000 and is available in NonDepartmental Cost Center, 1115.9280,
Capital Outlay Land.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution - BNSF 
BNSF Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agmt 

















 AI# 11127 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 22. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0161, for Zone Case
0604-A, a request of George Castillo, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Reduced
Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at 303 North Avenue Q, located north of Baylor Street and west
of North Avenue Q, Manson Heights Addition, Block 1, Lot 2.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 604-A 
Staff Report - 604-A 
Documentation - 604-A 







Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 604-A 
City Council Meeting November 16, 2022 

Applicant George Castillo 

Property Owner  George Castillo 

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 15, 1949, Ordinance No. 941: The subject property was annexed into the City of Lubbock and

zoned Single-Family District (A). 
• January 11, 1951, Zone Case 242, Ordinance No. 1051: The subject property was zoned Local Retail

District (F). 
• July 24, 1952, Zone Case 383, Ordinance No. 1249: The subject property was rezoned from Local Retail

District (F) to Multi-Family Residential District (R-3). 
• November 20, 1956, Zone Case 604, Ordinance 2060: The subject property was rezoned from Multi-Family

Residential District (R-3) to General Retail District (C-3). 
• November 3, 2022, Zone Case 604-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Reduced Setbacks Single-Family District (R-1A) by a 
vote of 9-0-0. 

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 18
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 
The property was platted on September 13, 1948 as Manson Heights Addition, Block 1, Lot 2. On or around 1951 
a single family home was constructed on this lot.  In 1977, the structure was removed from the lot. The subject 
property has remained vacant since. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The surrounding properties are zoned Single-Family District (R-1), Multi-Family District (R-3), and General Retail 
District (C-3). To the north and west are single family homes with a commercial building to the south and vacant 
lots to the east. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 303 North Avenue Q, located north of Baylor Street and west of North 
Avenue Q. The applicant is requesting a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Reduced Setback Single-
Family District (R-1A). 

Current zoning: General Retail District (C-3) 

Requested zoning: Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 
 
The intent of the proposed R-1A zoning is “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses, and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along North Avenue Q, which is designated as a local street. Local Streets typically provide access 
to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts, and carry 
traffic to and from the main transportation system. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and would not change the character of the 
existing development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Low-Density Residential” land uses. This request does conform 
to this designation, and would be appropriate next to adjacent residential districts. Therefore this request is in 
complete conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a local 
street and is compatible next to residential land uses. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed residential uses, though additional improvements may be necessary. 
 
Attachments 

A.  Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I. Notification Responses 
 

 
Staff Contacts 
Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2103    806-775-3029 
sspencer@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 604-A 

 

Allowable Uses: Reduced Setbacks Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from North Avenue Q. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

North Avenue Q, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 30 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 30 feet, 2 lanes, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 1  
 

  5.1 Zone Case 0604-A: George Castillo 

Request for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Reduced Setback Single-

Family District (R-1A), at: 

 303 North Avenue Q, located north of Baylor Street and west of North 

Avenue Q, Manson Heights Addition, Block 1, Lot 2. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were eighteen (18) notifications sent out with one (1) 

returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and discussed 

the surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

JAMES BELL asked staff what additional improvements would be needed. MR. SPENCER said he 

could not think of anything right off hand, since the street is already paved and full width, with water and 

sewer nearby. 

 

APPLICANT was present but did not speak. 

 

Opposed: GARLAND BOWERS, 1702 Baylor Street, owner of the building next door, said he is not 

opposed, but wants to make sure his property would remain zoned C-3 and not be affected by the zone 

change. CHAIR SAWYER said it would only apply to 303 North Avenue Q. MR. BOWERS said “I’m 

good with it, let them have it”. 

 

No one else spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

https://ecode360.com/38876213


Zone Case 604-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 0604-A, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by 

BRANDON HARDAWAY to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 

(in opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 













 604-A 

 

 

View to the north.  

 

  

View to the east.  

 

View to the south.  

 

View to the west. Subject Property. 

 







 AI# 11130 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 23. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0162, for Zone Case
2565-F, a request of Jessie R. Romero, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District
(IHC) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at 915 32nd Street, located south of 32nd
Street and west of Interstate 27, Flynn Place Addition, Block 3, the west 28.59 feet of Lot 10 and Lot 11.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 2565-F 
Staff Report - 2565-F 
Documentation - 2565-F 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2565-F 
City Council Meeting    November 16, 2022 

 
Applicant Jessie R. Romero 
 
Property Owner  Jessie R. Romero  
 
Council District   2 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 22, 1909, Ordinance V1 P12: The subject property was established as part of the original city 
limits. 

• March 13, 1941, Original Zoning Ordinance No. 661: The subject property was zoned C District. 
• May 22, 1952, Zone Case 0350, Ordinance No. 1217: The subject property was rezoned from C District 

to B District.  
• December 8, 1966, Zone Case 1446-A, Ordinance No. 5134: The subject property was rezoned from 

Two-Family District (R-2) to Commercial District (C-4). 
• August 14, 1986, Zone Case 2565, Ordinance No. 8947: The subject property was rezoned from C-4, 

General Retail District (C-3), Light Manufacturing District (M-1) and Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2) 
to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC).  

• November 3, 2022, Zone Case 2565-F: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for 
a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-
1A) by a vote of 9-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 18 
• Received In Favor: 1 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted as Flynn Place Addition, Block 3, Lots 10 and 11 on February 25, 1925 and 
remains vacant.   
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north and west are zoned IHC and are developed with residential homes. The property to 
the south is zoned IHC and remains vacant. To the east is Interstate 27.       
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 915 32nd Street and is located south of 32nd Street and west of Interstate 
27. The applicant requests a zone change from IHC to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A). 
 
Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC)   
 
Requested zoning:  Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current IHC zoning is, “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 



Page 2 of 2 
 

which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas.” 

The intent of the proposed R-1A zoning is, “… to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 
residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 
and harmful land uses, and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along 32nd Street and Interstate 27. 32nd Street is designated as a Local 
Street and Interstate 27 is designated as a Freeway by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets typically 
provide access to smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business 
districts. Freeways are intended to move high volumes of automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long 
distances.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. There are residential homes to the north and west of the subject property. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Low Density Residential” land uses. The proposed zone change 
to R-1A would be in conformance with the principles of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan and is appropriate in this 
location next to other residential homes that are already established. Note, the residential homes surrounding 
the subject property were developed prior to the zone change to IHC in 1986. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in R-1A zoning district.  
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C.  Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I. Notification Responses 
 
Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-3029 
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  
 

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2565-F 

 

Allowable Uses:   Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A)   

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Interstate Highway 27 and 

32nd Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Interstate Highway 
27, Freeway, 
Completed  

R.O.W. 440 feet, thirteen-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 440 feet, 
thirteen-lane, 

undivided, paved 

32nd  Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W 50 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, not paved 

R.O.W 52 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 2  
 

  5.2 Zone Case 2565-F: Jessie R. Romero  

Request for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to 

Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), at: 

 915 32nd Street, located south of 32nd Street and west of Interstate 27, Flynn 

Place Addition, Block 3, the west 28.59 feet of Lot 10 and Lot 11. 

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were eighteen (18) notifications sent out with one (1) 

returned in favor. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and discussed the 

surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

APPLICANT JESSIE ROMERO, 915 32nd Street, said he wants to build a small house; the whole 

neighborhood has the same size homes he would like to build. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 2565-F, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by 

JAMES BELL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://ecode360.com/38876213












2565-F 

 

Subject property. View to the South. 

 

  

View to the East.   

View to the West. 

 

View to the North. 







 AI# 11133 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 24. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0163, for Zone Case
3257-I, a request of Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Concepts, for a zone change from Garden Office
District (GO) to Apartment-Medical District (AM), at 3226 140th Street, located north of 140th Street
and east of Indiana Avenue, Viridian Estates Addition, Tract D.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 3257-I 
Staff Report - 3257-I 
Documentation - 3257-I 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3257-I 
City Council Meeting November 16, 2022 

Applicant Seventeen Services LLC 

Property Owner Edge Concepts 

Council District 4 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned
Transition District (T).

 October 13, 2016, Zone Case 3257-B, Ordinance No. 2016-O0147: The subject property was rezoned from
T to Single Family District (R-1) Specific Use.

 November 2, 2017, Zone Case 3257-D, Ordinance No. 2017-O0141: The subject property was rezoned

from R-1 Specific Use to Garden Office District (GO).

 November 3, 2022, Zone Case 3257-I: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to Apartment-Medical District (AM) by a vote of 9-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 4

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The property was platted on June 8, 2018 as Viridian Estates Tract D, and is currently vacant land. 

Adjacent Property Development 

This property is surrounded by the Lubbock Cooper ISD office, zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM) to the 

north; to the south is a Lubbock Police station, zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM); and to the east and west 

is vacant land, zoned Garden Office District (GO). 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 3226 140th Street, north of 140th Street and east of Indiana Avenue. The 

applicant is requesting a zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to Apartment-Medical District (AM). 

Current zoning: Garden Office District (GO) 

Requested zoning: Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current GO zoning is “…to provide for quality garden office development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 

commercial uses. .” 

The intent of the proposed AM zoning is “…to provide for quality medical and related development through proper 



Page 2 of 2 
 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 

facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a medical 

center.” 

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is along 140th Street, which is designated as a Local Street and east of Indiana Avenue, which is 
designated as a Principal Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets provide access to 
smaller, destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts. Arterials are 
continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local and regional traffic.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Residential Low Density uses. Although the proposed zone 

change to AM would not be consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. Due to the development of the surrounding 

area AM would be a compatible zoning district.   

 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located in an appropriate 

location along a Principal Arterial and next to other similar zoned properties.  

 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the uses allowed in the AM district. Additional infrastructure improvements would not 
be necessary. 

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 
G. Application and supporting documentation

 
Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

 
 
 
 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3257-I 

 

Allowable Uses:    Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from 140th street.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

140th Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed  

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4  
 

  5.5 Zone Case 3257-I: Seventeen Services LLC for Edge Concepts 

Request for a zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to Apartment-Medical 

District (AM) at: 

 3226 140th Street, located north of 140th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, 

Viridian Estates Addition, Tract D. 

 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ stated there were four (4) notifications sent out with zero (0) 

returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and discussed the surrounding 

properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

JAMES BELL asked the applicant why they were specifically requesting AM zoning. 

 

APPLICANT ACE MADIVALA, 1500 Broadway Street, said they plan to build a daycare. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3257-I, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by 

SUSAN TOMLINSON to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://ecode360.com/38876563#38876563










3257-I 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the north.                       View to the east. 
  
 

 

 

View to the south.    View to the west. 



20217
Rectangle



 AI# 11136 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 25. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0164, for Zone Case
3274-E, a request of Betenbough Homes, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial
District (IHC) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), generally located east of Avenue U
and north of 133rd Street, Bell Farms Addition, Lots 1652 through 1676, 1681 through 1692, 1698
through 1709, 1718 through 1739 and Tracts CC and DD.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 3274-E 
Staff Report - 3274-E 
Documentation - 3274-E 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3274-E 
City Council Meeting November 16, 2022 

 
Applicant Ronnie Wallace 
 
Property Owner  Betenbough Homes 
 
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• February 8, 2018, Ordinance No. 2018-O0021: The subject property was annexed into city limits and 
zoned Transitional (T). 

• August 9, 2018, Zone Case 3274-B, Ordinance No. 2018-O0089: The subject property was rezoned from 
(T) to Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC). 

• November 3, 2022, Zone Case: 3274-E: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for 
a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Reduced Setback Single-Family
District (R-1A) by a vote of 9-0-0. 
  

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 12 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted as Bell Farms Addition, Lots 1652 through 1676, 1681 through 1692, 1698 
through 1709, 1718 through 1739 and Tracts CC and DD on May 7, 2021.  The described lots are currently 
developed as vacant, subdivided land. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
This property is surrounded by vacant land of mixed uses consisting of Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC), 
Family residences zoned T, Two Family District (R-2) and Single Family District (R-1) to the south and west with 
land outside the city limits to the north.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located east of Avenue U and south of 130th Street. The applicant is 
requesting a zone change to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A). 

Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) 
 
Requested zoning:  Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current IHC zoning “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential areas.” 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The intent of the proposed R-1A zoning “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family residential 
units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious and harmful 
land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 
 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
 
The property is generally located south of 130th street (future loop 88) which is designated as a proposed freeway 
and east of Avenue U which is designated as a collector street. Freeways are intended to move high volumes of 
automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances. Collectors are designed for medium volumes of 
vehicles operating at lower speeds. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. It is appropriate adjacent to other residential uses. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Low Density Residential Uses. The requested zone 
change is consistent with this designation and is appropriate in this location, adjacent to other residential uses.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and the location is appropriate for (R1-
A).  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not require additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of this use.  
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Future Land Use Map 
F. Photos 
G. Application and Supporting Documentation 

 
 
Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea    Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us     vescamilla@mylubbock.us  
  
 

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3274-E 

 

Allowable Uses:   Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 130th Street (Loop 88) and 

Avenue U. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4  
 

  5.6 Zone Case 3274-E: Betenbough Homes 

Request for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to 

Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) at: 

 Generally located east of Avenue U and north of 133rd Street, Bell Farms 

Addition, Lots 1652 through 1676, 1681 through 1692, 1698 through 1709, 

1718 through 1739 and Tracts CC and DD. 

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were twelve (12) notifications sent out with zero (0) 

returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and discussed the surrounding 

properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

JAMES BELL asked if Avenue U is unpaved and how will it be addressed. 

 

APPLICANT CHRIS BERRY, 7202 91st Street, with Betenbough Homes, said Avenue U is paved and 

full width as a Collector and this is a clean-up zone case. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

Thoroughfare 
 

Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Loop 88 
Freeway, Proposed 

Outer Loop 

R.O.W. 50 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 320 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue U 
Collector 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

https://ecode360.com/38876213


Zone Case 3274-E 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

In the matter of Zone Case 3274-E, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by 

JAMES BELL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 











3274-E

East View.

North View. South View.

West View.













 AI# 11138 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 26. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0165, for Zone Case
3472, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a zone
change from Transition District (T) to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Local Retail District
(C-2), generally located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 19.4 acres of unplatted
land out of Block AK, Section 6.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 3472 
Staff Report - 3472 
Documentation - 3472 















Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 
Staff Report  Zone Case 3472 
City Council Meeting   November 16, 2022 

 
Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 
 
Property Owner  Red Canyon Development, LLC   
 
Council District   4 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• February 8, 2018, Ordinance No. 2018-O0023: The subject property was annexed and zoned Transition 
District (T). 

• November 3, 2022, Zone Case 3472: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a 
zone change from Transition District (T) to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Local Retail 
District (C-2) by a vote of 9-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 7 
• Received In Favor: 0 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property remains unplatted and vacant.   
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The property to the north is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and remains vacant. The property to the west is 
zoned Transition (T) Specific Use for a commercial athletic field, park, stadium or arena and remains vacant. 
The north portion of the property to the east is zoned Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and remains vacant. 
The south portion of the property to the east is outside of city limits.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located west of Quaker Avenue. The applicant requests a zone change from T to 
Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Local Retail District (C-2). 
 
Current zoning:  Transition District (T)   
 
Requested zoning:  Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) and Local Retail District (C-2) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current T zoning is, “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the proposed C-2A zoning is, “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one or several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing shallow commercial centers 
adjacent to thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is, “…to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 
intersections of major thoroughfares.” 

 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Quaker Avenue. Quaker Avenue is designated as Principal Arterial 
(Modified) by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation 
network and are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional 
traffic.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Low Density Residential” land uses. While the proposed zone 
change to C-2A and C-2 is not consistent with this designation, it is appropriate in this location next to other 
commercial zonings that are already established. This property also fronts onto Quaker Avenue, which is a 
Principal Arterial (Modified), making this request in moderate conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for this area.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and may need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-2A and C-2 zoning districts, as the property is currently unplatted. 
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C.  Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E.  Future Land Use Map 
F.  Photos 
G.  Application and supporting documentation 

 
 
Staff Contacts 
Ashley Padilla    Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-3029 
ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  
 

mailto:ashleypadilla@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3472 

 

Allowable Uses:   Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A), Local Retail (C-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has  point of access from Quaker Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Quaker Avenue,  
Principal  Arterial 

(Modified),     
Partially Completed  

R.O.W. 76 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, not paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 
 

5.7 Zone Case 3472: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Red Canyon Development, LLC 

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Restricted Local Retail District 

(C-2A) and Local Retail District (C-2), at: 

 Generally located south of 146th Street and west of Quaker Avenue, on 19.4 

acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6. 

 

PLANNER ASHLEY PADILLA stated there were seven (7) notifications sent out with zero (0) returned. 

Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and discussed the surrounding 

properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, 1601 Avenue N, said this request is part of the Red Feather 

development and a huge majority of this construction is a playa lake, where they are creating a golf course. 

They are left with a small strip of land and they are requesting C-2, because it allows drive-ups, with a 

downgrade into C-2A zoning further south. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3472, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by AVIRAJ 

PATEL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 

https://ecode360.com/38876858
https://ecode360.com/38876996










3472 

 

Subject property. View to the South. 

 

  

View to the East.   

View to the West. 

 

View to the North. 





 AI# 11139 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 27. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0166, for Zone Case
3126-D, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for SWLLD, LLC and FADEV, LLC, for a zone
change from Transition District (T), Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI), General Retail District
(C-3) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Two-Family District (R-2), High-Density Apartment
District (A-2), Local Retail District (C-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), generally
located north of 130th Street (proposed Loop 88) and west of Frankford Avenue, on 99.4 acres of land
out of Block AK, Section 20.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 8-0-1.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 3126-D 
Staff Report - 3126-D 
Documentation - 3126-D 



















Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3126-D 
City Council Meeting  November 16, 2022 

 

Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 
 

Property Owner SWLLD, LLC & FADEV, LLC 
 

Council District 5 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of this request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 04, 2008, Ordinance No. 2008-O0104: The subject property was annexed into city limits and 
zoned Transition District (T). 

 August 13, 2009, Zone Case 3126, Ordinance No. 2009-O0070: Portions of the subject property were 
rezoned from T to High Density Apartment District (A-2), Garden Office District (GO) and General Retail 
District (C-3). 

 November 8, 2012, Zone case 3126-A, Ordinance No. 2012-O0123:  A portion of the subject property was 
rezoned from (GO) to Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI). 

 March 10, 2016, Zone Case 3126-C, Ordinance No. 2016-O0034: The southwestern portion of the subject 

property was rezoned from (T) and (A-2) to General Retail District (C-3). 

 November 3, 2022, Zone Case 3126-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from Transition District (T), Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI), General Retail 

District (C-3), and High-Density Apartment (A-2) to Two-Family District (R-2), High-Density Apartment 

District (A-2), Local Retail District (C-2), and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) by a vote of
8-0-1. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 15 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The property consists of 99.4 acres of unplatted, vacant land out of Block AK, Section 20. It is in the process of 
being platted as Pirate’s Cove Addition Lots 1-90, and Tracts A-R. 

 
Adjacent Property Development 

This property is surrounded by baseball fields and vacant land zoned Transition (T) to the west; to the north is 

vacant land and a single family resident zoned Transition (T); to the east is commercial property and vacant 

land zoned Transition (T) and General Retail District (C-3); and to the south is commercial and residential 

property zoned Transition (T) and General Retail District (C-3) and the current city limits. 

 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located north of 130th Street (proposed Loop 88) and west of Frankford 

Avenue, on 99.4 acres of land out of Block AK, Section 20. The applicant is requesting a zone change from 

Transition District (T), Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI), General Retail District (C-3) and High-Density 

Apartment District (A-2) to Two-Family District (R-2), High-Density Apartment District (A-2), Local Retail District 

(C-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC). 

 
Current zoning: Transition District (T), Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) General 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Retail District (C-3), and High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

 
Requested zoning: Two-Family District (R-2), High-Density Apartment District (A-2), Local Retail 

District (C-2), and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

 
Intent Statements 

The intent of the current T zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 

until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

 

The intent of the current IHI zoning is”… to provide for planned, quality industrial development within the 

interstate corridor so that persons entering the city along the corridor have a good first impression, and to 

maintain a quality appearance which will stabilize or increase real property values.” 

 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “… to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 

adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 

 
The intent of the current and proposed A-2 zoning is “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and 

compatible land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants 

with safe and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent 

land uses. When proposed development in this district is adjacent to “RR,” “R-1,” “R-1A,” or “R-2” zoned 

property, the proposed development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent 

development. Architectural design, landscaping, screening and parking areas shall be properly provided to ensure 

maximum protection of lower-density uses.” 

 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is “… to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 

increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 

accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and 

high-density or non-residential districts.” 

 

The intent of the proposed C-2 zoning is “… to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 

serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing thoroughfares or at the 

intersections of major thoroughfares.” 

 

The intent of the proposed IHC zoning is “… to provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 

which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 

areas.”  

 
   Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The location is between Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial and Iola Avenue, which is 
designated as a Collector and north of 130th Street (proposed Loop 88) which is designated as a Freeway by the 
Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of 
local and regional traffic. Collectors provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial 
areas.  Freeways are intended to move high volumes of automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long 
distances. 

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone changes are compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Residential Low Density uses. Although the proposed zone 

changes to R-2, A-2, C-2, and IHC would not be consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. Due to the planned 

development, IHC is an appropriate use near future Loop 88 and C-2 is an appropriate use along an arterial. Both 

proposed zoning districts provide a buffer for the residential zoning district.   



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located in an appropriate 

location along a Principal Arterial and the IHC zoning allows for a buffer from the future Loop 88.  

 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property may be suitable for the proposed commercial and residential uses, though additional improvements 
may be necessary.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 
G. Application and supporting documentation 

 
 

Staff Contacts 

Gregory Hernandez Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-3147 806-775-3029 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

 
 
 
 

mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3126-D 

 

Allowable Uses:   Two-Family District (R-2), High-Density Apartment District (A-2), Local Retail 

District (C-2), Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has point of access from Frankford Avenue and Iola 

Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 
Minor Arterial,  

Incomplete  

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Iola Avenue, 
Collector Avenue, 

Incomplete 

R.O.W. 30 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, unpaved  

 

R.O.W 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

130th Street (proposed 
Loop 88) 

Freeway, incomplete 

R.O.W 100 feet, two lane, 
Undivided, paved 

R.O.W 300 feet, eight-
lane, divided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5  

 

5.8 Zone Case 3126-D: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for SWLLD, LLC and FADEV, 

LLC 

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T), Interstate Highway Industrial 

District (IHI), General Retail District (C-3) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to 

Two-Family District (R-2), High-Density Apartment District (A-2), Local Retail District 

(C-2) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) at: 

 Generally located north of 130th Street (proposed Loop 88) and west of 

Frankford Avenue, on 99.4 acres of land out of Block AK, Section 20.  

 

PLANNER GREG HERNANDEZ stated there were fifteen (15) notifications sent out with zero (0) 

returned. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and discussed the surrounding 

properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

https://ecode360.com/38876311#38876311
https://ecode360.com/38876436#38876436
https://ecode360.com/38877004#38877004
https://ecode360.com/38877004#38877004
https://ecode360.com/38878790#38878790


Zone Case 3126-D 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, 1601 Avenue N, provided the proposed zone change map and said 

the northwest corner on the map belongs to Cooper Independent School District. They are developing 

around a school and highway. The proposed IHC will be good for the new Loop 88 Freeway. The proposed 

C-2 is a step-down commercial zoning, with a retail area that will face the south. The northeast area is a 

playa lake so all of the C-2 zoning requested will not be developed. The proposed A-2 area shown in green 

on the map is a good fit because of the streets to the north, east and west of the area. For the A-2 and R-2 

areas, they plan to build townhomes and duplexes, which will have less impact on the school.  

 

Opposed: MIKE HAGGARD, 12112 Frankford Avenue, said he is not really opposed, but has questions. 

MR. HAGGARD expressed concerns over the playa lake and any elevation changes that might cause 

water runoff onto neighboring properties. 

 

MR. HOLEMAN answered, there are strict regulations regarding playa lakes, they have to account for 

playa lake volumes.  

 

MR. HAGGARD asked if there would be fencing separating his property from the proposed homes.   

 

MR. HOLEMAN said they are not requesting any zoning that would require a fence and they are not 

planning any type of barrier. The townhomes will be entered from the alley to avoid congestion in the 

front. 

 

MR. HAGGARD said he was opposed to his property facing an alley. 

 

GARY YOUNG, 5909 119th Street, said he was not opposed or in favor but wanted to add any type of 

buffer or fence would be great. 

 

No one else spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 3126-D, a motion was made by SUSAN TOMLINSON and seconded by 

JORDAN WHEATLEY to approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in 

opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

TANNER NOBLE recused from hearing Case 3126-D 
 











3126-D 
 
 

 

      View of subject property to the west.                       View to the east. 
  
 

 

 

View to the south.    View to the north. 









 AI# 11140 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 28. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Consider Ordinnance No. 2022-O0167, for Zone
Case 1875-Y, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for H&M Investments & Rentals LLC, for a zone
change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 6606 26th Street,
located north of 26th Street and west of Norwich Avenue, Commanders Addition, the south 440 feet of
the east 400 feet of Lot 2.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 1875-Y 
Staff Report - 1875-Y 
Documentation - 1875-Y 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 
Staff Report  Zone Case 1875-Y 
City Council Meeting November 16, 2022 

 
Applicant H&M Investments & Rentals LLC 
 
Property Owner  Austin Martin 
 
Council District   6 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends approval of this request. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 14, 1972, Ordinance No. 6517: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 
Single Family District (R-1). 

• June 14, 1973, Zone Case 1875, Ordinance No. 6656-1973: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to 
R-1 Specific Use for a Mobile Home park. 

• March 11, 1982, Zone Case 1875-H, Ordinance No. 8297-1982: The subject property was rezoned from R-
1 Specific Use to High Density Apartment District (A-2). 

• November 3, 2022, Zone Case 1875-Y: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for 
zone change from High Density Apartment District (A-2) to Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of 9-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 20 
• Received In Favor: 2 
• Received In Opposition: 1 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property consists of 4.04 acres of land out of the southern portion of Commanders Addition, Lot 2, 
which was originally platted on August 8, 1973. Oakwood Baptist Church currently occupies the property.  
 
Adjacent Property Development  
This property is surrounded by a mobile home park, zoned R-1 Specific Use for a Mobile Home Park, to the north 
and west, single family residences zoned Single Family District (R-1) and Two Family District (R-2) to the east 
and northeast, and apartments zoned High density Apartment District (A-2) and Apartment medical District (AM) 
to the south.    
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 6606 26th Street, north of 26th Street and west of Norwich Avenue. The 
applicant is requesting a zone change to Two-Family District (R-2). 

Current zoning:  High- Density Apartment District (A-2) 
 
Requested zoning:  Two Family District (R-2) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current A-2 zoning “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible land 
uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe and 
convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land uses.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The intent of the proposed (R-2) zoning”…promote stable, quality residential development of slightly increased 
densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in accordance 
with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and high-density 
or non-residential districts.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The property is located north of 26th Street, which is designated as a Collector Street and west of Norwich Avenue 
which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Collector Streets are designed for 
medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds (i.e., 30-35 mph). Local Streets provide access to smaller, 
destination-oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. It is appropriate adjacent to other residential uses. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map  
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Residental High Density uses. The requested zone 
change is consistent with this designation and is appropriate in this location, adjacent to other commercial uses.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and the location is appropriate for R-2.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not require additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of this use.  
 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and Supporting Documentation 
I. Notification Responses 

 
 
Staff Contacts 
Cassie Bermea    Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-3029 
cassiebermea@mylubbock.us     vescamilla@mylubbock.us  
  
 

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1875-Y 

 

Allowable Uses:   Two-Family District (R-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 26th Street. 

 

 

 

 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

           District 6 
 

5.9 Zone Case 1875-Y: AMD Engineering, LLC for H&M Investments & Rentals LLC 

Request for a zone change from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to Two-Family 

District (R-2) at: 

 6606 26th Street, located north of 26th Street and west of Norwich Avenue, 

Commanders Addition, the south 440 feet of the east 400 feet of Lot 2. 

 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA stated there were twenty (20) notifications sent out with two (2) returned 

in favor and one (1) in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures, maps, and 

discussed the surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, 6515 68th Street, representing AMD Engineering said it is a simple 

down zoning and they plan to build townhomes. 

 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 1875-Y, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by 

BRANDON HARDAWAY to approve the request and the Commission members voted 9 (in favor) to 0 

(in opposition) to approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

Thoroughfare 
 

Existing Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

26th Street 
Collector (Partial) 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, four-
lane, undivided, paved 

https://ecode360.com/38876303












20217
Image

20217
Text Box
1875-Y





 

AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

 
 

A 4.04 ACRE TRACT IN 

SECTION 43, BLOCK AK, 

E.L. & R.R. RR. CO. SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 184, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 
 

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2) 
 

 

A 4.04 acre tract of land located in the northeast quarter (NE/4) of Section 43, Block AK, 

E.L & R.R. RR. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 184, Lubbock County, Texas, and being that 

same tract of land described in a Warranty Deed recorded in County Clerk’s File Number 

2022-1674 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, said 4.04 acre tract 

of land being further described by metes and bounds as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a 3/8” iron rod found in the north right-of-way line of 26th Street 

recorded in Volume 1355, Page 618 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, 

Texas, same being the southwest plat limit of Ridgewood II Lots 1 through 126, an 

addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, a replat of Lot 7, Commanders 

Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas recorded in Volume 1629, Page 

736 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas, same being the southeast 

corner of this tract, having coordinates of Northing: 7,271,711.68 and Easting: 

915,003.78 of the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone, 

whence the northeast corner of Section 43, Block AK bears N. 00°02’00” W. a distance 

of 2610.80 feet and S. 89°59’00” E. a distance of 686.84 feet, and said section corner 

having calculated coordinates of Northing: 7,274,321.52 and Easting: 915689.45, of the 

Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone;  

  

THENCE N. 88° 08' 56" W., along the north right-of-way line of said 26th Street, a 

distance of 400.00 feet to a 3” metal post found, which the center bears north 0.10 feet, 

and west 0.20 feet from the southern southeast corner of Commanders Addition, Lot 2 

recorded in Volume 1355, Page 618 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, 

Texas, same being the southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE N. 01° 49' 34" E., along the westerly east line of said Commanders Addition, 

Lot 2 a distance of 440.00 feet to a 3” metal post found, which the center bears south 0.33 

feet, and west 0.76 feet from an ell corner of said Commanders Addition Lot 2 same 

being the northwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 88° 08' 56" E., along the northerly south line of said Commanders Addition, 

Lot 2 a distance of 400.00 feet to a 3” metal post found in the west line of said 

Ridgewood II, which the center bears north 0.07 feet, and east 0.18 feet from the easterly 



 

southeast corner of said Commanders Addition Lot 2 same being the northeast corner of 

this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 01° 49' 34" W., along the west line of said Ridgewood II, at a distance of 

300.46 feet pass a 1/2" iron pipe found for the northwest corner of Lot 126, continuing 

for a total distance of 440.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Bearings are relative 

to the Texas Coordinate System of 1983 (2011), Texas North Central Zone and are 

calculated from a point of origin at Northing: 7,271,625.408 and Easting: 914,826.400, 

with a convergence angle of -01°53’13.31” to True North, and a combined scale factor of 

0.99976065. Distances are at surface in U.S. Survey Feet. 

 

This description was prepared for purposes of a zoning request and does not represent a 

survey made upon the ground.  

 

Prepared for:  H&M INVESTMENTS & RENTALS LLC 

            October 3, 2022 



116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

126 125 7

8

21

22

26TH STREET
N

O
RW

IC
H

COMMANDERS ADDITION

LOT 2

(VOL. 1355 PG. 618 )

RIDGEWOOD II

LOTS 1-126

(VOL.  1629 PG. 736)

30' R-O-W (VOL. 1355, PG. 618)
SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF

 SEC 43, BLK AK
30' R-O-W (CCFN: 2011022781)

4.04 ACRE TRACT

CCFN: 2022001674

COMMANDERS ADDITION

LOT 2

(VOL. 1355 PG. 618 )

AV
EN

U
E

POINT OF
BEGINNING
N:7,271,711.68
E:915,003.78

N:7272164.24
E:914618.08

A
LL

EY

ZONE CHANGE
APPLICATION EXHIBIT

A 4.04 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN
THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 1/4) OF SECTION 43, BLOCK AK,

E.L. & R.R. RR CO., ABSTRACT 184
LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

(PARENT TRACT RECORDED IN VOLUME 1355, PAGE 618
OF THE  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS)

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SITE
LOCATION

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

100'0 75'
SCALE:  1"=100'

300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°08'56"W. 400.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.01°49'34"E. 440.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.88°08'56"E. 400.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.01°49'34"W. 440.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 43, BLOCK AK, IS CALLED TO BEAR N. 00° 02' 00" W. 2610.80',AND S. 89° 59'00" E. 686.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slaton          Hwy.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis   Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop       289

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broadway

AutoCAD SHX Text
114th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Highway 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Hwy. 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
34th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Upland  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frankford           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slide         Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Indiana           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
University      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis Hwy.   US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brownfield Hwy.   US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erskine           Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
University    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wood   Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Guava        Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Municipal      Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th    Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
130th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
146th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Alcove  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING REQUEST TO R-2 FROM A-2 









 AI# 11174 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointment - City Secretary: Consider the appointment of the Chairperson of the Central
Business District Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, for the 2023
calendar year, with the term ending on December 31, 2023.

Item Summary
Per Section 311.009 (f) of the Tax Increment Financing Act, the governing body of the municipality that
created the TIF shall appoint one member of the board to serve as chairman for a term of one year
beginning January 1 of the following year. Dan Williams is the current chairperson of the Central
Business District TIF Board of Directors and has served as chair since 2021.

Per the City Council Policy and Procedure for Boards, Commissions and Committees: “The Chair and
Vice-Chair shall not serve more than two (2) consecutive one-year terms. The Council shall reserve the
right, as deemed necessary in individual instances, to allow more than two (2) consecutive one-year
terms.”

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 11175 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointment - City Secretary: Consider the appointment of the Chairperson of the Lubbock
Business Park Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, for the 2023
calendar year, with the term ending on December 31, 2023.

Item Summary
Per Section 311.009(f) of the Tax Increment Financing Act, the governing body of the municipality that
created the TIF, shall appoint one member of the board to serve as chairman for a term of one year
beginning January 1 of the following year. Sandy Henry is the current chairperson of the Lubbock
Business Park TIF Board of Directors and has served as chair since 2010.

Per the City Council Policy and Procedure for Boards, Commissions and Committees: “The Chair and
Vice-Chair shall not serve more than two (2) consecutive one-year terms. The Council shall reserve the
right, as deemed necessary in individual instances, to allow more than two (2) consecutive one-year
terms.”

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 11176 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointment - City Secretary: Consider the appointment of the Chairperson of the North
Overton Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone (TIF) Board of Directors, for the 2023 calendar
year, with the term ending on December 31, 2023.

Item Summary
Per Section 311.009(f) of the Tax Increment Financing Act, the governing body of the municipality that
created the TIF, shall appoint one member of the board to serve as chairman for a term of one year
beginning January 1 of the following year. Jeff Dane is the current chairperson of the North Overton TIF
Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors and has served as chair since 2018.

Per the City Council Policy and Procedure for Boards, Commissions and Committees: “The Chair and
Vice-Chair shall not serve more than two (2) consecutive one-year terms. The Council shall reserve the
right, as deemed necessary in individual instances, to allow more than two (2) consecutive one-year
terms.”

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 11156 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning (District 4): Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance for a request
for annexation, from Red Canyon Development, LLC, to annex an area of approximately 17.33 acres,
adjacent to the southern city limits of the City of Lubbock, north of Woodrow Road and west of Quaker
Avenue.

Item Summary
On November 1, 2022, the City Council approved a resolution adopting the Municipal Service Plan,
which was agreed upon by the City of Lubbock and the property owners.

The next step in the voluntary annexation process is to hold a public hearing. Following the public
hearing, the City Council may consider an ordinance annexing approximately 17.33 acres, adjacent to
the southern city limits of the City of Lubbock, north of Woodrow Road and west of Quaker Avenue.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Annexation Ordinance - Woodrow & Quaker 
Annexation Map - Woodrow & Quaker 
Annexation Agreement - Woodrow & Quaker 
Annexation Documents - Woodrow & Quaker 
Metes and Bounds - Woodrow & Quaker 









As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

CITY LIMITS (IN)

0 200 400 600 800 1000
Feet

±
Proposed Annexation Area (17.33 Ac) Located in

Section 6, Block AK, Lubbock County

CR
 20

00

Proposed Annexation Area
in AK-6 (17.33 Ac)

AK-6

CITY LIMITS (OUT)

CITY OF 
LUBBOCK

E-2
2

AK-3

Digital Orthophotography - May 2021

COOPER WEST

HIGH SCHOOL

WOODROW RD

20-
128

WOODROW

SUBSTATION QU
AK

ER
 A

VE





























































































































Form 205
18741912v.1

1

Form 205—General Information
(Certificate of Formation—Limited Liability Company)

The attached form is designed to meet minimal statutory filing requirements pursuant to the relevant 
code provisions. This form and the information provided are not substitutes for the advice and services of an 
attorney and tax specialist.

Commentary

The limited liability company (hereinafter LLC) is neither a corporation nor a partnership; rather, it is a 
distinct type of entity.  An LLC is governed by title 3, chapter 101 of the Texas Business Organizations 
Code (BOC).  Title 1, chapter 3, subchapter A of the BOC governs the formation of an LLC and sets 
forth the provisions required or permitted to be contained in the certificate of formation.

The owners of an LLC are called “members.”  An LLC may have one or more members.  Members may 
be individuals, partnerships, corporations, and any other type of legal entity.

Taxes: LLCs are subject to a state franchise tax.  Contact the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, Tax 
Assistance Section, Austin, Texas, 78774-0100, (512) 463-4600 or (800) 252-1381 for franchise tax 
information.  For information relating to federal employer identification numbers, federal income tax 
filing requirements, tax publications, and forms call (800) 829-3676 or visit the Internal Revenue 
Service web site at www.irs.gov.

Instructions for Form

 Article 1—Entity Name and Type:  Provide a company name and organizational designation.  
Under section 5.053 of the BOC, if the name chosen is the same as, deceptively similar to, or similar 
to the name of any existing domestic or foreign filing entity, or any name reservation or registration 
filed with the secretary of state, the document cannot be filed.  The administrative rules adopted for 
determining entity name availability (Texas Administrative Code, title 1, part 4, chapter 79, 
subchapter C) may be viewed at www.sos.state.tx.us/tac/index.shtml.  If you wish the secretary of 
state to provide a preliminary determination on name availability, you may call (512) 463-5555, dial 
7-1-1 for relay services, or e-mail your name inquiry to corpinfo@sos.state.tx.us.  A final 
determination cannot be made until the document is received and processed by the secretary of state.  
Do not make financial expenditures or execute documents based on a preliminary clearance.  Also 
note that the preclearance of a name or the issuance of a certificate of formation under a name does 
not authorize the use of a name in violation of another person’s rights to the name.

 Article 2—Registered Agent and Registered Office:  The registered agent can be either (option A) 
a domestic entity or a foreign entity that is registered to do business in Texas or (option B) an 
individual resident of the state.  The limited liability company cannot act as its own registered agent; 
do not enter the limited liability company name as the name of the registered agent.

Consent:  Effective January 1, 2010, a person designated as the registered agent of an entity must 
have consented, either in a written or electronic form, to serve as the registered agent of the entity.  
Although consent is required, a copy of the person’s written or electronic consent need not be 
submitted with the certificate of formation.  The liabilities and penalties imposed by sections 4.007 
and 4.008 of the BOC apply with respect to a false statement in a filing instrument that names a 
person as the registered agent of an entity without that person’s consent. (BOC § 5.207)



Form 205
18741912v.1

2

Office Address Requirements:  The registered office address must be located at a street address 
where service of process may be personally served on the entity’s registered agent during normal 
business hours.  Although the registered office is not required to be the entity’s principal place of 
business, the registered office may not be solely a mailbox service or telephone answering service 
(BOC § 5.201).

 Article 3—Governing Authority:  The certificate of formation must state whether the LLC will or 
will not have managers.  If the LLC will have managers, select option A and provide the name and 
address of each initial manager in the space provided.  If the LLC will not have managers, select 
option B and provide the name and address of each initial member of the LLC in the space provided.  
A minimum of one person is required.

If the governing person is an individual, set forth the name of the individual in the format specified.  
Do not use prefixes (e.g., Mr., Mrs., Ms.).  Use the suffix box only for titles of lineage (e.g., Jr., Sr., 
III) and not for other suffixes or titles (e.g., M.D., Ph.D.).  If the governing person is an organization, 
set forth the legal name of the organization.  For each governing person, only one name should be 
entered.  Do not include both the name of an individual and the name of an organization.  An address 
is always required for each governing person.

Please note that a document on file with the secretary of state is a public record that is subject to public 
access and disclosure.  When providing address information for a manager or member, use a business or 
post office box address rather than a residence address if privacy concerns are an issue. 

 Article 4—Purpose:  An LLC may be formed for any lawful purpose or purposes not expressly 
prohibited under chapter 2 of title 1 or title 3 of the BOC.  This form provides for the creation of an 
LLC with a general purpose.  Please note that while the BOC allows a general purpose, other laws, 
including the Internal Revenue Code, may require that the certificate of formation include more 
specific purposes or language as a basis for granting a license or tax-exempt or tax-deductible status.  
The additional space provided in the “Supplemental Provisions/Information” section may be used to 
set forth a more specific purpose or purposes.

This form cannot be used to engage in a licensed activity when such license cannot be issued to the 
LLC.  To form a professional limited liability to provide a professional service use Form 206.

 Supplemental Provisions/Information:  Additional space has been provided for additional text to 
an article within this form or to provide for additional articles to contain optional provisions.

Duration:  Pursuant to section 3.003 of the BOC, a Texas LLC exists perpetually unless provided 
otherwise in the certificate of formation.  If formation of an LLC with a stated period of duration is 
desired, use the “Supplemental Provisions/Information” section of this form to provide for a limited 
duration.

 Organizer:  Only one organizer is required for the formation of an LLC.  An organizer may be any 
person having the capacity to contract for the person or for another; that is, a natural person 18 years 
of age or older, or a corporation or other legal entity.  There are no residency requirements for an 
organizer.

 Effectiveness of Filing:  A certificate of formation becomes effective when filed by the secretary of 
state (option A).  However, pursuant to sections 4.052 and 4.053 of the BOC the effectiveness of the 
instrument may be delayed to a date not more than ninety (90) days from the date the instrument is 



Form 205
18741912v.1

3

signed (option B).  The effectiveness of the instrument also may be delayed on the occurrence of a 
future event or fact, other than the passage of time (option C).  If option C is selected, you must state 
the manner in which the event or fact will cause the instrument to take effect and the date of the 90th 
day after the date the instrument is signed. In order for the certificate to take effect under option C, 
the entity must, within ninety (90) days of the filing of the certificate, file a statement with the 
secretary of state regarding the event or fact pursuant to section 4.055 of the BOC.

On the filing of a document with a delayed effective date or condition, the computer records of the 
secretary of state will be changed to show the filing of the document, the date of the filing, and the 
future date on which the document will be effective or evidence that the effectiveness was 
conditioned on the occurrence of a future event or fact.  In addition, at the time of such filing, the 
status of the entity will be shown as “in existence” on the records of the secretary of state. 

 Execution: The organizer must sign the certificate of formation, but it does not need to be notarized.  
However, before signing, please read the statements on this form carefully.  The designation or 
appointment of a person as registered agent by an organizer is an affirmation that the person named 
in the certificate of formation has consented to serve in that capacity.  (BOC § 5.2011, effective 
January 1, 2010) 

A person commits an offense under section 4.008 of the BOC if the person signs or directs the filing 
of a filing instrument the person knows is materially false with the intent that the instrument be 
delivered to the secretary of state for filing.  The offense is a Class A misdemeanor unless the 
person’s intent is to harm or defraud another, in which case the offense is a state jail felony.

 Payment and Delivery Instructions: The filing fee for a certificate of formation for an LLC is 
$300.  Fees may be paid by personal checks, money orders, LegalEase debit cards, or American 
Express, Discover, MasterCard, and Visa credit cards.  Checks or money orders must be payable 
through a U.S. bank or financial institution and made payable to the secretary of state.  Fees paid by 
credit card are subject to a statutorily authorized convenience fee of 2.7 percent of the total fees.

Submit the completed form in duplicate along with the filing fee.  The form may be mailed to P.O. 
Box 13697, Austin, Texas 78711-3697; faxed to (512) 463-5709; or delivered to the James Earl 
Rudder Office Building, 1019 Brazos, Austin, Texas 78701.  If a document is transmitted by fax, 
credit card information must accompany the transmission (Form 807).  On filing the document, the 
secretary of state will return the appropriate evidence of filing to the submitter together with a file- 
stamped copy of the document, if a duplicate copy was provided as instructed.

 FYI: An LLC is required to maintain a registered agent and a registered office address in Texas.  If 
the registered agent or registered office address changes, it is important to file a statement with the 
secretary of state to effect a change to the certificate of formation.  Failure to maintain a registered 
agent and registered office may result in the involuntary termination of the LLC.  

Revised 05/11



Form 205
18741912v.1

4

Form 205
(Revised 05/11) 

Submit in duplicate to:
Secretary of State
P.O. Box 13697
Austin, TX 78711-3697
512 463-5555
FAX: 512 463-5709
Filing Fee:  $300

Certificate of Formation
Limited Liability Company

This space reserved for office use.

Article 1 – Entity Name and Type

The filing entity being formed is a limited liability company.  The name of the entity is:

RED CANYON DEVELOPMENT, LLC
The name must contain the words “limited liability company,” “limited company,” or an abbreviation of one of these phrases.  

Article 2 – Registered Agent and Registered Office
(See instructions. Select and complete either A or B and complete C.)

  A.  The initial registered agent is an organization (cannot be entity named above) by the name of:

     
OR

  B.  The initial registered agent is an individual resident of the state whose name is set forth below:

Thomas K. Payne    
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix

C.  The business address of the registered agent and the registered office address is:

12402 Slide Road, Suite 201 Lubbock TX 79424
Street Address City State Zip Code

Article 3—Governing Authority
(Select and complete either A or B and provide the name and address of each governing person.)

  A.  The limited liability company will have managers. The name and address of each initial 
manager are set forth below.

  B.  The limited liability company will not have managers.  The company will be governed by its 
members, and the name and address of each initial member are set forth below.

GOVERNING PERSON 1
NAME (Enter the name of either an individual or an organization, but not both.)

IF INDIVIDUAL

Thomas K. Payne    
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix
OR
IF ORGANIZATION

     
Organization Name

ADDRESS

12402 Slide Road, Suite 201 Lubbock TX USA 79424
Street or Mailing Address City State Country Zip Code



Form 205
18741912v.1

5

GOVERNING PERSON 2
NAME (Enter the name of either an individual or an organization, but not both.)

IF INDIVIDUAL

            
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix
OR
IF ORGANIZATION

     
Organization Name

ADDRESS

                      
Street or Mailing Address City State Country Zip Code

GOVERNING PERSON 3
NAME (Enter the name of either an individual or an organization, but not both.)

IF INDIVIDUAL

                
First Name M.I. Last Name Suffix
OR
IF ORGANIZATION

     
Organization Name

ADDRESS

                      
Street or Mailing Address City State Country Zip Code

Article 4 – Purpose

The purpose for which the company is formed is for the transaction of any and all lawful purposes for 
which a limited liability company may be organized under the Texas Business Organizations Code.

Supplemental Provisions/Information

Text Area: [The attached addendum, if any, is incorporated herein by reference.]
     



Form 205
18741912v.1

6

Organizer

The name and address of the organizer:

John Waesch
Name

2323 Ross Avenue, Suite 600 Dallas TX 75201
Street or Mailing Address City State Zip Code

Effectiveness of Filing (Select either A, B, or C.)

A.  This document becomes effective when the document is filed by the secretary of state.
B.  This document becomes effective at a later date, which is not more than ninety (90) days from
the date of signing.  The delayed effective date is:      
C.  This document takes effect upon the occurrence of the future event or fact, other than the 
passage of time.  The 90th day after the date of signing is:      
The following event or fact will cause the document to take effect in the manner described below:

     

Execution

The undersigned affirms that the person designated as registered agent has consented to the 
appointment.  The undersigned signs this document subject to the penalties imposed by law for the 
submission of a materially false or fraudulent instrument and certifies under penalty of perjury that the 
undersigned is authorized to execute the filing instrument.

Date: 7/20/2017

Signature of organizer

John Waesch
Printed or typed name of organizer















 

 
This document was prepared under 22 TAC §138.95, does not reflect the results of an on the ground survey, and is not to be used 
to convey or establish interests in real property except those rights and interests implied or established by the creation or 
reconfiguration of the boundary of the political subdivision for which it was prepared. 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 17.33 acre tract of land located in Section 6, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, 

being further described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a point which bears N. 88°12'57" W. a distance of 105.08 feet and N. 01°47’03” E. a distance of 65.00 feet from 

the Southeast corner of Section 6, Block AK, being the most Southerly Southeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE N. 88°12'57" W., along a line 65 feet North of and parallel to the South line of said Section 6, a distance of 796.09 feet to 

a point for the Southwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE N. 01°47'03" E., at 290.00 feet pass a point in the Southern boundary of Tract A, Cooper West High School, an addition 

to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded under County 

Clerk File Number (CCFN) 2021044896, Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas (OPRLCT), said point also being the 

Southern boundary of the current Lubbock city limits, continuing along the Southern boundary of said Tract A and the Southern 

boundary of the current city limits, for a total distance of 838.17 feet to a point for the Northwest corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 88°38'26" E., continuing along the Southern boundary of said Tract A and the Southern boundary of said current city 

limits, at 500.01 feet pass a corner of said Tract A and the Southwest corner of Tract "A" Woodrow Substation, an addition to the 

City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, according to the map, plat and/or dedication deed thereof recorded under CCFN 

2021006622, OPRLCT, continuing for a total distance of 799.99 feet to a point; 

 

THENCE S. 88°16'26" E., along the Southern boundary of said Tract "A", a distance of 100.03 feet to a point in the East line of 

said Section 6, said point being the Southeast corner of said Tract “A” and the Northeast corner of this tract; 

 

THENCE S. 01°42'34" W., along the East line of said Section 6, a distance of 814.20 feet to a point for the most Easterly 

Southeast corner of this tract, whence the Southeast corner of said Section 6 bears S. 01°42’34” W. a distance of 95.00 feet; 

 

THENCE N. 88°12’57" W., along a line 95 feet North of and parallel to the South line of said Section 6, a distance of 75.00 feet to 

a point; 

 

THENCE S. 46°44'49" W. a distance of 42.40 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 
Contains: 17.33 acres 
Bearings relative to North, Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North-Central Zone, (2011, epoch 2010.0). 
 

June 6, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

Robert A. Christopher 

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 5167 

Licensed State Land Surveyor 

State of Texas 



 AI# 11131 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Consider Ordinance No. 2022-O0168, for Zone Case
0417-A, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Gary Randall Andrews, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District (GO), generally located north of 23rd Street and
west of Slide Road, on 2.02 acres of land from Sisco Addition, Lot 1-A.

Item Summary
On November 16, 2022, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on November 3, 2022, and recommended approval of the request by an
8-1-0 vote.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - 417-A 
Staff Report - 417-A 
Documentation - 417-A 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 417-A 
City Council Meeting November 16, 2022 

Applicant AMD Engineering LLC 

Property Owner  Gary Randall Andrews 

Council District  3 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 19, 1952, Ordinance No. 1304: The subject property was annexed into the City of Lubbock.
• April 23, 1953, Zone Case 417, Ordinance No. 1365: The subject property was zoned Single-Family District

(A).
• November 3. 2022, Zone Case 417-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval for a

zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District (GO) by a vote of 8-1-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 32
• Received In Favor: 17 (14 from outside the notification boundary)
• Received In Opposition: 43 (31 from outside notification boundary)

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was platted on June 6, 1975 as Sisco Addition, Lot 1, and then re-platted on September 2, 
1997 as Sisco Addition, Lot 1-A. There is a house and secondary buildings, built in 1990. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The surrounding properties are zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for 
Townhomes. There are single-family homes on all sides and townhomes to the south.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2202 Slide Road, generally located north of 23rd Street and west of Slide 
Road. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District (GO). 

Current zoning: Single-Family District (R-1) 

Requested zoning: Garden Office District (GO) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-1 zoning is “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family residential 
units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious and harmful 
land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

The intent of the proposed Garden Office zoning is “…to provide for quality garden office development through 
proper planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure 
the compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 
commercial uses.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along 23rd Street and Slide Road. 23rd Street is a Local Street and Slide Road is designated as a 
Principal Arterial. Local Streets typically provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as 
neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts. Arterials are major thoroughfares designed to carry large 
quantities of traffic at relatively high speeds. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and would not change the character of the 
existing development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Low-Density Residential” land uses. This request does not 
conform to this designation, though the requested zoning is appropriate next to residential land uses as a buffer 
district and is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles. Therefore this request is in moderate 
conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along a 
thoroughfare and is compatible next to residential land uses. 
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed office uses, though additional improvements such as parking may be 
necessary. 
 
Attachments 

A.  Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  
C. Notification Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H.  Application and supporting documentation 
I. Notification Responses 
 

 
Staff Contacts 
Shane Spencer     Victor Escamilla 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2103    806-775-3029 
sspencer@mylubbock.us  vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 417-A 

 

Allowable Uses: Garden Office District (GO) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Slide Road and 23rd Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Slide Road, Minor 
Arterial, Completed 

R.O.W. 66 feet, 5 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 66 feet, 5 lanes, 
undivided, paved 

23rd Street, Local 
Street, Completed 

R.O.W. 32 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 32 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 3  
 

  5.3 Zone Case 0417-A: AMD Engineering, LLC for Gary Randall Andrews 

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District 

(GO): 

 Generally located north of 23rd Street and west of Slide Road, on 2.02 acres of 

land from Sisco Addition, Lot 1-A. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were thirty-two (32) notifications sent out with seventeen 

(17) returned in favor, in which fourteen (14) were outside of the notification boundary and. Twenty-seven 

(27) were returned in opposition, plus an additional nine (9) or ten (10) which were turned in right before 

the start of the meeting, with twenty-three (23) confirmed to be outside of the notification boundary. The 

ones handed in right before the meeting had not been checked. Staff shared the location of the property 

including pictures, maps, and discussed the surrounding properties. Staff recommends approval of the 

request. 

 

APPLICANT GARY ANDREWS, 4701 21st Street, said the property has been his family’s home since 

1997. They have been part of the neighborhood since then and their intent is to be part of it for the next 

twenty-five years. His mother had an accident, which caused them to look at other options for the 8 acres 

of property. They were advised it would be better to divide the lots into multiple residential lots, but they 

prefer to keep the property as a whole. Garden Office zoning seemed to be the most compatible way to 

make the land function for them and to preserve the neighborhood. When they originally submitted the 

request, they included all 8 acres. When the opposition letters started coming in and they realized they 

could rezone a smaller section they withdrew the request and started addressing neighbor’s concerns. They 

plan to leave over four acres zoned residential. MR. ANDREWS said they have horses that are 

https://ecode360.com/38876638


Zone Case 417-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 3 
 

grandfathered in and do not plan to change that aspect of the land, which was a major neighborhood 

concern. It is a unique tract of land with an eight-foot-tall barrier fence and sits directly across from Slide 

Road, which has a turning lane, so there will not be an increase in congestion to the neighborhood. There 

will not be signage or a large parking lot. The buildings will have small clusters with four to six parking 

spaces in designated areas. There will be fifteen to eighteen people at the offices with less than one to two 

customers per day. It will be extremely restrictive by design, as most business is conducted online. 

 

JAMES BELL asked if they would be using the existing house. MR. ANDREWS said it will be modified, 

but there will be an acre to keep with the house. 

 

CHAIR SAWYER asked if 23rd Street is gated. MR. ANDWERS said yes and it will remain gated. MR. 

ANDWERS said the property has higher barriers than most, and they are requesting to use the family 

home for a business. The home has not been lived in for two years. 

 

TANNER NOBLE asked what would keep anyone in the future from turning all of the property into 

garden office space. MR. ANDREWS said they are taking measures to hamstring the property by leaving 

over six acres within the area zoned residential. 

 

Opposed: JACK STAGNER, 2302 Slide Road #4, representing five people who are in opposition, said 

from his front door he can see the house. He loves the area because it is quiet and pristine and does not 

want a commercial property across from him. MR. STAGNER is concerned the business will be closest 

to 23rd Street and feels that will cause traffic issues. MR. STAGNER said most garden office space is in 

South Lubbock and not completely surrounded by residential property. 

 

Opposed: JIMMY RASER, 5305 21st Street, moved into the area four years ago to be away from 

commercial properties. He spoke to the applicant and thinks he has a good proposal, but he is concerned 

about the future. 

 

Opposed: WILL DODGE, 2406 Slide Road, said Garden Office zoning has a height limit and the home 

is four stories, which exceeds the height limit. 

 

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING KRISTEN SAGER said garden office does have a height limit, but this 

is an existing building that was constructed legally. If there was new construction it would be bound with 

the height limits. 

 

No one else spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

 

Board discussion: 

JAMES BELL said he would not have been in favor the first time it was on the agenda but this time he 

understands what is trying to be done.  

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY said the applicant has boxed himself in, so he is not concerned about the zoning. 

Garden office is a downgrade on traffic and businesses do not operate nights or weekends, plus there is 

already a wall all the way around the property. 

 



Zone Case 417-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 3 
 

CHAIR SAWYER said if the property was divided and used as R-1, the traffic would be worse and he 

feels this is a good use. 

 

JORDAN WHEATLEY said it could be divided into 2,500 square foot lots for townhomes, which would 

be a bigger issue. 

 

ABLE HERNANDEZ said with the secured boundary of R-1 there will be limited traffic.  

 

SUSAN TOMLINSON said if the owner sold the property as a complete parcel, someone might want to 

turn it all into garden office space which could have an impact on traffic. There is no guarantee that it 

would stay R-1.  

 

JAMES BELL said if someone wanted to change the entire parcel to garden office it would have to come 

back before the board to change the rest of the property. 

 

In the matter of Zone Case 0417-A, a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by AVIRAJ 

PATEL to approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. The item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

RENEE CAGE cast the vote in opposition. 

 
 













 417-A 

 

 

View to the north. Subject Property. 

 

  

View to the east.  

 

View to the south.  

 

View to the west.  





AMD ENGINEERING, LLC

DESCRIPTION FOR A ZONING CHANGE REQUEST IN 

SECTION 5, BLOCK E-2, 

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS 

(Sheet 1 of 2, Sketch of tract attached as Sheet 2) 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of a 2.02-acre tract of land located in Section 9, Block 

E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, prepared for Zone Change Purposes only and being further 

described as follows: 

BEGINNING at a point that bears S 88° 06’ 21” E an approximate distance of 65.89 feet to the 

southeast corner of Slide Road Addition Lot 3 (Volume:733, Page:264). 

THENCE N 88° 06’ 21” W an approximate distance of 375.00 feet; 

THENCE N 01° 52’ 40” E an approximate distance of 234.38 feet; 

THENCE S 88° 07’ 20” E an approximate distance of 375.00 feet; 

THENCE S 01° 52’ 40” W an approximate distance of 234.38  feet to the Point of Beginning and 

containing approximately 2.02-acres. 

This description was prepared for purposes of a zoning request and does not represent a 

survey made upon the ground. 

Prepared for:   Randy and Susan Andrews 

October 11, 2022 



100'0 50'
SCALE:  1"=100'

200'

ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION
EXHIBIT

(SHEET 2)

A 2.02 ACRE TRACT OF LAND
LOCATED IN SECTION 5,
BLOCK E-2, LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

100'0 50'
SCALE:  1"=100'

200'

NOT TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABERDEEN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21ST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALBANY AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
23RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
22ND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABERDEEN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21ST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
23RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.  FROM THIS POINT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SLIDE ROAD ADDITION LOT 3 (VOL:733, PG:264) BEARS S88°06'21"E, 65.89'.N: 7272567.82 E: 925888.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTRY PLACE OWNER: COVINGTON FARIES MC REE & CARTHA LIND

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS ESTATES OWNER: COMMERCE, SERVICE CORP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6-A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE GABLES LOTS 6-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT NEILL HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT NEILL HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT NEILL HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS ESTATES OWNER: COMMERCE, SERVICE CORP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDWICK LOTS 1-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-A-1-B

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-A-1-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-A-1-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE GABLES LOTS 8-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEWIS ESTATES OWNER: TIMBERLAKE MATTHEW & LINDZI

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:7272814.37 E:925521.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE ROAD ADDITION LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SISCO ADDITION LOT 1-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE ROAD ADDITION LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE ROAD ADDITION LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED OWNER: RANDALL & SUSAN ANDREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNPLATTED OWNER: RANDALL & SUSAN, ANDREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: RANDALL & SUSAN ANDREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: RANDALL & SUSAN ANDREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
23RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
N1°52'40"E 234.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-	ZONING REQUEST TO GO-GARDEN OFFICE FROM ZONING REQUEST TO GO-GARDEN OFFICE FROM R-1, SINGLE FAMILY DISTRICT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slaton          Hwy.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis   Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop       289

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broadway

AutoCAD SHX Text
114th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Highway 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Hwy. 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
34th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Upland  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frankford           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slide            Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Indiana           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
University      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis Hwy.   US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brownfield Hwy.        US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erskine           Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
University    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wood   Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Guava        Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Municipal      Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th    Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slaton          Hwy.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis   Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop       289

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broadway

AutoCAD SHX Text
114th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Highway 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Interstate Hwy. 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
34th            Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th        Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Upland  Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Frankford           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Slide            Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Indiana           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
University      Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
Avenue      A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Clovis Hwy.   US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Erskine           Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
University    Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.L. King Blvd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Quaker           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 84

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wood   Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
Guava        Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
50th     Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast

AutoCAD SHX Text
82nd   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
98th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Loop 289

AutoCAD SHX Text
US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
Municipal      Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th   Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th    Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
   Milwaukee           Avenue

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Brownfield Hwy.        US 62-82

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th            Street



0 40'
SCALE:  1"=80'

160'

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING
LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

80'0

 

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

AMD Engineering, LLC
6515 68th Street, Suite 300
Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976
Fax: 806-771-7625

TBPE Reg. # F-9197

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°06'21"W 375.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°52'40"W 234.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°07'20"E 375.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N1°52'40"E 234.38'













MARCIA M. ABBOTT, PH.D.

5238-21st Street

Lubbock, Texas 79407

City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission

P.O. Box 2000

Lubbock, Texas 79457

Dear Board Members,

I am writing to inform you of my strong opposition to the re-zoning case 417-a, a request by
Randy Andrews to change the designation of his property between 21st and 23rd street and Slide
road and Albany from Single Family District (R-1) to Garden Office District (GO).

I have lived at 5238-21st Street for 30 years. I chose this location to build my home because I
wanted to be in a safe, stable neighborhood far away from any commercial property. Now the
neighborhood is filled with families who want the same kind of atmosphere that I do. We feel
safe to walk in the neighborhood, free from the traffic and intrusion that a commercial project
would bring. There are families with small children living on 21st Street who would really be
affected by the congestion..

There is no commercial property in this area at all. Allowing it would devalue the property value
of the existing homes and create more traffic, much like the medical district in our city where
offices and single family homes are next to each other.

Even though Mr. Andrews has revised his original request to include a small buffer zone
between the homes and his project, we know from experience in Lubbock that once commercial
zoning is allowed it would be easy for Mr Andrews to convince the Zoning Commission to let
him build on that property also.

I hope that you Board Members would seriously consider this issue which, if approved, would
change the face of our neighborhood for years to come. Please vote against this re-zoning request.

Sincerely,

Marcia M, Abbott, Ph.D.



























































































 AI# 11180 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider adoption of a Resolution authorizing publication and posting of notices
of intention to issue (i) water and wastewater system revenue bonds in a principal amount not to exceed
$17,500,000 for the purpose of acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging and
equipping property, buildings, structures, facilities and related infrastructure for the City’s Water and
Wastewater System and (ii) combination tax and revenue certificates of obligation in a principal amount
not to exceed $18,750,000 for the purpose of funding improvements to the City’s Solid Waste Disposal
System.

Item Summary
This resolution authorizes Finance to publish a notice of intent in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal to issue
Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds (Revenue Bonds) and Combination Tax and Revenue
Certificates of Obligation (COs).

The Revenue Bonds are being issued for the following purposes:
1. Paying the costs of acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging and
equipping property, buildings, structures, facilities and related infrastructure for the System;
2. Funding capitalized interest on the Bonds;
3. Funding the reserve fund requirement for the Bonds; and
4. Paying the costs of issuing the Bonds (collectively, with items 1-3, the "Project").

Specifically, the Revenue Bonds are designated to fund the North Terminal Storage Reservoir
Improvements, Southeast Lubbock Water System Expansion, West Lubbock Water System Expansion,
and Downtown Sewer Line Replacement projects that approved in the FY 2023 Operating and Capital
Budget.

The Certificates of Obligation (CO) are being issued for the following purposes:
1. Improvements to the City's Solid Waste Disposal System (the "Project"); and
2. Payment of professional services of attorneys, financial advisors, engineers and other professionals in
connection with the Project and the issuance of the Certificates.

Specifically, these COs will fund all activities related to the Solid Waste Transfer Station that is an
approved project in the FY 2023 Operating and Capital Budget.

Fiscal Impact
The total amount of the Project costs financed with Revenue Bonds will not exceed the $17,500,000 total
principal amount. The annual debt service payments for the Revenue Bonds are budgeted through the
annual operating budget process and are included in long-term financial planning and rate models. The
annual payments are made from all or part of the net revenues of the City's Water and Wastewater
System.



The total amount of the Project costs financed will not exceed the $18,750,000 total principal amount of
one or more series of COs. The annual debt service payments for the COs are budgeted through the
annual operating budget process and are included in long-term financial planning and rate models. The
annual payments are made from all or part of the net revenues of the City's Solid Waste fees.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Notice of Intent 



Resolution No. 2022 – R___ 

December 6, 2022 

Item No. ___ 

 

 

 4149-4201-6834.1 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PUBLICATION AND POSTING OF 

NOTICES OF INTENTION TO ISSUE CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS WATER 

AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS AND COMBINATION 

TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock, Texas (the “City”), pursuant to Chapter 1502, Texas 

Government Code, as amended, is authorized to issue its water and wastewater system revenue 

bonds (the “Bonds”) for the purposes set forth in Exhibit A hereto; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has found and determined that a notice of 

intention to issue the Bonds should be published in accordance with the requirements of applicable 

law and the City’s charter; and 

WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government 

Code, as amended, is authorized to issue its certificates of obligation (the “Certificates”) for the 

purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the purposes set forth in Exhibit B 

hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has found and determined that a notice of 

intention to issue the Certificates should be published and posted in accordance with the 

requirements of applicable law;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LUBBOCK, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1. The findings and determinations set forth in the preambles hereto are hereby 

incorporated by reference for all purposes. 

Section 2. The City Secretary of the City is hereby authorized and directed to publish 

a notice of intention to issue the Bonds, in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto (the 

“Bond Notice”) incorporated herein by reference for all purposes. The Bond Notice shall be 

published once a week for a period of thirty (30) days prior to the date set forth in the Bond Notice 

for passage of the ordinance authorizing the Bonds.  Such Bond Notice shall be published in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the area of the City. 

Section 3. The City Secretary of the City is hereby authorized and directed to publish 

and post a notice of intention to issue the Certificates, in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit 

B hereto (the “Certificate Notice”) incorporated herein by reference for all purposes.   

The Certificate Notice shall be published once a week for two consecutive weeks, the date 

of the first publication being not later than the forty-sixth (46th) day before the date set forth in the 

Certificate Notice for passage of the ordinance authorizing issuance of the Certificates.  Such 

Certificate Notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of the City.   



2 

 4149-4201-6834.1 

 

In addition, the Certificate Notice shall be posted continuously on the City’s website for at 

least forty-five (45) days before the date set forth in the Certificate Notice for passage of the 

ordinance authorizing issuance of the Certificates.   

Section 4. For purposes of the Certificate Notice and Section 271.049(e), Texas Local 

Government Code, the City Council hereby designates the public securities identified in the 

attached Exhibit C as self-supporting (collectively, the “Self-Supporting Debt”), the debt service 

on which the City currently pays (and intends to continue paying) from sources other than ad 

valorem tax receipts.  The City expects to continue to pay debt service on the Self-Supporting Debt 

from sources other than ad valorem tax receipts; however, in the event that such other sources are 

not budgeted in amounts sufficient to pay debt service in respect to the Self-Supporting Debt, the 

City may be required to levy and collect ad valorem taxes sufficient to offset any deficiency in the 

amounts provided by such other sources.   

Section 5. The Mayor, the City Manager, the Chief Financial Officer, the City 

Secretary and other officers and agents of the City are hereby authorized and directed to do any 

and all things necessary or desirable to carry out the provisions of this resolution.   

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect from and after the date of its passage. 

 

[Signature Page Follows.]



Resolution No. 2022 – R___ 

December 6, 2022 

Item No. ___ 

 

 

Signature Page for Notice of Intent Resolution 

 4149-4201-6834.1 

 

ADOPTED THIS 6th day of December 2022, by the City Council of the City of Lubbock, 

Texas.   

 

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 

 

 

        

TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

 

       

D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

       

Jerry V. Kyle, Jr., Bond Counsel 

 

 



A-1 

 4149-4201-6834.1 

 

Resolution No. 2022-R____ 

 

Exhibit A 

 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS  

WATER AND WASTEWATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on January 24, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. at a regular meeting 

of the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas, to be held in the City Council Chambers at 

Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, the regular meeting place of the City Council, 

the City Council intends to pass one or more ordinances authorizing the issuance of not to exceed 

$17,500,000 total principal amount of water and wastewater system revenue bonds, in one or more 

series (collectively, the “Bonds”), for the following purposes, to wit: (i) paying the costs of 

acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging and equipping property, 

buildings, structures, facilities and related infrastructure for the Water and Wastewater System, (ii) 

funding capitalized interest for the Bonds, (iii) funding the reserve fund requirement for the Bonds, 

and (iv) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

THIS NOTICE is given in accordance with law and as directed by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock, Texas on December 6, 2022. 



B-1 

 4149-4201-6834.1 

 

Resolution No. 2022-R____ 

Exhibit B 

 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO ISSUE CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS  

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on January 24, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. at a regular meeting 

of the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas, to be held in the City Council Chambers at 

Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, the regular meeting place of the City Council, 

the City Council intends to pass one or more ordinances authorizing the issuance of not to exceed 

$18,750,000 total principal amount of certificates of obligation, in one or more series (collectively, 

the “Certificates”), bearing interest at any rate or rates not to exceed the maximum interest rate 

authorized by law, as shall be determined within the discretion of the City Council at the time of 

issuance of the Certificates, and maturing over a period of not to exceed twenty-one (21) years 

from their date of issuance, for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the 

following purposes, to wit: (i) improvements to the City’s Solid Waste Disposal System (the 

“Project”), and (ii) payment of professional services of attorneys, financial advisors, engineers and 

other professionals in connection with the Project and the issuance of the Certificates.  Said 

Certificates shall be payable from the levy of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax, levied within 

the limits prescribed by law, against all taxable property within the City sufficient to pay the 

interest on said Certificates as due and to provide for the payment of the principal thereof as the 

same matures, as authorized by Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as 

amended, and from all or a part of the surplus net revenues of the City’s Water and Wastewater 

System, such pledge of surplus net revenues being limited to $1,000.  The estimated combined 

principal and interest required to pay the Certificates on time and in full is $26,595,872.  Such 

estimate is provided for illustrative purposes only and is based on an assumed interest rate of 

4.605%. Market conditions affecting interest rates vary based on numerous factors beyond the 

control of the City, and the City cannot provide any assurance regarding the rate of interest that 

the Certificates will bear upon their issuance.  As of the date of this notice, the aggregate principal 

amount of outstanding public securities of the City secured by and payable from ad valorem taxes 

(excluding public securities secured by an ad valorem tax but designated by the City as self-

supporting) is $218,411,812, and based on the City’s expectations, as of the date of this notice, the 

combined principal and interest required to pay all of the outstanding public securities of the City 

secured by and payable from ad valorem taxes (excluding public securities secured by an ad 

valorem tax but designated by the City as self-supporting) on time and in full is $254,848,674.   

THIS NOTICE is given in accordance with law and as directed by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock, Texas on December 6, 2022.   

 



C-1 

 4149-4201-6834.1 

 

Resolution No. 2022-R____ 

Exhibit C 

 

SELF-SUPPORTING DEBT 

Public Securities Designated as Self-Supporting 

 Self-Supporting 

Principal 

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2013        $2,220,000  

General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2013        $2,535,000  

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014       $7,510,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014      $18,440,000  

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015     $58,730,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015      $60,800,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2015      $21,450,000  

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016      $28,235,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016      $19,430,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A      $18,560,000  

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2017      $26,250,000  

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2017A      $14,685,000  

Tax Notes, Series 2017           $881,955  

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2018A        $7,330,000  

Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2018B      $12,590,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2018      $59,360,000  

Tax Notes, Series 2018           $566,388  

Tax and Water and Wastewater System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2019      $18,650,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019        $6,600,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2019A     $26,665,000  

Tax Notes, Series 2019        $2,014,552  

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2020        $6,650,000  

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2020     $14,645,000  

Tax Notes, Series 2020          $337,000  

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2021                      $0  

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2021A                      $0    

Tax Notes, Series 2021       $1,386,293  

Tax Notes, Series 2022                      $0   

Total  $436,521,188 

 



 AI# 11157 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
12/06/2022:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider adoption of a Resolution approving the resolution of the
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc., authorizing the issuance of sales tax revenue bonds in a
principal amount not to exceed $32,500,000 for the purpose of funding projects for the promotion and
development of new and expanded business enterprises, including the acquisition of interests in land and
the design, construction, acquisition, rehabilitation, renovation, expansion, improvement and equipment
of streets, roads, water and sewer utilities, and related infrastructure and improvements; approving a
Sales Tax Remittance Agreement; and resolving other matters related thereto.

Item Summary
This resolution authorizes Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) for the issuance and sale
of the LEDA’s Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (Bonds). The Bonds will have no recourse to the City of
Lubbock and all debt service obligations will be solely secured by LEDA’s voter-authorized 1/8 of
1-cent sales tax.
 
The LEDA Bonds will provide funds to: 

Finance the costs of the purchase of land for the promotion and development of new and expanded
business enterprises, to wit: development, retention, or expansion of projects authorized by Section
501.101 of the Local Government Code that will create or retain primary jobs (the “Land Projects”)

1.

Finance the costs of designing, constructing, acquiring, and improving infrastructure within the
City, including streets and roads, storm sewer, sanitary sewer and water utilities, detention and
drainage improvements, site improvements, and related improvements to promote or develop new
or expanded business enterprises (“Infrastructure Projects”)

2.

Pay costs of issuing the Bonds, in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas,
including the Act, the Texas Nonprofit Corporation Act, and Chapter 22 of the Texas Business
Organizations Code.

3.

Fiscal Impact
The total amount of the Bonds will not exceed the $32,500,000 total principal amount for one or more
series of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. The annual debt service payments will be paid solely from LEDA’s
authorized 1/8 of 1-cent sales tax, and the debt carried by LEDA will have no recourse to or obligation
from the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer 
Lubbock Economic Development Alliance Board of Directors 

Attachments
COL Resolution 



COL Resolution 
LEDA Resolution 



Resolution No. 2022 – R___ 

December 6, 2022 

Item No. ___ 

 

 4159-3318-5090.1 

 

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RESOLUTION OF 

LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, INC. AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE OF SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS; AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS 

RELATED THERETO 

 

WHEREAS, the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. (the “Corporation”) has 

been incorporated and exists and operates as a duly constituted authority and instrumentality of the 

City of Lubbock, Texas (the “City”), created pursuant to Section 4A of Article 5190.6 of the 

Revised Civil Statutes of Texas, as amended, and now operates under Chapters 501-504, Texas 

Local Government Code (the “Act”); 

 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to this City Council a resolution (the “Bond 

Resolution”) of the Board of Directors of the Corporation authorizing the issuance and sale of the 

Corporation’s Sales Tax Revenue Bonds for the public purposes described therein, including 

funding the Projects (as defined within the Bond Resolution); 

 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to this City Council a Sales Tax Remittance 

Agreement, between the Corporation and the City, pursuant to which sales taxes collected by the 

City for the benefit of the Corporation pursuant to the Act shall be transferred and deposited into a 

fund for the use by the Corporation in the furtherance of its authorized powers and purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, this City Council finds and determines that it is necessary and appropriate to 

approve the Bond Resolution and to approve the execution and delivery of said Sales Tax 

Remittance Agreement for the purposes herein provided. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LUBBOCK, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1. The recitals set forth in the preamble hereof are incorporated herein and shall 

have the same force and effect as if set forth in this Section. The Bond Resolution, attached hereto 

as Exhibit A, is hereby approved together with the issuance by the Corporation of Sales Tax 

Revenue Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed $32,500,000 (the “Bonds”) for the 

public purposes described within the Bond Resolution. 

 

Section 2. The Sales Tax Remittance Agreement by and between the City and the 

Corporation, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, is hereby approved and the 

Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute said agreement and the City Secretary is 

authorized to attest to same. For so long as the Bonds remain outstanding, the City covenants, 

agrees and warrants, to the extent permitted by law, to cause no reduction, abatement or exemption 

in the sales tax below the rate voted at the election held by and within the City on November 4, 

2003, and to cause such sales tax to be collected and deposited in accordance with the Sales Tax 

Remittance Agreement. 

 

Section 3. The approvals herein given are in accordance with Section 501.204(a) of the Act 

and the Bylaws of the Corporation, and the Bonds shall never be construed as an indebtedness or 



 

 

 4159-3318-5090.1 

 

pledge of the City, or the State of Texas (the “State”), within the meaning of any constitutional or 

statutory provision, and the owner of the Bonds shall never be paid in whole or in part out of any 

funds raised or to be raised by taxation (other than sales tax proceeds as authorized pursuant to the 

Act) or any other revenues of the Corporation, the City, or the State, except those revenues assigned 

and pledged pursuant to the Bond Resolution. 

 

Section 4. The Mayor, the City Secretary, the City Manager, and Chief Financial Officer of 

the City and all other appropriate officials of the City are hereby authorized, jointly and severally, 

to execute and deliver such endorsements, instruments, certificates, documents, or other papers 

necessary and advisable to carry out the intent and purposes of this Resolution and the Bond 

Resolution. 

 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

 

 

[Signature page follows] 

 



 

 

Signature Page 

City’s Resolution 

 4159-3318-5090.1 

 

ADOPTED THIS 6th day of December, 2022 by the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 

 

 

             

             TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

      

Rebecca Garza 

City Secretary 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

 

 

      

D. Blu Kostelich 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

      

Jerry V. Kyle, Jr. 

Bond Counsel 

 



 

 

 4159-3318-5090.1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Bond Resolution 

 

 

 

[To be attached]  



 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF 

LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, INC. SALES TAX REVENUE 

BONDS, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES; ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES AND 

DELEGATING AUTHORITY FOR THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS; AND 

ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. (the “Corporation”) has been 

duly created by the City of Lubbock, Texas (the “City”) and organized pursuant to the provisions 

of the Development Corporation Act, Texas Local Government Code, Title 12, Subtitle C1, as 

amended (the “Act”) (formerly known as the Development Corporation Act of 1979, Tex. Rev. 

Civ. Stat. Ann. Article 5190.6), specifically Chapters 501 and 504 of the Local Government Code; 

and 

WHEREAS, a sales and use tax at the rate of 1/8th of one percent for the promotion and 

development of new and expanded business enterprises was approved by qualified voters of the 

City at an election held November 4, 2003 (the “Election”); and 

WHEREAS, the Election was held in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the 

State of Texas, including the Texas Election Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) hereby finds and 

determines that bonds should be issued at this time, in one or more series, for Land Projects and 

Infrastructure Projects (each as defined herein and collectively, the “Projects”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that the Projects are within the 

meaning of the Act and as approved by the voters at the Election; and 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that the expenditures for the Land 

Projects are required and suitable for the development, retention or expansion of projects 

authorized by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation further finds that the expenditures 

for the Infrastructure Projects are required or suitable for infrastructure necessary to promote or 

develop new or expanded business enterprises in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interests of the 

Corporation to authorize the issuance of the bonds in one or more series and that the terms of each 

such series of bonds should be included in a pricing certificate (each, a “Pricing Certificate”) to be 

executed by a Pricing Officer (hereafter designated); and 

WHEREAS, it is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 

Resolution has been adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and subject 

matter of the public business to be considered and acted upon at said meeting, including this 

Resolution, was given, all as required by the applicable provisions of Texas Government Code, 

Chapter 551. 



2 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, INC.: 

Section 1.  Definitions; Authorization; Designation; Principal Amount; Purpose.  

(a) Bonds of the Corporation shall be and are hereby authorized to be issued in the 

maximum aggregate principal amount specified in this Resolution to be designated and bear the 

title set forth in the applicable Pricing Certificate (defined herein), hereinafter referred to as the 

“Bonds”, to provide funds to: (a) finance the costs of the purchase of land for the promotion and 

development of new and expanded business enterprises, to wit: development, retention, or 

expansion of projects authorized by Section 501.101 of the Local Government Code that will 

create or retain primary jobs (the “Land Projects”), (b) finance the costs of designing, constructing, 

acquiring, and improving infrastructure within the City, including streets and roads, storm sewer, 

sanitary sewer and water utilities, detention and drainage improvements, site improvements, and 

related improvements to promote or develop new or expanded business enterprises (“Infrastructure 

Projects”), and (c) pay costs of issuing the Bonds, in conformity with the Constitution and laws of 

the State of Texas, including the Act, the Texas Nonprofit Corporation Act, and Chapter 22, Texas 

Business Organizations Code.  

(b) For all purposes of this Resolution and in particular for clarity with respect to the 

issuance of the Bonds herein authorized and the pledge and appropriation of revenues to the 

payment of the Bonds, the following definitions are provided:  

“Act” - The Development Corporation Act, Texas Local Government Code, Title 12, 

Subtitle C1, as amended (formerly known as the Development Corporation Act of 1979, Tex. Rev. 

Civ. Stat. Ann. Article 5190.6), specifically Chapters 501 and 504 of the Local Government Code.  

“Additional Obligations” - Bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness which the 

Corporation reserves the right to issue or enter into, as the case may be, in the future in accordance 

with the terms and conditions provided in Section 18 hereof and which, together with the Bonds 

and any Previously Issued Bonds, are equally and ratably secured by a parity pledge of and claim 

on the Pledged Revenues under the terms of this Resolution and any Supplemental Resolution. 

“Average Annual Debt Service” - That amount which, at the time of computation, is 

derived by dividing the total amount of Debt Service to be paid over a period of years as the same 

is scheduled to become due and payable by the number of years taken into account in determining 

the total Debt Service. Capitalized interest payments provided from bond proceeds, accrued 

interest on any Additional Obligations, and interest earnings thereon shall be excluded in making 

such computation. 

“Beneficial Owners” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6 herein. 

 

“Board” - The Board of Directors of the Corporation.  

 

“Bond Date” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2 herein. 

 

“Bond Fund” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13 herein. 

 



3 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

“Bonds” - The bonds authorized by this Resolution.  

“City” - The City of Lubbock, Texas.  

“Code”- Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 42 herein. 

 

“Comptroller” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 21 herein. 

 

“Corporation” - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc., a non-profit industrial 

development corporation organized and existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State of 

Texas, including the Act and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Texas.  

 

“Debt Service” - As of any particular date of computation, with respect to any obligations 

and with respect to any period, the aggregate of the amounts to be paid or set aside by the 

Corporation as of such date or in such period for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, 

and interest (to the extent not capitalized) on such obligations; assuming, in the case of obligations 

without a fixed numerical rate, that such obligations bear, or would have borne, interest at the 

maximum legal per annum rate applicable to such obligations (which shall be the lesser of the 

applicable statutory maximum and the maximum permitted by the proceedings authorizing such 

obligations), and further assuming in the case of obligations required to be redeemed or prepaid as 

to principal prior to maturity, the principal amounts thereof will be redeemed prior to maturity in 

accordance with the mandatory redemption provisions applicable thereto. Capitalized interest 

payments provided from bond proceeds, accrued interest on any Additional Obligations, and 

interest earnings thereon shall be excluded in making such computation. 

 

“Depository” - A commercial bank or other qualified financial institution eligible and 

qualified to serve as the custodian of the Corporation’s monetary accounts and funds.  

“Depository Agreement” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6 herein. 

 

“Designated Financial Officer” - The Corporation’s Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, or 

other officer of the Corporation then having the primary responsibility for the financial affairs of 

the Corporation or the Corporation’s President/CEO or the Chair of the Corporation’s Board. 

“Designated Payment/Transfer Office” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4 

herein. 

 

“DTC” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6 herein. 

 

“DTC Participants” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6 herein. 

 

“Election” - Shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals of this Resolution. 

“Fiscal Year” - The twelve-month financial accounting period used by the Corporation 

ending September 30 in each year, or such other twelve consecutive month period established by 

the Corporation.  



4 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

“Financial Obligation” - A (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into in 

connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 

obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 

“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official statement 

(as defined in the Rule) has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.  

“Government Obligations” - Unless otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, (i) direct 

noncallable obligations of the United States of America, including obligations the principal of and 

interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (ii) noncallable 

obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including obligations 

unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and on the date of their 

acquisition or purchase by the Corporation are rated as to investment quality by a nationally 

recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, (iii) noncallable obligations 

of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have 

been refunded and on the date of their acquisition or purchase by the Corporation, are rated as to 

investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its 

equivalent, and (iv) any other then authorized securities or obligations under applicable State law 

that may be used to defease obligations such as the Bonds.  

“Gross Sales Tax Revenues” - All of the revenues or receipts due or owing to, or collected 

or received by or on behalf of the Corporation by the City or otherwise pursuant to the Act and the 

election held November 4, 2003, less any amounts due and owed to the Comptroller of Public 

Accounts of the State of Texas as charges for the collection of the Sales Tax or retention by said 

Comptroller for refunds and to redeem dishonored checks and drafts, to the extent such charges 

and retention are authorized or required by law.  

“Holders” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4 herein. 

 

“Infrastructure Projects” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1 herein. 

 

“Initial Bond(s)” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8 herein. 

 

“Land Projects” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1 herein. 

 

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” - With respect to any obligations, the highest amount of 

Debt Service due on all such obligations that are Outstanding, in any Fiscal Year. Capitalized 

interest payments provided from bond proceeds, accrued interest on any Additional Obligations, 

and interest earnings thereon shall be excluded in making such computation. 

 

“Maximum Reserve Requirement” - With respect to any amount required by the Pricing 

Certificate or any Supplemental Resolution to be deposited into the Reserve Fund or any account 

or subaccount therein, the maximum amount that can be invested without restriction as to yield in 

a reasonably required reserve fund pursuant to Subsection (d) of Section 148 of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

 

“MSRB” - The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or its successor. 

 



5 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

“Outstanding” - When used in this Resolution with respect to Bonds or Parity Obligations, 

as the case may be, means, as of the date of determination, all Bonds and Parity Obligations 

theretofore sold, issued and delivered by the Corporation, except:  

 

(1) those Bonds or Parity Obligations canceled or delivered to the transfer agent or 

registrar for cancellation in connection with the exchange or transfer of such 

obligations;  

(2) those Bonds or Parity Obligations paid or deemed to be paid in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 24 hereof or similar provisions of any Supplemental 

Resolution authorizing the issuance of Additional Obligations; and 

(3) those Bonds or Parity Obligations that have been mutilated, destroyed, lost, or 

stolen and replacement obligations have been registered and delivered in lieu 

thereof in accordance with the provisions of Section 26 hereof.  

“Parity Obligations” - Collectively, any Previously Issued Bonds, the Bonds and 

Additional Obligations.  

“Pledged Revenues” - Collectively (i) Gross Sales Tax Revenues from time to time 

deposited or owing to the Pledged Revenue Fund and (ii) such other money, income, revenue, 

receipts or other property as may be specifically dedicated, pledged or otherwise encumbered in a 

Supplemental Resolution for the payment and security of Parity Obligations.  

“Previously Issued Bonds” – The Corporation’s previously issued bonds on parity with the 

Bonds, of which there are currently none.  

“Pricing Officer” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3 herein. 

“Projects” - Shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals of this Resolution. 

“Purchasers” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 29 herein. 

“Purchase Contract” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 29 herein. 

“Regulations” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 42 herein. 

“Rule” -  SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.  

“Sales Tax” - The local sales and use tax authorized under Section 4A of the Development 

Corporation Act of 1979, Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. Article 5190.6 (now codified as the 

Development Corporation Act as described above), approved at an election held on November 4, 

2003, within the corporate limits of the City, together with any increases in the rate of such Sales 

Tax authorized and provided by law.  

“SEC” - The United States Securities and Exchange Commission.  



6 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

“Security Register” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4 herein. 

 

“Special Record Date” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4 herein. 

“Reserve Fund” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 14 herein. 

“State” - The State of Texas. 

“Stated Maturities” - Shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2 herein. 

“Supplemental Resolution” - Any resolution of the Board supplementing this Resolution 

for the purpose of authorizing and providing the terms and provisions of the Bonds or Additional 

Obligations, or supplementing or amending this Resolution for any other authorized purpose 

permitted in Section 18 or 25 hereof, including resolutions authorizing the issuance of Additional 

Obligations or pledging and encumbering income, revenues, receipts or property other than the 

Gross Sales Tax Revenues to the payment and security of the Parity Obligations.  

“Tax-Exempt Bonds” - Bonds, the interest on which is intended by the Corporation to be 

excludable from gross income or federal income tax purposes, as determined and set forth in the 

Pricing Certificate therefor. 

“Taxable Bonds” - Bonds the interest on which is not intended by the Corporation to be 

excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, as determined and set forth in the 

Pricing Certificate therefor. 

“Transfer Agreement” - The Sales Tax Remittance Agreement dated for convenience as of 

even date herewith, between the City and the Corporation. 

Section 2.  Fully Registered Obligations; Authorized Denominations; Stated Maturities; 

Date. The Bonds shall be issued as fully registered obligations, without coupons, shall be dated as 

specified in the Pricing Certificate (the “Bond Date”), shall be in denominations of $5,000 in 

principal or any integral multiple (within a Stated Maturity) thereof, shall be numbered 

consecutively from One (1) upward and shall become due and payable on the date(s) in each of 

the years and in principal amounts (the “Stated Maturities”) and bear interest at per annum rates 

in accordance with the details set forth in the Pricing Certificate.  

The Bonds shall bear interest on the unpaid principal amounts from the date specified in 

the Pricing Certificate at the per annum rates shown in the Pricing Certificate (calculated on the 

basis of a 360 day year of twelve 30 day months). Interest on the Bonds shall be payable in each 

year on the dates, and commencing on the date, set forth in the Pricing Certificate.  

Section 3.  Delegation of Authority to Pricing Officer. 

(a) The Corporation’s President & CEO, its Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial 

Officer/Treasurer or the Chair of the Board (each a “Pricing Officer”) are each hereby authorized 

to act on behalf of the Corporation in selling and delivering the Bonds, and carrying out the other 

procedures specified in this Resolution, including determining the aggregate original principal 



7 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

amount of the Bonds (within the maximum amount herein authorized), the date of the Bonds, any 

additional or different designation or title by which the Bonds shall be known, whether the Bond 

shall be sold and delivered in one or more series and the date and sale and delivery of each such 

series and which Projects a particular series will finance, the price at which the Bonds will be sold, 

the manner of sale (negotiated, privately placed or competitively bid), the years in which the Bonds 

will mature, the principal amount to mature in each of such years, the rate of interest to be borne 

by each such maturity, the interest payment dates, whether to obtain municipal bond insurance 

and/or surety policies for all or any portion of the Bonds (including the execution of any 

commitment agreements, membership agreements in mutual insurance companies, and other 

similar agreements), the record dates, the price and terms upon and at which the Bonds shall be 

subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Corporation, as well as any mandatory 

sinking fund redemption provisions, the designation of a paying agent/registrar for the Bonds, the 

terms of any bond insurance or surety policies applicable to the Bonds, and all other matters 

relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, all of which shall be specified in the Pricing 

Certificate, provided that: 

(i) the aggregate original principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed 

$32,500,000; 

(ii) the true interest cost rate for the Bonds shall not exceed 8.00%; and 

(iii) the maximum maturity date for the Bonds shall not exceed twenty-two (22) 

years from the applicable Bond Date. 

The execution of the Pricing Certificate shall evidence the sale date of the Bonds by the 

Corporation to the Purchaser (hereinafter defined).  

(b) The delegation made hereby shall expire if not exercised by a Pricing Officer within 

180 days from the date of adoption hereof. 

Section 4.  Terms of Payment; Paying Agent/Registrar. The principal of, and the interest 

on the Bonds, due and payable by reason of maturity, redemption or otherwise, shall be payable 

only to the registered owners or holders of the Bonds (hereinafter called the “Holders”) appearing 

on the registration and transfer books maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar and the payment 

thereof shall be in any coin or currency of the United States of America, which at the time of 

payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts, and shall be without exchange 

or collection charges to the Holders.  

The selection and appointment of the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds shall be as 

provided in the Pricing Certificate. Books and records relating to the registration, payment, 

exchange and transfer of the Bonds (the “Security Register”) shall at all times be kept and 

maintained on behalf of the Corporation by the Paying Agent/Registrar, all as provided herein, in 

accordance with the terms and provisions of a “Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement”, substantially 

in the form presented to the Board herewith. A Pricing Officer and/or other appropriate officers of 

the Corporation are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such Agreement in connection with 

the delivery of the Bonds. The Corporation covenants to maintain and provide a Paying 

Agent/Registrar at all times until the Bonds are paid in full and discharged. Any successor Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall be a bank, trust company, financial institution or other entity qualified and 



8 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

authorized to serve in such capacity and perform the duties and services of Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds, the Corporation agrees to promptly 

cause a written notice to be sent to the Holder affected by United States Mail, first class postage 

prepaid, which notice shall identify and give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar.  

Principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable at the Stated Maturities or 

upon their earlier redemption, only upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar at its designated offices as provided in the Pricing Certificate (the “Designated 

Payment/Transfer Office”). Interest on the Bonds shall be paid to the Holders whose name appear 

in the Security Register at the close of business on the Record Date (which shall be set forth in the 

Pricing Certificate) and shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar (i) by check sent United States 

Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of the Holder recorded in the Security Register or 

(ii) by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk 

and expense of, the Holder. If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds 

shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city where 

the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located is authorized by 

law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day 

which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking institutions are 

authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on 

the original date payment was due.  

In the event of a non-payment of interest on one or more maturities on a scheduled payment 

date, and for thirty (30) days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment for such 

maturity or maturities (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, 

if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the Corporation. Notice 

of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (which shall 

be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the 

Special Record Date by United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each 

Holder of such maturity or maturities appearing on the Security Register at the close of business 

on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.  

Section 5. Registration; Transfer; Exchange of Bonds; Predecessor Bonds. The Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall obtain, record, and maintain in the Security Register the name and address 

of each registered owner of the Bonds issued under and pursuant to the provisions of this 

Resolution. Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms and the terms hereof, be transferred or 

exchanged for Bonds of other authorized denominations upon the Security Register by the Holder, 

in person or by his duly authorized agent, upon surrender of such Bond to the Designated 

Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, accompanied by a written 

instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly executed by the Holder or by his duly 

authorized agent, in form satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.  

Upon surrender for transfer of a Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the 

Paying Agent/Registrar, one or more new certificates evidencing the Bonds, in authorized 

denominations, of like Stated Maturity and of a like aggregate principal amount as the Bond or 

Bonds surrender for transfer shall be registered and issued to the assignee or transferee of the 

previous Holders.  



9 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

At the option of the Holder, Bonds may be exchanged for other Bonds of authorized 

denominations and having the same Stated Maturity, bearing the same rate of interest and of like 

aggregate principal amount as the Bonds surrendered for exchange, upon surrender of the Bonds 

to be exchanged at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Whenever any Bonds are surrendered for exchange, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall register and 

deliver new printed certificates evidencing the Bonds, executed on behalf of, and furnished by, the 

Corporation, to the Holder requesting the exchange.  

All Bonds issued upon any transfer or exchange of Bonds shall be delivered at the 

Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, or sent by United States Mail, 

first class postage prepaid, to the Holder and, upon the delivery thereof, the same shall be valid 

obligations of the Corporation, evidencing the same obligation to pay, and entitled to the same 

benefits under this Resolution, as the Bonds surrendered in such transfer or exchange.  

All transfers or exchanges of Bonds pursuant to this Section shall be made without expense 

or service charge to the Holder, except as otherwise herein provided, and except that the Paying 

Agent/Registrar shall require payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or exchange of any 

tax or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange.  

Bonds canceled by reason of an exchange or transfer pursuant to the provisions hereof are 

hereby defined to be “Predecessor Bonds,” evidencing all or a portion, as the case may be, of the 

same obligation to pay evidenced by the Bond or Bonds registered and delivered in the exchange 

or transfer therefor. Additionally, the term “Predecessor Bonds” shall include any mutilated, lost, 

destroyed, or stolen Bond for which a replacement Bond has been issued, registered and delivered 

in lieu thereof pursuant to Section 26 hereof and such new replacement Bond shall be deemed to 

evidence the same obligation as the mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Bond.  

Neither the Corporation nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to transfer or 

exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within forty-five (45) days of the 

date fixed for the redemption of such Bond; provided, however, such limitation on transferability 

shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder of the unredeemed balance of a Bond called 

for redemption in part.  

Section 6. Book-Entry Only Transfers and Transactions. Notwithstanding anything to the 

contrary herein, this Section 6 shall not apply to any series of the Bonds sold by private placement. 

Notwithstanding the provisions contained in Sections 3 and 5 hereof and in the Pricing Certificate 

relating to the payment, and transfer/exchange of the Bonds, the Corporation hereby approves and 

authorizes the use of “Book-Entry Only” securities clearance, settlement and transfer system 

provided by The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), a limited purpose trust company organized 

under the laws of the State of New York, in accordance with the operational arrangements 

referenced in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations by and between the Corporation and 

DTC (the “Depository Agreement”), the execution, delivery and performance of which by one or 

more appropriate officers is hereby authorized and approved. 

Pursuant to the Depository Agreement and the rules of DTC, the Bonds shall be deposited 

with DTC who shall hold said Bonds for its participants (the “DTC Participants”). While the Bonds 

are held by DTC under the Depository Agreement, the Holder of the Bonds on the Security 

Register for all purposes, including payment and notices, shall be Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, 



10 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

notwithstanding the ownership of each actual purchaser or owner of each Bond (the “Beneficial 

Owners”) being recorded in the records of DTC and DTC Participants.  

In the event DTC determines to discontinue serving as securities depository for the Bonds 

or otherwise ceases to provide book-entry clearance and settlement of securities transactions in 

general or the Corporation determines that DTC is incapable of properly discharging its duties as 

securities depository for the Bonds, the Corporation covenants and agrees with the Holders of the 

Bonds to cause Bonds to be printed in definitive form and provide for the Bond certificates to be 

issued and delivered to DTC Participants and Beneficial Owners, as the case may be. Thereafter, 

the Bonds in definitive form shall be assigned, transferred and exchanged on the Security Register 

maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar and payment of such Bonds shall be made in accordance 

with the provisions of Sections 3 and 5 hereof.  

Section 7. Execution; Registration. The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the 

Corporation by its Chair of the Board of Directors of the Corporation under its seal reproduced or 

impressed thereon and attested by the Secretary of the Corporation. The signature of said officers 

on the Bonds may be manual or facsimile. Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of 

individuals who are or were the proper officers of the Corporation on the date of adoption of this 

Resolution shall be deemed to be duly executed on behalf of the Corporation, notwithstanding that 

such individuals or either of them shall cease to hold such offices at the time of delivery of the 

Bonds to the initial purchasers and with respect to Bonds delivered in subsequent exchanges and 

transfers.  

No Bond shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Resolution, or be valid or 

obligatory for any purpose, unless there appears on such Bond either a certificate of registration 

substantially in the form provided herein, executed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the 

State of Texas or his duly authorized agent, or a certificate of registration substantially in the form 

provided herein, executed by an authorized officer, employee or representative of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, and either such certificate upon any Bond duly signed shall be conclusive 

evidence, and the only evidence, that such Bond has been duly certified, registered and delivered.  

Section 8. Initial Bond(s). The Bonds herein authorized shall be initially issued either (i) 

as a single fully registered bond in the total principal amount and with principal installments to 

become due and payable as provided in the Pricing Certificate and numbered T-1, or (ii) as multiple 

fully registered bonds registered to the initial purchasers in principal amounts and denominations 

in accordance with the Pricing Certificate and to be numbered consecutively from T-1 and upward 

(hereinafter called the “Initial Bond(s)”) and, in either case, the Initial Bond(s) shall be registered 

in the name of the initial purchaser(s) or the designee thereof. The Initial Bond(s) shall be the 

Bonds submitted to the Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas for approval, certified 

and registered by the Office of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and 

delivered to the initial purchaser(s). Any time after the delivery of the Initial Bond(s), the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, pursuant to written instructions from the initial purchaser(s), or the designee 

thereof, shall cancel the Initial Bond(s) delivered hereunder and exchange therefor definitive 

Bonds of authorized denominations, Stated Maturities, principal amounts and bearing applicable 

interest rates for transfer and delivery to the Holders named at the addresses identified therefor; all 

pursuant to and in accordance with such written instructions from the initial purchaser(s), or the 

designee thereof, and such other information and documentation as the Paying Agent/Registrar 

may reasonably require.  



11 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

Section 9. Forms. 

(a) Forms Generally. The Bonds, the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of 

Public Accounts of the State of Texas (to appear on the Initial Bond(s) only), the Registration 

Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar (to appear on definitive Bonds only), and the form of 

Assignment to appear on each of the Bonds, shall be substantially in the forms set forth in Exhibit 

A attached hereto and incorporated fully herein, as such forms may be modified in the Pricing 

Certificate with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are 

permitted or required by this Resolution and with the Bonds to be completed with the information 

set forth in the Pricing Certificate, and may have such letters, numbers, or other marks of 

identification (including CUSIPs or other identifying numbers) and such legends and 

endorsements (including insurance legends on insured Bonds and any reproduction of an opinion 

of counsel) thereon as may, consistently herewith, be established by the Board or determined by a 

Pricing Officer. The Pricing Certificate shall set forth the final and controlling terms of the Bonds. 

Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse thereof, with an appropriate 

reference thereto on the face of the Bond.  

The Bonds, including the Initial Bond(s), shall be typewritten, printed, lithographed, or 

engraved or produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such 

Bonds as evidenced by their execution thereof.  

Section 10.  Pledge. The Corporation hereby covenants and agrees that the Pledged 

Revenues, with the exception of those in excess of the amounts required for the payment and 

security of the Parity Obligations, are hereby irrevocably pledged to the payment and security of 

the Bonds, any Previously Issued Bonds and Additional Obligations, if issued, including the 

establishment and maintenance of the special funds created and established in this Resolution and 

any Supplemental Resolution, all as hereinafter provided. The Corporation hereby resolves the 

Parity Obligations shall constitute a lien on the Pledged Revenues in accordance with the terms of 

this Resolution and any Supplemental Resolution, which lien shall be valid and binding and fully 

perfected from and after the date of adoption of this Resolution without physical delivery or 

transfer of control of the Pledged Revenues, the filing of this Resolution or any other act; all as 

provided in Chapter 1208 of the Texas Government Code.  

Chapter 1208, Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of 

the Pledged Revenues granted by the Corporation under this Section, and such pledge is therefore 

valid, effective and perfected. If Texas law is amended at any time while the Bonds are Outstanding 

such that the pledge of the Pledged Revenues granted by the Corporation under this Section is to 

be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, then in order to 

preserve to the registered owners of the Bonds the perfection of the security interest in said pledge, 

the Corporation agrees to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and necessary under 

Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code 

and enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said pledge to occur. 

Section 11.  Accounts and Subaccounts. The Corporation reserves the right to establish and 

maintain accounts and/or subaccounts within any Fund established or permitted to be established 

by this Resolution or any Supplemental Resolution. The Pricing Certificate and any Supplemental 

Resolution may contain any relevant provisions related to such accounts and/or subaccounts. 



12 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

Section 12. Pledged Revenue Fund. The Corporation hereby covenants and agrees to 

establish and maintain a fund or account at a Depository for the deposit of the Pledged Revenues 

as received by the Corporation, which fund or account shall continue to be known on the books 

and records of the Corporation as the “Pledged Revenue Fund.” All Pledged Revenues deposited 

to the credit of such Fund shall continue to be accounted for separate and apart from all other 

revenues, receipts and income of the Corporation and, with respect to the Gross Sales Tax 

Revenues, the Corporation shall further account for such funds separate and apart from the other 

Pledged Revenues deposited to the credit of the Pledged Revenue Fund. All Pledged Revenues 

deposited to the credit of the Pledged Revenue Fund shall be appropriated and expended to the 

extent required by this Resolution and any Supplemental Resolution for the following uses and in 

the order of priority shown:  

First: To the payment of the amounts required to be deposited in the Bond Fund for the 

payment of Debt Service on the Parity Obligations as the same becomes due and payable;  

Second: To the payment of the amounts required to be deposited in the Reserve Fund in 

accordance with the provisions of the resolutions authorizing any Previously Issued Bonds, 

this Resolution and any Supplemental Resolution, if any;  

Third: To the payment of amounts required to be deposited in any other fund or account 

required by any Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of Parity Obligations; 

and  

Fourth: To any fund or account held at any place or places, or to any payee, required by 

any other resolution of the Board which authorized the issuance of obligations or the 

creation of debt of the Corporation having a lien on the Pledged Revenues subordinate to 

the lien created herein on behalf of the Parity Obligations.  

Any Pledged Revenues remaining in the Pledged Revenue Fund after satisfying the 

foregoing payments, or making adequate and sufficient provision for the payment thereof, may be 

appropriated and used for any other lawful purpose now or hereafter permitted by law.  

Section 13. Bond Fund. For the purpose of providing funds to pay the principal of and 

interest on Parity Obligations, the Corporation covenants and agrees to maintain a separate and 

special account or fund on the books and records of the Corporation known as the “Lubbock 

Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Debt Service Fund” (the “Bond Fund”), and all monies 

deposited to the credit of the Bond Fund shall continue to be held in a special banking fund or 

account maintained at a Depository of the Corporation. In addition to the amounts required to be 

deposited to the credit of the Bond Fund for the payment of any Previously Issued Bonds, the 

Corporation covenants that there shall be deposited into the Bond Fund prior to each principal and 

interest payment date from the Pledged Revenues an amount equal to one hundred per centum 

(100%) of the interest on and the principal of the Bonds then falling due and payable, and such 

deposits to pay principal and accrued interest on the Bonds shall be made in substantially equal 

monthly installments on or before the 10th day of each month, beginning on or before the 10th day 

of the month next following the delivery of the Bonds to the initial purchasers.  



13 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

The required deposits to the Bond Fund for the payment of principal of and interest on the 

Bonds shall continue to be made as hereinabove provided until (i) the total amount on deposit in 

the Bond Fund and Reserve Fund is equal to the amount required to fully pay and discharge all 

Parity Obligations (principal and interest) then Outstanding or (ii) the Bonds are no longer 

Outstanding.  

Section 14.  Reserve Fund.  The Corporation reserves the right to establish and maintain a 

separate and special fund or account known as the “Reserve Fund” (the “Reserve Fund”). The 

Pricing Certificate may contain all provisions related to the Reserve Fund deemed necessary or 

appropriate for the Bonds by a Pricing Officer; provided, however, any required amount to be on 

deposit in the Reserve Fund or any account or subaccount therein shall not exceed the Maximum 

Reserve Requirement. 

Section 15.  Deficiencies. If on any occasion there shall not be sufficient Pledged Revenues 

to make the required deposits into the Bond Fund or Reserve Fund, such deficiency shall be cured 

as soon as possible from the next available Pledged Revenues, or from any other sources available 

for such purpose.  

Section 16. Payment of Bonds. While any of the Bonds are Outstanding, a Designated 

Financial Officer of the Corporation shall cause to be transferred to the Paying Agent/Registrar, 

from funds on deposit in the Bond Fund, and, if necessary, in the Reserve Fund, amounts sufficient 

to fully pay and discharge promptly as each installment of interest and principal of the Bonds 

accrues or matures; such transfer of funds to be made in such manner as will cause immediately 

available funds to be deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds at the close of the 

business day next preceding the date of payment for the Bonds.  

Section 17. Investments; Security of Funds. Money in any Fund required to be maintained 

pursuant to this Resolution may, at the option of the Corporation, be invested in obligations and in 

the manner prescribed by the Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 

2256), including investments held in book-entry form; provided that all such deposits and 

investments shall be made in such a manner that the money required to be expended from any 

Fund will be available at the proper time or times and provided further the maximum stated 

maturity for any investment acquired with money deposited to the credit of the Reserve Fund shall 

be limited to five (5) years from the date of the investment of such money. Such investments shall 

be valued in terms of current market value within 45 days of the close of each Fiscal Year and, 

with respect to investments held for the account of the Reserve Fund, within 45 days of the date 

of passage of each authorizing document of the Board pertaining to the issuance of Additional 

Obligations. All interest and income derived from deposits and investments in the Bond Fund 

immediately shall be credited to, and any losses debited to, the appropriate account of the Bond 

Fund. All interest and income derived from deposits in and investments of the Reserve Fund shall, 

subject to the limitations provided in Section 14 hereof and any limitations in the Pricing 

Certificate or any Supplemental Resolution, be credited to and deposited in the Pledged Revenue 

Fund. All such investments shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any default in 

connection with the Parity Obligations.  

Money deposited to the credit of the Pledged Revenue Fund, Bond Fund and Reserve Fund, 

to the extent not invested and not otherwise insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 



14 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

or similar agency, shall be secured by a pledge of direct obligations of the United States of 

America, or obligations unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America.  

Section 18. Issuance of Additional Parity Obligations. Subject to the provisions hereinafter 

appearing as to conditions precedent which must be satisfied, the Corporation reserves the right to 

issue, from time to time as needed, Additional Obligations for any lawful purpose. Such Additional 

Obligations may be issued in such form and manner as the Corporation shall determine, provided, 

however, prior to issuing or incurring such Additional Obligations, the following conditions 

precedent for the authorization and issuance of the same are satisfied, to wit:  

(a) A Designated Financial Officer shall have executed a certificate stating that, to the best 

of his or her knowledge and belief, the Corporation is not then in default as to any covenant, 

obligation or agreement contained in the Resolution or a Supplemental Resolution.  

(b) The Corporation has secured from a certified public accountant or a Designated 

Financial Officer a certificate or report to the effect that, according to the books and records of the 

Corporation, the Pledged Revenues for either (i) the last completed Fiscal Year next preceding the 

adoption of the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of the proposed Additional 

Obligations or (ii) any twelve (12) consecutive months out of the previous fifteen (15) months next 

preceding the adoption of the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the Additional Obligations 

were equal to not less than (y) 1.50 times the Average Annual Debt Service for all Parity 

Obligations then Outstanding after giving effect to the issuance of the Additional Obligations then 

being issued, and (z) 1.25 times the Maximum Annual Debt Service for all Parity Obligations then 

Outstanding after giving effect to the issuance of the Additional Obligations then being issued; 

provided, however, that in the event an increase in the rate of the Sales Tax is approved by voters 

at an election held prior to the date of a resolution authorizing the issuance of Additional 

Obligations, such certificate or report shall calculate the Pledged Revenues for the calculation 

period as if such increased rate were in effect during the calculation period. 

Section 19. Refunding Bonds. The Corporation reserves the right to issue refunding bonds 

to refund all or any part of the Parity Obligations (pursuant to any then applicable laws) upon such 

terms and conditions as the Board may deem to be in the best interest of the Corporation, and if 

less than all such Parity Obligations then Outstanding are refunded, the conditions precedent 

prescribed (for the issuance of Additional Obligations) set forth in Section 18 hereof shall be 

satisfied, and shall give effect to the refunding.  

Section 20. Right to Create Subordinate Debt. Except as may be limited by a Supplemental 

Resolution, the Corporation shall have the right to issue or create any debt payable from or secured 

by a lien on all or any part of the Pledged Revenues for any lawful purpose without complying 

with the provisions of Section 18 or 19 hereof, provided the pledge and the lien securing such debt 

is subordinate to the pledge and lien established, made and created in Section 10 of this Resolution 

with respect to the Pledged Revenues to the payment and security of the Parity Obligations.  

Section 21. Confirmation and Levy of Sales Tax.  

(a) The Board hereby represents the City has duly complied with the provisions of the Act 

for the levy of the Sales Tax at the rate voted at the Election, and such Sales Tax is to be imposed 



15 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

within the corporate limits of the City and the receipts of such Sales Tax are to be remitted to the 

City by the Comptroller of Public Accounts on a monthly basis.  

(b) While any Bonds are Outstanding, the Corporation covenants, agrees and warrants to 

take and pursue all action permissible to cause the Sales Tax, at said rate or at a higher rate if 

legally permitted, to be levied and collected continuously, in the manner and to the maximum 

extent permitted by law, and to cause no reduction, abatement or exemption in the Sales Tax or 

rate of tax below the rate stated, confirmed and ordered in subsection (a) of this Section to be 

ordered or permitted while any Bonds shall remain Outstanding.  

(c) If hereafter authorized by law to apply, impose and levy the Sales Tax on any taxable 

items or transactions that are not subject to the Sales Tax on the date of the adoption hereof, to the 

extent it legally may do so, the Corporation agrees to use its best efforts to cause the City to take 

such action as may be required to subject such taxable items or transactions to the Sales Tax.  

(d) The Corporation agrees to take and pursue all action legally permissible to cause the 

Sales Tax to be collected and remitted and deposited as herein required and as required by the Act, 

at the earliest and most frequent times permitted by law.  

(e) The Corporation agrees to use its best efforts to cause the City to comply with the Act 

and shall cause the Gross Sales Tax Revenues to be deposited to the credit of the Pledged Revenue 

Fund in their entirety immediately upon receipt by the City. In the alternative and if legally 

authorized, the Corporation shall, by appropriate notice, direction, request or other legal method, 

use its good-faith efforts to cause the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas (the 

“Comptroller”) to pay all Gross Sales Tax Revenues directly to the Corporation for deposit to the 

Pledged Revenue Fund.  

Section 22. Records and Accounts. The Corporation hereby covenants and agrees that 

while any of the Bonds are Outstanding, it will keep and maintain complete records and accounts 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and following the close of each Fiscal 

Year, it will cause an audit of such books and accounts to be made by an independent firm of 

certified public accountants. Each such audit, in addition to whatever other matters may be thought 

proper by the accountant, shall particularly include the following:  

(1) A statement in reasonable detail regarding the receipt and disbursement of the Pledged 

Revenues for such Fiscal Year; and  

(2) A balance sheet for the Corporation as of the end of such Fiscal Year.  

Such annual audit of the records and accounts of the Corporation shall be in the form of a 

report (and may be reflected in the audit of the City) and be accompanied by an opinion of the 

accountant to the effect that such examination was made in accordance with generally accepted 

auditing standards and contain a statement to the effect that in the course of making the 

examination necessary for the report and opinion, the accountant obtained no knowledge of any 

default of the Corporation on the Bonds or in the fulfillment of any of the terms, covenants or 

provisions of this Resolution, or under any other evidence of indebtedness, or of any event which, 

with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a failure of the Corporation to comply with 

the provisions of this Resolution or if, in the opinion of the accountants, any such failure to comply 



16 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

with a covenant or agreement hereof, a statement as to the nature and status thereof shall be 

included. 

Copies of each annual audit report shall be furnished upon written request, to any Holders 

of any of said Bonds. The audits herein required shall be made within 180 days following the close 

of each Fiscal Year insofar as is possible.  

The Holders of any Bonds or any duly authorized agent or agents of such Holders shall 

have the right to inspect such records, accounts and data of the Corporation during regular business 

hours.  

Section 23. Representations and Covenants as to Security for the Bonds.  

(a) The Corporation represents and warrants that, except for Parity Obligations, the Pledged 

Revenues are and will be and remain free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance 

thereon or with respect thereto prior to, or of equal rank with, the pledge and lien created in or 

authorized by this Resolution except as expressly provided herein.  

(b) The Bonds and the provisions of this Resolution are and will be the valid and legally 

enforceable obligations of the Corporation in accordance with their terms and the terms of this 

Resolution, subject only to any applicable bankruptcy or insolvency laws or to any laws affecting 

creditors rights generally.  

(c) The Corporation shall at all times, to the extent permitted by law, defend, preserve and 

protect the pledge of the Pledged Revenues and all the rights of the Holders against all claims and 

demands of all persons whomsoever.  

(d) The Corporation will take, and use its best efforts to cause the City to take, all steps 

reasonably necessary and appropriate to collect all delinquencies in the collection of the Sales Tax 

to the fullest extent permitted by the Act.  

(e) The provisions, covenants, pledge and lien on and against the Pledged Revenues, as 

herein set forth, are established and shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the 

owners and holders of Parity Obligations without distinction as to priority and rights under this 

Resolution.  

(f) The Parity Obligations shall constitute special obligations of the Corporation, payable 

solely from, and equally and ratably secured by a parity pledge of and lien on, the Pledged 

Revenues, and not from any other revenues, properties or income of the Corporation. The Bonds 

may not be paid in whole or in part from any property taxes raised or to be raised by the City and 

shall not constitute debts or obligations of the State or of the City, and the Holders, shall never 

have the right to demand payment out of any funds raised or to be raised by any system of ad 

valorem taxation.  

Section 24. Satisfaction of Obligation of Corporation. If the Corporation shall pay or cause 

to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders, the principal of, premium, if any, and 

interest on the Bonds, at the times and in the manner stipulated in this Resolution, then the pledge 



17 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

of the Pledged Revenues under this Resolution and all other obligations of the Corporation to the 

Holders shall thereupon cease, terminate, and be discharged and satisfied.  

Bonds or any principal amount(s) shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning 

and with the effect expressed above in this Section when (i) money sufficient to pay in full such 

Bonds at maturity or to the redemption date therefor, together with all interest due thereon, shall 

have been irrevocably deposited with and held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an 

authorized escrow agent, or (ii) Government Obligations shall have been irrevocably deposited in 

trust with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, which Government 

Obligations have been certified by an independent accounting firm or consulting firm to mature as 

to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will insure the availability, without 

reinvestment, of sufficient money, together with any moneys deposited therewith, if any, to pay 

when due the Bonds on the Stated Maturities thereof or (if notice of redemption has been duly 

given or waived or if irrevocable arrangements therefor accepted to the Paying Agent/Registrar 

have been made) the redemption date thereof. The Corporation covenants that no deposit of 

moneys or Government Obligations will be made under this Section and no use made of any such 

deposit which would cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be treated as “arbitrage bonds” within the 

meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or regulations adopted 

pursuant thereto.  

Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an authorized escrow agent, 

and all income from Government Obligations held in trust by the Paying Agent/Registrar, or an 

authorized escrow agent, pursuant to this Section in excess of the amount required for the payment 

of the Bonds shall be remitted to the Corporation or deposited as directed by the Corporation. 

Furthermore, any money held by the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the principal of 

and interest on the Bonds and remaining unclaimed for a period of four (4) years after the Stated 

Maturity, or applicable redemption date, of the Bonds such moneys were deposited and are held 

in trust to pay shall, upon the request of the Corporation, be remitted to the Corporation against a 

written receipt therefor. Notwithstanding the above and foregoing, any remittance of funds from 

the Paying Agent/Registrar to the Corporation shall be subject to any applicable unclaimed 

property laws of the State of Texas.  

Section 25. Resolution a Contract; Amendments. This Resolution, together with the Pricing 

Certificate, shall constitute a contract with the Holders from time to time, be binding on the 

Corporation, and shall not be amended or repealed by the Corporation while any Bond remains 

Outstanding except as permitted in this Section and in Section 39 hereof and the Pricing Certificate. 

The Corporation, may, without the consent of or notice to any Holders, from time to time and at 

any time, amend this Resolution in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the Holders, 

including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein. In 

addition, the Corporation may, with the written consent from the owners holding a majority in 

aggregate principal amount of the Parity Obligations then Outstanding affected thereby, amend, 

add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Resolution; provided that, without the written 

consent of all Holders of Outstanding Bonds affected, no such amendment, addition, or rescission 

shall (1) extend the time or times of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 

the Bonds, reduce the principal amount thereof, the redemption price therefor, or the rate of interest 

thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or 

interest on the Bonds, (2) give any preference to any Bond over any other Bond, or (3) reduce the 



18 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

aggregate principal amount of Bonds or Parity Obligations, as the case may be, required to be held 

for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission.  

Section 26. Mutilated; Destroyed; Lost and Stolen Bonds. In case any Bond shall be 

mutilated, or destroyed, lost or stolen, the Paying Agent/Registrar may execute and deliver a 

replacement Bond of like form and tenor, and in the same denomination and bearing a number not 

contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Bond, or in lieu 

of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, only upon the approval of the 

Corporation and after (i) the filing by the Holder thereof with the Paying Agent/Registrar of 

evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar of the destruction, loss or theft of such Bond, 

and of the authenticity of the ownership thereof and (ii) the furnishing to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar of indemnification in an amount satisfactory to hold the Corporation and the 

Paying Agent/Registrar harmless. All expenses and charges associated with such indemnity and 

with the preparation, execution and delivery of a replacement Bond shall be borne by the Holder 

of the Bond mutilated, or destroyed, lost or stolen.  

Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section in lieu of any mutilated, destroyed, lost, 

or stolen Bond shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation of the Corporation, whether 

or not the mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Bond shall be at any time enforceable by anyone, 

and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and ratably with all other 

Outstanding Bonds.  

Section 27. Notices to Holders; Waiver. Wherever this Resolution provides for notice to 

Holders of any event, such notice shall be sufficiently given (unless otherwise herein expressly 

provided) if: (a) in writing and sent by United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address 

of each Holder as it appears in the Security Register, or (b) posted to the MSRB’s EMMA website 

or any successor website thereto. 

In any case where notice to Holders is given by mail, neither the failure to mail such notice 

to any particular Holders, nor any defect in any notice so mailed, shall affect the sufficiency of 

such notice with respect to all other Bonds. Where this Resolution provides for notice in any 

manner, such notice may be waived in writing by the Holder entitled to receive such notice, either 

before or after the event with respect to which such notice is given, and such waiver shall be the 

equivalent of such notice. Waivers of notice by Holders shall be filed with the Paying 

Agent/Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the validity of any action 

taken in reliance upon such waiver.  

Section 28. Cancellation. All Bonds surrendered for payment, redemption, transfer or 

exchange, if surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall be promptly canceled by it and, if 

surrendered to the Corporation, shall be delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar and, if not already 

canceled, shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar. The Corporation may at any 

time deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation any Bonds previously certified or 

registered and delivered which the Corporation may have acquired in any manner whatsoever, and 

all Bonds so delivered shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar. All canceled 

Bonds held by the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be destroyed as directed by the Corporation.  



19 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

Section 29. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement. The Bonds authorized by this Resolution 

are to be sold by the Corporation to the underwriter(s) or initial purchaser(s) (herein referred to as 

the “Purchasers”) in accordance with a bond purchase agreement, an accepted official bid form, 

private placement letter or other contract of purchase (the “Purchase Contract”), the terms and 

provisions of which Purchase Contract are to be determined by a Pricing Officer, in accordance 

with Section 3 hereof. Any and all such details that are found by the Pricing Officer to be necessary 

and advisable for the purchase and sale of the Bonds may be included in the Purchase Contract. A 

Pricing Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute said Purchase Contract for and on 

behalf of the Corporation and as the act and deed of this Board.  

Except for Bonds sold in a private placement, the Pricing Officers and other appropriate 

officers of the Corporation are further authorized and directed to deliver for and on behalf of the 

Corporation copies of a Preliminary Official Statement (including, if applicable, a notice of sale 

and bid form) and Official Statement, prepared in connection with the offering of the Bonds by 

the Purchasers, in final form as may be required by the Purchasers, and such Preliminary Official 

Statement and final Official Statement in the form and content as approved by a Pricing Officer or 

as executed by said officials shall be deemed to be approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Corporation and constitute the Official Statement authorized for distribution and use by the 

Purchasers.  

Section 30. Proceeds of Sale. Immediately following the delivery of the Bonds, the 

proceeds of sale (less those proceeds of sale designated to pay costs of issuance and accrued 

interest received from the Purchasers of the Bonds and premium in the amount specified in the 

Pricing Certificate) shall be deposited in a construction fund. Pending expenditure for the Projects, 

such proceeds of sale may be invested in authorized investments and any investment earnings 

realized shall be expended for the Projects or deposited in the Bond Fund. All surplus proceeds of 

sale of the Bonds, including investment earnings, remaining after completion of the Projects, 

together with the accrued interest received from the Purchasers, shall be deposited to the credit of 

the Bond Fund.  

Section 31. Legal Opinion. The obligation of the Purchasers to accept delivery of the Bonds 

is subject to being furnished final opinions of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP approving such 

Bonds as to their validity, said opinions to be dated and delivered as of the date of delivery and 

payment for such Bonds. A true and correct reproduction of each opinion is hereby authorized to 

be printed on the definitive Bonds or an executed counterpart thereof shall accompany the global 

Bonds deposited with the Depository Trust Company. The Board ratifies, confirms and approves 

of the engagement of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP as the Corporation’s bond counsel and 

the execution of an engagement letter with such firm. 

Section 32. CUSIP Numbers. CUSIP numbers may be printed or typed on the definitive 

Bonds. It is expressly provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the 

definitive Bonds shall be of no significance or effect as regards the legality thereof and neither the 

Corporation nor attorneys approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP 

numbers incorrectly printed or typed on the definitive Bonds.  

Section 33. Control and Custody of Bonds. The Chair of the Board shall be and is hereby 

authorized to take and have charge of all necessary orders and records pending investigation by 

the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and shall take and have charge and control of the Initial 



20 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

Bond(s) pending the approval thereof by the Attorney General, the registration thereof by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts and the delivery thereof to the Purchasers.  

Furthermore, the Chair of the Board, each Pricing Officer, and any Director (including any 

Ex-Officio Member of the Board), individually, jointly or collectively, are hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish and execute such documents and certifications relating to the Corporation and 

the issuance of the Bonds, as may be necessary for the approval of the Attorney General, 

registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts and delivery of the Bonds to the initial 

purchasers and, together with the Corporation’s financial advisor, general counsel, bond counsel 

and the Paying Agent/Registrar, make the necessary arrangements for the delivery of the Initial 

Bond(s) to the Purchasers and the initial exchange thereof for definitive Bonds.  

Section 34. Benefits of Resolution. Nothing in this Resolution, expressed or implied, is 

intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person other than the Corporation, the Paying 

Agent/Registrar and the Holders, any right, remedy, or claim, legal or equitable, under or by reason 

of this Resolution or any provision hereof, this Resolution and all its provisions being intended to 

be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Corporation, the Paying Agent/Registrar and 

the Holders.  

Section 35. Inconsistent Provisions. All orders or resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in 

conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of 

such conflict and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 

contained herein.  

Section 36. Governing Law. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.  

Section 37. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to 

any circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 

thereof to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the Board hereby declares that this 

Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision.  

Section 38. Construction of Terms. If appropriate in the context of this Resolution, words 

of the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural number shall 

be considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender shall 

be considered to include the other genders.  

Section 39. Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. This Section shall apply unless the Pricing 

Officer determines in the Pricing Certificate that an undertaking is not required pursuant to the 

Rule.  

(a) Reserved. 

(b) Annual Reports. The Corporation shall provide annually to the MSRB (1) within six 

months after the end of each fiscal year of the Corporation beginning in the year stated in the 

Pricing Certificate, financial information and operating data with respect to the Corporation of the 

general type included in the final Official Statement approved by the Pricing Officer and described 

in the Pricing Certificate, and (2) if not provided as part such financial information and operating 



21 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

data, financial statements of the Corporation. Any financial statements to be provided shall be (i) 

prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in the Pricing Certificate, or such 

other accounting principles as the Corporation may be required to employ from time to time 

pursuant to state law or regulation, and in substantially the form included in the Official Statement, 

and (ii) audited, if the Corporation commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is 

completed within the period during which they must be provided. If the audit of such financial 

statements is not complete within six (6) months after any such fiscal year end, then the 

Corporation shall file unaudited financial statements within such six-month period and audited 

financial statements for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such statements 

becomes available.  

If the Corporation changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the 

date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Corporation otherwise would 

be required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.  

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may 

be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 

document available to the public on the MSRB’s Internet Web site or filed with the SEC.  

(c) Notice of Certain Events. The Corporation shall provide notice of any of the following 

events with respect to the Bonds to the MSRB in a timely manner and not more than 10 business 

days after occurrence of the event:  

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;  

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;  

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;  

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;  

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;  

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed 

or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-

TEB), or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of 

the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;  

7. Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;  

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

9. Defeasances; 

10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if 

material; 

11. Rating changes;  

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the Corporation, which 

as described below;  

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 

Corporation or the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, other than in the 

ordinary course of business, the entry into of a definitive agreement to undertake 

such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such 

actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;  

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a 

trustee, if material;  



22 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

15. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Corporation, if material, or agreement 

to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of 

a Financial Obligation of the Corporation, any of which affect security holders, if 

material; and  

16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Corporation, any of 

which reflect financial difficulties.  

For these purposes, (a) any event described in the immediately preceding subsection (c)(12) 

is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 

or similar officer for the Corporation in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or 

in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has 

assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Corporation, or if such 

jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in 

possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 

entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 

governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 

business of the Corporation, and (b) the Corporation intends the words used in the immediately 

preceding subsections (c)(15) and (c)(16) in this Section to have the meanings ascribed to them in 

SEC Release No. 34-83885, dated August 20, 2018.  

The Corporation shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the 

Corporation to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with subsection (b) 

of this Section by the time required by such Section.  

(d) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments. The Corporation shall be obligated to 

observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, 

the Corporation remains an “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of 

the Rule, except that the Corporation in any event will give the notice required by subsection (c) 

of this Section of any Bond calls and defeasance that cause the Corporation to be no longer such 

an “obligated person.”  

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial owners 

of the Bonds; and, nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal 

or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The Corporation undertakes to 

provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which it 

has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section. Except as expressly provided within this 

Section, the Corporation does not undertake to provide any other information, whether or not it 

may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Corporation’s financial results, 

condition, or prospects; nor does the Corporation undertake to update any information provided in 

accordance with this Section or otherwise. Furthermore, the Corporation does not make any 

representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in 

or sell Bonds at any future date.  

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CORPORATION BE LIABLE TO THE 

HOLDER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 

CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 



23 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

ANY BREACH BY THE CORPORATION, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT 

ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT 

AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON 

ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR 

MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.  

No default by the Corporation in observing or performing its obligations under this Section 

shall constitute a breach of or default under this Resolution for purposes of any other provision of 

this Resolution.  

Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 

duties of the Corporation under federal and state securities laws.  

(e) Amendments. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the provisions of this 

Section may be amended by the Corporation from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances 

resulting from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, 

status, or type of operations of the Corporation, but only if (1) the provisions of this Section, as so 

amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Bonds in the primary offering 

of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations 

of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed circumstances, and (2) either 

(a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required by any 

other provision of this Resolution that authorizes such an amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds 

consent to such amendment or (b) a Person that is unaffiliated with the Corporation (such as 

nationally recognized bond counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair 

the interests of the Holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds. The provisions of this Section may 

also be amended from time to time or repealed by the Corporation if the SEC amends or repeals 

the applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction determines that such provisions 

are invalid, but only if and to the extent that reservation of the Corporation’s right to do so would 

not prevent underwriters of the initial public offering of the Bonds from lawfully purchasing or 

selling Bonds in such offering. If the Corporation so amends the provisions of this Section, it shall 

include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided pursuant to 

subsection (b) of this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment 

and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating data so provided. 

Section 40. Further Procedures. Any one or more of the Chair or Vice Chair of the Board, 

any other member of the Board, Secretary of the Corporation, any Director, or a Pricing Officer 

are hereby expressly authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do 

and perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and on 

behalf of the Corporation all agreements, instruments, certificates or other documents, whether 

mentioned herein or not, as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the terms and 

provisions of this Resolution and the issuance of the Bonds. In addition, prior to the initial delivery 

of the Bonds, all officials named in the immediately preceding sentence or Bond Counsel to the 

Corporation are each hereby authorized and directed to approve any changes or corrections to this 

Resolution or to any of the documents authorized and approved by this Resolution: (i) in order to 

cure any ambiguity, formal defect or omission in this Resolution or such other document; or (ii) 

as requested by the Attorney General of the State of Texas or his representative to obtain the 

approval of the Bonds by the Attorney General and if such officer or counsel determines that such 



24 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

changes are consistent with the intent and purpose of the Resolution, which determination shall be 

final. In the event that any officer of the Corporation whose signature shall appear on any document 

shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such document, such signature nevertheless 

shall be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until 

such delivery.  

Section 41. Transfer.  

(a) The Transfer Agreement is hereby authorized and approved, and each Pricing 

Officer and other appropriate official of the Corporation is authorized and directed to execute 

same. Pursuant to the provisions of the Transfer Agreement, the City has agreed to do any and all 

things necessary to accomplish the transfer of the Gross Sales Tax Revenues collected for the 

benefit of the Corporation to the Pledged Revenue Fund on a monthly basis. The Transfer 

Agreement shall continue to govern matters with respect to the collection of sales and use taxes 

from the Comptroller, credits and refunds due and owing to the Comptroller, and other matters 

with respect to the collection and transfer of the Gross Sales Tax Revenues. 

(b) The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board and each Pricing Officer is hereby ordered 

to do any and all things necessary to accomplish the transfer of money to the Funds established 

hereby in ample time to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  

Section 42. Covenants to Maintain Tax Exempt Status. For any Tax-Exempt Bonds for 

which the Corporation intends that the interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be excludable from 

gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Sections 103 and 

141 through 150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and all 

applicable temporary, proposed and final regulations (the “Regulations”) and procedures 

promulgated thereunder and applicable to the Tax-Exempt Bonds, the Corporation covenants that 

it will monitor and control the receipt, investment, expenditure and use of all gross proceeds of the 

Tax-Exempt Bonds (including all property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which 

is to be financed directly or indirectly with the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds) and take or 

omit to take such other and further actions as may be required by Sections 103 and 141 through 

150 of the Code and the Regulations to cause interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be and remain 

excludable from the gross income, as defined in Section 61 of the Code, of the owners of the Tax-

Exempt Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 

the Corporation shall comply with each of the following covenants: 

(a) The Corporation will use all of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds to 

(i) provide funds for the purposes described in Section 1 hereof, which will be owned and 

operated by the Corporation and (ii) to pay the costs of issuing the Tax-Exempt Bonds.  

The Corporation will not use any portion of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds to pay 

the principal of or interest or redemption premium on, any other obligation of the 

Corporation or a related person. 

(b) The Corporation will not directly or indirectly take any action, or omit to 

take any action, which action or omission would cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to constitute 

“private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code. 



25 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

(c) Principal of and interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds will be paid solely from 

ad valorem taxes collected by the Corporation and investment earnings on such collections.   

(d) Based upon all facts and estimates now known or reasonably expected to be 

in existence on the date the Tax-Exempt Bonds are delivered, the Corporation reasonably 

expects that the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds will not be used in a manner that would 

cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds or any portion thereof to be an “arbitrage bond” within the 

meaning of Section 148 of the Code. 

(e) At all times while the Tax-Exempt Bonds are outstanding, the Corporation 

will identify and properly account for all amounts constituting gross proceeds of the Tax-

Exempt Bonds in accordance with the Regulations.  The Corporation will monitor the yield 

on the investments of the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and, to the extent required by 

the Code and the Regulations, will restrict the yield on such investments to a yield which 

is not materially higher than the yield on the Tax-Exempt Bonds.  To the extent necessary 

to prevent the Tax-Exempt Bonds from constituting “arbitrage bonds,” the Corporation 

will make such payments as are necessary to cause the yield on all yield restricted 

nonpurpose investments allocable to the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be less than the yield that 

is materially higher than the yield on the Tax-Exempt Bonds.  

(f) The Corporation will not take any action or knowingly omit to take any 

action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be treated as 

“federally guaranteed” obligations for purposes of Section 149(b) of the Code. 

(g) The Corporation represents that not more than fifty percent (50%) of the 

proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds will be invested in nonpurpose investments (as defined 

in Section 148(f)(6)(A) of the Code) having a substantially guaranteed yield for four years 

or more within the meaning of Section 149(g)(3)(A)(ii) of the Code, and the Corporation 

reasonably expects that at least eighty-five percent (85%) of the spendable proceeds of the 

Tax-Exempt Bonds will be used to carry out the governmental purpose of the Tax-Exempt 

Bonds within the three-year period beginning on the date of issue of the Tax-Exempt 

Bonds. 

(h) The Corporation will take all necessary steps to comply with the 

requirement that certain amounts earned by the Corporation on the investment of the gross 

proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds, if any, be rebated to the federal government.  

Specifically, the Corporation will  

(i) maintain records regarding the receipt, investment, and expenditure 

of the gross proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds as may be required to calculate 

such excess arbitrage profits separately from records of amounts on deposit in the 

funds and accounts of the Corporation allocable to other obligations of the 

Corporation or moneys which do not represent gross proceeds of any obligations of 

the Corporation and retain such records for at least six years after the day on which 

the last outstanding Bond is discharged,  

(ii) account for all gross proceeds under a reasonable, consistently 

applied method of accounting, not employed as an artifice or device to avoid in 



26 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

whole or in part, the requirements of Section 148 of the Code, including any 

specified method of accounting required by applicable Regulations to be used for 

all or a portion of any gross proceeds,  

(iii) calculate, at such times as are required by applicable Regulations, 

the amount of excess arbitrage profits, if any, earned from the investment of the 

gross proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds, and  

(iv) timely pay, as required by applicable Regulations, all amounts 

required to be rebated to the federal government.  In addition, the Corporation will 

exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no errors are made in the calculations 

required by the preceding sentence and, if such an error is made, to discover and 

promptly correct such error within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, 

including payment to the federal government of any delinquent amounts owed to 

it, interest thereon and any penalty. 

(i) The Corporation will not directly or indirectly pay any amount otherwise 

payable to the federal government pursuant to the foregoing requirements to any person 

other than the federal government by entering into any investment arrangement with 

respect to the gross proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds that might result in a reduction in 

the amount required to be paid to the federal government because such arrangement results 

in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if such arrangement had been 

at arm's length and had the yield on the Tax-Exempt Bonds not been relevant to either 

party. 

(j) The Corporation will timely file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of 

the Treasury of the United States the information required by Section 149(e) of the Code 

with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds on such form and in such place as the Secretary may 

prescribe. 

(k) The Corporation will not issue or use the Tax-Exempt Bonds as part of an 

“abusive arbitrage device” (as defined in Section 1.148-10(a) of the Regulations).  Without 

limiting the foregoing, the Tax-Exempt Bonds are not and will not be a part of a transaction 

or series of transactions that attempts to circumvent the provisions of Section 148 of the 

Code and the Regulations, by (i) enabling the Corporation to exploit the difference between 

tax-exempt and taxable interest rates to gain a material financial advantage, or (ii) 

increasing the burden on the market for tax-exempt obligations. 

(l) Proper officers of the Corporation charged with the responsibility for 

issuing the Tax-Exempt Bonds are hereby directed to make, execute and deliver 

certifications as to facts, estimates or circumstances in existence as of the date of issuance 

of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and stating whether there are facts, estimates or circumstances 

that would materially change the Corporation's expectations.  On or after the date of 

issuance of the Tax-Exempt Bonds, the Corporation will take such actions as are necessary 

and appropriate to assure the continuous accuracy of the representations contained in such 

certificates. 



27 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

(m) The covenants and representations made or required by this Section are for 

the benefit of the Bond holders and any subsequent Bond holder, and may be relied upon 

by the Bond holders and any subsequent Bond holder and bond counsel to the Corporation. 

In complying with the foregoing covenants, the Corporation may rely upon an unqualified 

opinion issued to the Corporation by nationally recognized bond counsel that any action by the 

Corporation or reliance upon any interpretation of the Code or Regulations contained in such 

opinion will not cause interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be includable in gross income for 

federal income tax purposes under existing law. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order, the Corporation’s representations and 

obligations under the covenants and provisions of this Section shall survive the defeasance and 

discharge of the Tax-Exempt Bonds for as long as such matters are relevant to the exclusion of 

interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds from the gross income of the owners for federal income tax 

purposes. 

Section 43. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. In the event that the Tax-Exempt Bonds 

are eligible to be issued as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” as defined in Section 265(b)(3) of 

the Code, the Pricing Officer is authorized to designate or deem the Tax-Exempt Bonds as 

“qualified tax-exempt obligations” and, with respect to such designation, the Pricing Officer 

(acting on behalf of the Board) is authorized to make the following representations, which the 

Board hereby approves: (a) that during the calendar year in which the Tax-Exempt Bonds are 

issued, the Corporation (including all entities which issue obligations on behalf of the Corporation) 

shall not have designated and will not designate obligations, which when aggregated with the Tax-

Exempt Bonds, will result in more than $10 million of “qualified tax-exempt obligations” being 

issued and (b) that the Corporation has examined its financing needs for the calendar year in which 

the Tax-Exempt Bonds are issued and reasonably anticipates that the amount of bonds, leases, 

loans or other obligations, together with the Tax-Exempt Bonds and any other tax-exempt 

obligations heretofore issued by the Corporation (plus those of all entities which issue obligations 

on behalf of the Corporation) during the calendar year in which the Tax-Exempt Bonds are issued, 

when the higher of the face amount or the issue price of each such tax-exempt obligations issued 

for the calendar year in which the Tax-Exempt Bonds are issued by the Corporation is taken into 

account, will not exceed $10 million. 

Section 44. Public Meeting. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting 

at which this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and 

subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, 

was given, all as required by Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, as amended.  

Section 45. Effective Date. In accordance with the provisions of Section 1201.028, 

Government Code this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption by the Board. 

 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 

 

 





Exhibit A 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

(a) Form of Bond. 

NO. R- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF TEXAS 

PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT 

$[-] 

 LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, INC. 

SALES TAX REVENUE BOND 

[TAXABLE] SERIES [2023] 

 

 

    

Interest Rate Bond Date Delivery Date Maturity Date CUSIP No. 

[-] [-] [-] [-] [-] 

   

REGISTERED OWNER: 

 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

 

LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, INC. (hereinafter referred to as 

the “Corporation”), a non-profit industrial development corporation organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of Texas, including the Development Corporation Act, Texas Local 

Government Code, Title 12, Subtitle C1, as amended (the “Act”) (formerly known as the 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. Article 5190.6), specifically 

Chapters 501 and 504 of the Local Government Code, with its principal office located in Lubbock 

County, Texas, for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named above, 

or the registered assigns thereof, solely from the revenues and sources pledged under the 

Resolution identified below, the Principal Amount stated above (or so much thereof as shall not 

have been paid upon prior redemption) on the Stated Maturity date specified above and to pay 

interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) on the unpaid Principal 

Amount hereof from the interest payment date next preceding the “Registration Date” of this Bond 

appearing below (unless this Bond bears a “Registration Date” as of an interest payment date, in 

which case it shall bear interest from such date, or unless the “Registration Date” of this Bond is 

prior to the initial interest payment date in which case it shall bear interest from the 

_________________) at the per annum rate of interest specified above; such interest being payable 

on ________________ and ________________ of each year, commencing ______________, 

until maturity or prior redemption. Principal of this Bond is payable at its Stated Maturity or 

redemption to the registered owner hereof, upon presentation and surrender, at the Designated 

Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar executing the registration certificate 

appearing hereon, or its successor; provided, however, while this Bond is registered to Cede & 

Co., the payment of principal upon a partial redemption of the principal amount hereof may be 

accomplished without presentation and surrender of this Bond. Interest is payable to the registered 

owner of this Bond (or one or more Predecessor Bonds, as defined in the resolution hereinafter 

referenced) whose name appears on the “Security Register” maintained by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the “Record Date”, which is the _______________ day 

of the month next preceding each interest payment date and interest shall be paid by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar by check sent United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of the 

registered owner recorded in the Security Register or by such other method, acceptable to the 



2 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at the risk and expense of, the registered owner. If the 

date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a 

legal holiday, or a day when banking institutions in the city where the Designated 

Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located is authorized by law or executive 

order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such 

a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day when banking institutions are authorized to close; and 

payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment 

was due. All payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond shall be without 

exchange or collection charges to the owner hereof and in any coin or currency of the United States 

of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private 

debts. 

This Bond is one of the series specified in its title issued in the aggregate principal amount 

of $___________ (herein referred to as the “Bonds”) to provide funds to finance the [Land Projects 

and Infrastructure Projects] and to pay costs of issuance, in conformity with the Constitution and 

laws of the State of Texas, including the Act, the Texas Nonprofit Corporation Act, and Chapter 

22, Texas Business Organizations Code, and pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the governing 

body of the Corporation (herein referred to as the “Resolution”).  

[The Bonds maturing on _________________, and _______________ (the “Term 

Bonds”), are subject to mandatory redemption at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of 

redemption, as follows: 

Sinking Fund Redemption Schedule(s) to be inserted 

The particular Term Bonds to be redeemed on each redemption date shall be chosen by lot 

by the Paying Agent/Registrar; provided, however, that the principal amount of Term Bonds for a 

Stated Maturity required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation of such mandatory redemption 

provisions may be reduced, at the option of the Corporation, by the principal amount of Term 

Bonds of like maturity which, at least 45 days prior to a mandatory redemption date, (1) shall have 

been acquired by the Corporation at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Term 

Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar for cancellation or (2) shall have been redeemed pursuant to the optional 

redemption provisions appearing below and not theretofore credited against a mandatory 

redemption requirement.] 

The Bonds maturing on and after _____________________ may be redeemed prior to their 

Stated Maturities, at the option of the Corporation, in whole or in part in principal amounts of 

$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (and if within a Stated Maturity by lot by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar), on __________________________ or on any date thereafter at the redemption 

price of par plus accrued interest thereon to the redemption date.   

At least thirty days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds, the Corporation 

shall cause a written notice of such redemption to be sent by United States Mail, first class postage 

prepaid, to the registered owners of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the Security 

Register and subject to the terms and provisions relating thereto contained in the Resolution. If a 

Bond (or any portion of its principal sum) shall have been duly called for redemption and notice 

of such redemption duly given, then upon such redemption date such Bond (or the portion of its 



3 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

principal sum to be redeemed) shall become due and payable, and, if moneys for the payment of 

the redemption price and the interest accrued on the principal amount to be redeemed to the date 

of redemption are held for the purpose of such payment by the Paying Agent/Registrar, interest 

shall cease to accrue and be payable from and after the redemption date on the principal amount 

hereof redeemed. 

In the event a portion of the principal amount of a Bond is to be redeemed and the registered 

owner is someone other than Cede & Co., payment of the redemption price of such principal 

amount shall be made to the registered owner only upon presentation and surrender of such Bond 

to the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and a new Bond or 

Bonds of like maturity and interest rate in any authorized denominations provided in the 

Resolution for the then unredeemed balance of the principal sum thereof will be issued to the 

registered owner, without charge. If a Bond is called for redemption, in whole or in part, the 

Corporation and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to transfer such Bond to an 

assignee of the Holder within 45 days of the redemption date therefor; provided, however, such 

limitation on transferability shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Holder of the unredeemed 

balance of a Bond redeemed in part. 

With respect to any optional redemption of the Bonds, unless certain prerequisites to such 

redemption required by the Resolution have been met and moneys sufficient to pay the redemption 

price of the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior 

to the giving of such notice of redemption, such notice may state that said redemption is conditional 

upon the satisfaction of such prerequisites and receipt of such moneys by the Paying 

Agent/Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon any prerequisite set forth 

in such notice of redemption. If a conditional notice of redemption is given and such prerequisites 

to the redemption and sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and 

effect, the Corporation shall not redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give 

notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, to the effect that the Bonds 

have not been redeemed.  

The Bonds, together with the outstanding Previously Issued Bonds (as defined in the 

Resolution), if any, and any Additional Obligations issued in the future are payable solely from 

and equally and ratably secured by a pledge of the “Pledged Revenues” (as defined in the 

Resolution) received by the Corporation, including the “Gross Sales Tax Revenues” (as defined in 

the Resolution) levied for the benefit of the Corporation pursuant to the Act and an election held 

in the City. The Bonds do not constitute a legal or equitable, pledge, charge, lien or encumbrance 

upon any property of the Corporation or the City of Lubbock, Texas (the “City”) except with 

respect to the “Pledged Revenues”. This Bond may not be paid in whole or in part from any 

property taxes raised or to be raised by the City and is not a debt of and does not give rise to a 

claim for payment against the City, except as to the sales and use tax revenues held by the City 

and required under the Act to be paid over to the Corporation. Neither the State of Texas, the City 

or any political corporation, subdivision or agency of the State of Texas shall be obligated to pay 

this Bond or the interest hereon and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State, 

the City or any other political corporation, subdivision or agency thereof is pledged to the payment 

of the principal of and interest on this Bond except as noted above. 



4 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

Subject to satisfying the terms and conditions prescribed therefor, the Corporation has 

reserved the right to issue additional revenue obligations payable, in whole or in part, from the 

“Pledged Revenues” and equally and ratably secured in like manner and effect as the Bonds.  

Reference is hereby made to the Resolution, a copy of which is on file in the Designated 

Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and to all of the provisions of which the 

Holder by the acceptance hereof hereby assents, for definitions of terms; the description of and the 

nature and extent of the security for the payment of the Bonds; the rights of Holders of the Bonds 

the terms and conditions for the issuance of additional obligations; the terms and conditions 

relating to the payment, transfer or exchange of this Bond; the conditions upon which the 

Resolution may be amended or supplemented with or without the consent of the Holders; the rights, 

duties, and obligations of the Corporation and the Paying Agent/Registrar; the terms and 

provisions upon which the encumbrances, pledges, charges and covenants made therein may be 

discharged; and for the other terms and provisions contained therein. Capitalized terms used herein 

have the same meanings assigned in the Resolution.  

This Bond, subject to certain limitations contained in the Resolution, may be transferred 

on the Security Register only upon its presentation and surrender at the Designated 

Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar, with the Assignment hereon duly 

endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Paying 

Agent/Registrar duly executed by, the registered owner hereof, or his duly authorized agent. When 

a transfer on the Security Register occurs, one or more new fully registered Bonds of the same 

Stated Maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and of the same 

aggregate principal amount will be issued by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the designated 

transferee or transferees. 

The Corporation and the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any agent of either, may treat the 

registered owner hereof whose name appears on the Security Register (i) on the Record Date as 

the owner entitled to payment of interest hereon, (ii) on the date of surrender of this Bond as the 

owner entitled to payment of principal hereof at its Stated Maturity or its redemption, in whole or 

in part, and (iii) on any other date as the owner for all other purposes, and neither the Corporation 

nor the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any agent of either, shall be affected by notice to the contrary. 

In the event of non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date and for thirty (30) days 

thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be 

established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have 

been received from the Corporation. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled 

payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall 

be sent at least five (5) business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States Mail, first 

class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder appearing on the Security Register at the close 

of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

It is hereby certified, recited, represented and covenanted that the Corporation is a non-

profit industrial development corporation duly organized and legally existing under and by virtue 

of the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, including the Act; that all acts, conditions and 

things required to exist and be done precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds to render the 

same lawful and valid special obligations of the Corporation have been properly done, have 

happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law; 

and that due provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds 



5 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

from the sources and in the manner provided in the Resolution. In case any provision in this Bond 

or any application thereof shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, legality, and 

enforceability of the remaining provisions and applications shall not in any way be affected or 

impaired thereby. The terms and provisions of this Bond and the Resolution shall be construed in 

accordance with and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Directors of the Corporation has caused this Bond 

to be duly executed under the official seal of the Corporation. 

(signature) (signature) 

Secretary [Vice] Chair, Board of Directors 

 

(b) Form of Paying Agent/Registrar’s Authentication Certificate. 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

(To be executed if this Bond is not accompanied by an executed Registration 

Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas) 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond 

Resolution described in the text of this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion or 

replacement of, or in exchange for, a Bond, Bonds, or a portion of a Bond or Bonds of a series that 

originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated:    [Name of Paying Agent/Registrar] 

 [Paying Agent/Registrar’s Location] 

 Paying Agent/Registrar 

 By:    

 Authorized Representative 

 

(c) Form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE:  REGISTER NO. _________ 

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a true and correct copy of 

the opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas approving this Bond and that this Bond 

has been registered this day by me. 

Witness my signature and seal this  . 

___________________________________________ 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas 

(COMPTROLLER’S SEAL) 

 



6 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (Print 

or typewrite name, address, and zip code of 

transferee:)____________________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or other identifying number____________________________) the within Bond 

and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints ___________________ 

attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of 

substitution in the premises. 

 

DATED: 

 

_____________________ 

Signature guaranteed: 

NOTICE: The signature on this assignment 

must correspond with the name of the 

registered owner as it appears on the face of the 

within Bond in every particular 

 

(e) The Initial Bond(s) shall be in the form set forth in paragraph (b) of this Section as 

modified in accordance with the Pricing Certificate, except that the form of a single fully registered 

Initial Bond shall be modified as follows or as provided in the Pricing Certificate:  

 

NO. R- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF TEXAS 

PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT 

$[-] 

 LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, INC. 

SALES TAX REVENUE BOND 

[TAXABLE] SERIES [2023] 

 

 

Bond Date Delivery Date 

[-] [-] 

 

REGISTERED OWNER: 

 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

 

The Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Corporation”), a non-profit industrial development corporation organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of Texas, including the Development Corporation Act, Texas Local Government 

Code, Title 12, Subtitle C1, as amended (the “Act”) (formerly known as the Development 

Corporation Act of 1979, Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. Article 5190.6), specifically Chapters 501 and 

504 of the Local Government Code, with its principal office located in Lubbock County, Texas, 

for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named above, or the registered 

assigns thereof, solely from the revenues and sources pledged under the Resolution identified 

below, the Principal Amount hereinabove stated on __________ in each of the years and in 



7 

 4165-5577-6834.1 

 

principal amounts and bearing interest at per annum rates in accordance with the following 

schedule:  

 

[Schedule from Pricing Certificate to be inserted] 

 

(or so much thereof as shall not have been paid upon prior redemption) and to pay interest 

(computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) on the unpaid Principal 

Amount hereof from the __________ at the per annum rate of interest specified above; such 

interest being payable on __________ and _____________________ of each year, commencing 

_________________. Principal installments of this Bond are payable at its Stated Maturity or on 

a prepayment date to the registered owner hereof by 

_______________________________________ (the “Paying Agent/Registrar”), upon its 

presentation and surrender, at its designated office in ________________ (the “Designated 

Payment/Transfer Office”). Interest is payable to the registered owner of this Bond (or one or more 

Predecessor Bonds, as defined in the resolution hereinafter referenced) whose name appears on 

the “Security Register” maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the 

“Record Date”, which is the _________________ day of the month next preceding each interest 

payment date and interest shall be paid by the Paying Agent/Registrar by check sent United States 

Mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of the registered owner recorded in the Security 

Register or by such other method, acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar, requested by, and at 

the risk and expense of, the registered owner. If the date for the payment of the principal of or 

interest on the Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day when banking 

institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 

Agent/Registrar is located is authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such 

payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or 

day when banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the 

same force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. All payments of principal 

of, premium, if any, and interest on this Bond shall be without exchange or collection charges to 

the owner hereof and in any coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of 

payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

 



 

 

 4159-3318-5090.1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Sales Tax Remittance Agreement 

 

 

 

[To be attached] 



SALES TAX REMITTANCE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS SALES TAX REMITTANCE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated for 

convenience as of November 28, 2022, executed by and between the CITY OF LUBBOCK, 

TEXAS (the “City”) and the LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, INC. 

(the “Corporation”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Corporation was created by the City pursuant to authority granted by 

Article 5190.6, Texas Revised Civil Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), specifically with the 

Corporation to possess the powers granted by Section 4A of the Act, and now operates under 

Chapters 501-504, Texas Local Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, on November 4, 2003, the citizens of the City voting at an election on said 

date approved the levy of a 1/8th of one percent sales and use tax, pursuant to the Act (the 

“Economic Development Sales Tax”); and 

 

WHEREAS, under the Act and the provisions of the Texas Tax Code, disbursements of 

sales and use taxes are made to cities, such as the City, by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of 

Texas (the “Comptroller”); and 

 

WHEREAS, under authority of the Act, the Corporation was created to fund and finance 

eligible projects under the Act, particularly Section 4A thereof, and to secure said obligations 

with the Economic Development Sales Tax collected by the City under authority of Section 4A 

of the Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find it necessary and advisable to enter into this 

Agreement to evidence the duties and responsibilities of the respective parties with respect to the 

collection, remittance and transfer of such sales and use tax revenues. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein made, and 

subject to the conditions herein set forth, the City and the Corporation contract and agree as 

follows: 

 

Section 1. Creation of Fund. The City agrees to establish (to the extent not yet 

established) and maintain at an official depository bank of the City (the “Depository”), a fund to 

be entitled “Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Sales and Use Tax Fund” (the 

“Sales Tax Fund”). The Sales Tax Fund shall be maintained as a separate fund at the Depository, 

and no other moneys of the City shall be commingled with the Sales Tax Fund. The City shall 

also maintain separate investment accounts into which all deposits shall be transferred when 

funds are received. 

 

Section 2. Deposits to Fund. The revenues received by the City from the Comptroller 

from the charge and levy of the Economic Development Sales Tax shall be deposited as received, 

or transmitted by the Comptroller directly, to the credit of the Sales Tax Fund, for the benefit of 



 2 
61995988_2 

the Corporation, and shall be made available to the Corporation from time to time as hereinafter 

provided in this Agreement. 

 

Section 3. Security for Fund. The City hereby agrees that moneys on deposit in the Sales 

Tax Fund shall at all times be collateralized in the manner and with the collateral required by the 

City for its own funds. 

 

Section 4. Change in Depository. The City reserves the right from time to time to change 

its official depository bank. 

 

Section 5. Collection of Economic Development Sales Tax. (a) Until the Comptroller is 

able to determine and report the amount of the Economic Development Sales Tax levied for the 

benefit of the Corporation and any rebate, charge-back or adjustment thereof on a point of 

collection basis, the City will allocate a portion of the undivided sales and use tax receipts to the 

Corporation on the basis of the total sales and use taxes collected, multiplied by the pro rata 

portion of the Economic Development Sales Tax. In addition, the City will allocate the costs of 

any rebate or charge-back applicable to the undivided sales and use tax receipts between the City 

and the Corporation on a pro rata basis. 

 

(b) The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, the President 

& CEO and the CFO/COO of the Corporation and the City Manager and Chief Financial Officer 

of the City (collectively, the “Authorized Representatives”) shall take such actions as are 

required to cause the Economic Development Sales Tax to be delivered and transferred by the 

Texas Comptroller to the City for use by the Corporation by the fastest and most economically 

feasible means available. 

 

Section 6. Sales Tax Fund. The Corporation confirms the City's depository bank as the 

depository bank for the Sales Tax Fund all as provided herein. 

 

Section 7. Transfers from Sales Tax Fund to Pledged Revenue Fund. On or before the 1st 

day of each month, the City shall direct the Depository to transfer funds on deposit in the Sales 

Tax Fund to the credit of the Pledged Revenue Fund of the Corporation created in connection 

with the issuance of its Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. The City shall cause the Depository to make 

such transfers promptly upon receipt of such direction to the extent that there are moneys on 

deposit in the Sales Tax Fund to effect such transfer. 

 

Section 8. Use of Moneys by Corporation. The Corporation agrees to use the moneys on 

deposit in the Corporation’s Pledged Revenue Fund in a manner consistent with the terms and 

conditions of the Act and the election of November 4, 2003. 

 

Section 9. Covenant of the City. Recognizing that the Economic Development Sales Tax 

shall provide the security for the Corporation’s bonds and other obligations, so long as such 

bonds and other obligations are outstanding, the City covenants and agrees that it will take and 

pursue all possible action permitted by the Act and other applicable State law to cause the 

Economic Development Sales Tax to be levied and collected continuously at a rate not less than 



 3 
61995988_2 

1/8th of one percent, and the City will not cause a reduction, abatement or exemption in the 

Economic Development Sales Tax or in the rate at which it is authorized to be collected. 

 

Section 10. Reserved.  

 

Section 11. Fees of Depository. In connection with the establishment and maintenance of 

the Sales Tax Fund, the Corporation agrees to pay the reasonable costs and expenses of the 

Depository associated with the administration of the Sales Tax Fund and such costs and 

expenses, if any, shall never constitute a cost, liability, or obligation of the City. 

 

Section 12. Severability. If any clause, provision, or section of this Agreement should be 

held illegal or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause, 

provision, or section shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions, or sections hereof 

and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision, 

or section had not been contained herein. In case any agreement or obligation contained in this 

Agreement should be held to be in violation of law, then such agreement or obligation shall be 

deemed to be the agreement or obligation of the City and the Corporation, as the case may be, to 

the full extent permitted by law. 

Section 13. Modifications. This Agreement shall not be changed orally, and no executory 

agreement shall be effective to waive, change, modify or discharge this Agreement in whole or in 

part unless such executory agreement is in writing and is signed by the parties against whom 

enforcement of any waiver, change, modification or discharge is sought. 

Section 14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the 

parties pertaining to the subject matter hereof and fully supersedes all prior agreements and 

understandings between the parties pertaining to such subject matter. 

Section 15. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall in all respects be governed by, and 

construed in accordance with, the substantive federal laws of the United States and the laws of 

the State of Texas. 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BANK] 

 



Signature Page 

Sales Tax Remittance Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be 

effective as of the date and year first above written. 

 

 

LUBBOCK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

ALLIANCE, INC. 

 

 

   

Chair, Board of Directors 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

   

Secretary 



Signature Page 

Sales Tax Remittance Agreement 

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 

 

 

   

                    TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

  

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

 

 




	Agenda
	4.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_11.1.2022
	5.01.__Budget Amendment #3
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 3
	5.02.__Budget Amendment #4
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 4
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	5.03.__Budget Amendment #5
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 5 (c)
	5.04.__FY 2022-23 Bond Project Reimbursement Resolution
	       ATT_GO Reimbursement Resolution
	5.05.__Stormwater Storage & Drainage Easement - Tract D, The Falls at Suncrest
	       ATT_Ordinance - Stormwater Storage and Drainage Easement
	       ATT_Exhibit A - The Falls at Suncrest Addition
	       ATT_Map - The Falls at Suncrest Addition
	5.06.__Alley Right-of-Way, Hatton Place Addition
	       ATT_Ordinance - Alley ROW
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Hatton Place Addition
	       ATT_Map - Lot 93, Hatton Place Addition
	5.07.__Underground Utility Easement & Drainage Easements - Commons South
	       ATT_Ordinance - UUE and Drainage Easements
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Tract J, Commons South Addition
	       ATT_Map - Tract J, Commons South
	5.08.__SWLLD, LLC - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Resolution - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_SWLLD, LLC - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Section 20, Block AK
	       ATT_Map - Portion of Iola Avenue
	5.09.__Wesley Garner - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Resolution - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Wesley Garner - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Section 42, Block AK
	       ATT_Map - Section 42, Block AK
	5.10.__High Plains Marah2elim LLC - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Resolution - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_High Plains Marah2elim LLC - Street Dedication Deed
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Section 2, Block A
	       ATT_Map - Section 2, Block A
	5.11.__Lubbock Independent School District - General Warranty Deed
	       ATT_Resolution - LISD
	       ATT_LISD - General Warranty Deed
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Map - Section 5, Block B
	5.12.__Water Treatment Chemicals - Unit Price Contract
	       ATT_Resolution 16644 - Chemaleon Industries, Inc.
	       ATT_Contract 16644 (c) - Chameleon Industries Inc. - Revised
	       ATT_Resolution 16802 - DPC Inductries, Inc.
	       ATT_Contract 16802 - DPC Industries, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution 16803 - Chermrite, Inc.
	       ATT_Contract 16803 - Chemrite, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution 16804 - Chemtrade Chemicals US, LLC
	       ATT_Contract 16804 - Chemtrade Chemicals US, LLC.
	       ATT_Bid Tabulation Sheet
	       ATT_Chemical bids table
	       ATT_Project Summary
	5.13.__Caterpillar Track Type Dozer - Warren CAT
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	5.14.__John Deere Backhoe Loaders - Yellowhouse Machinery Co.
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	5.15.__Amended PO 31062734 - Romco Equipment for Cement Mixing  Truck
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.16.__Freightliner Cab & Chassis Truck - Cemen Tech, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	5.17.__Genserve, LLC - Generator Repair
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 16747
	       ATT_Project Summary 16747
	5.18.__Amendment 2 - HHSC Contract HHS001120300005, STD/HIV-DS Contract
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	The Department of State Health Services (“DSHS” or “System Agency”), a pass-through entity, and City of Lubbock ("Grantee"), each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”, to that certain grant contract to control and prevent the spread of Sexually Tr...
	Whereas, the Parties desire to extend the contract term;
	Whereas, the Parties desire to increase funding to the Contract for Calendar Year 2023;
	By: _______________________________   By: ________________________________
	Printed Name: ______________________  Printed Name: _______________________
	Title: _____________________________  Title: ______________________________
	Date of Signature: ___________________  Date of Signature: ____________________
	REVISED BUDGET (SEPTEMBER 2022)
	ATTACHMENT F-1
	FEDERAL ASSURANCES
	ATTACHMENT H-1
	FFATA CERTIFICATION FORM

	5.19.__Amendment 2 CDBG CARES YWCA Childcare Assistance
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment 2 
	5.20.__Executive Recruitment Services
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract - SGR
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	5.21.__Real Estate Purchase & Sale Agmt. - BNSF
	       ATT_Resolution - BNSF
	       ATT_BNSF Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agmt
	5.22.__ZC 0604-A
	       ATT_Ordinance - 604-A
	       ATT_Staff Report - 604-A
	       ATT_Documentation - 604-A
	Zone Case 604-A Case Information
	0604A_1locator
	604-a Response map
	0604A_2imag
	0604A_3zoning
	0604A_4flup
	604-A Photos
	604-A application
	604 a letter 1

	5.23.__ZC 2565-F
	       ATT_Ordinance - 2565-F
	       ATT_Staff Report - 2565-F
	       ATT_Documentation - 2565-F
	Case Information 2565-F
	2565F_1locator
	Notification Map
	2565F_2imag
	2565F_3zoning
	2565F_4flup
	Photo's 2565-F
	Application.pdf
	Letter in favor

	5.24.__ZC 3257-I
	       ATT_Ordinance - 3257-I
	       ATT_Staff Report - 3257-I
	       ATT_Documentation - 3257-I
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 April 28, 2016, Ordinance No. 2016-O0054: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Garden Office District (GO)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts

	5.25.__ZC 3274-E
	       ATT_Ordinance - 3274-E
	       ATT_Staff Report - 3274-E
	       ATT_Documentation - 3274-E
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2

	ADP7ED1.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2

	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 1


	5.26.__ZC 3472
	       ATT_Ordinance - 3472
	       ATT_Staff Report - 3472
	       ATT_Documentation - 3472
	Case Information 3472
	3472_1locator
	3472_2imag
	3472_3zoning
	3472_4flup
	Photo's 3472
	Application.pdf
	Graphic
	Meets & Bounds
	Meets & Bounds 2

	5.27.__ZC 3126-D
	       ATT_Ordinance - 3126-D
	       ATT_Staff Report - 3126-D
	       ATT_Documentation - 3126-D
	Council District 5
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 December 04, 2008, Ordinance No. 2008-O0104: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Transition District (T), Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) General Retail District (C-3), and High-density Apartment District (A-2)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts
	ADP16DE.tmp
	Council District 5
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 December 04, 2008, Ordinance No. 2008-O0104: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Transition District (T), Interstate Highway Industrial District (IHI) General Retail District (C-3), and High-density Apartment District (A-2)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts


	5.28.__ZC 1875-Y
	       ATT_Ordinance - 1875-Y
	       ATT_Staff Report - 1875-Y
	       ATT_Documentation - 1875-Y
	6.01.__Board Appointments 
	6.02.__Board Appointments
	6.03.__Board Appointments
	6.04.__Annexation - Woodrow & Quaker
	       ATT_Annexation Ordinance - Woodrow and Quaker
	       ATT_Annexation Map - Woodrow and Quaker
	       ATT_Annexation Agreement - Woodrow and Quaker
	       ATT_Annexation Documents - Woodrow and Quaker
	Graphic_Annexation_RedFeatherCommercial
	MB_Annexation_RedFeatherCommercial_Signed
	TransmittalPackage_AK_6_20220408
	Red Canyon Company Agreement
	Red Canyon Development, LLC - Certificate of Formation (2)
	Red Canyon OrgMinutes 10052017 SIGNED

	       ATT_Metes and Bounds - Woodrow and Quaker
	6.05.__ZC 0417-A
	       ATT_Ordinance - 417-A
	       ATT_Staff Report - 417-A
	       ATT_Documentation - 417-A
	Zone Case 417-A Case Information
	417A_1locator
	417-a Response map
	417A_2imag
	417A_3zoning
	417A_4flup
	417-A Photos updated
	417-A Application
	ZONE CASE APPLICATION - NW CORNER OF SLIDE RD. AND 23RD STREET - GARY ANDREWS-REVISED
	Sheets and Views
	220623-GRACO - ZONE CHANGE EXHIBIT-GRACO - ZONE CHANGE EXHIBIT


	ZONE CHANGE EXHIBIT - WITH IMAGE BACKGROUND
	Sheets and Views
	220623-GRACO - ZONE CHANGE EXHIBIT-2-GRACO - ZONE CHANGE EXHIBIT


	417 letter 12
	417 letter 13
	417 letter 14
	417 letter 15
	417 letter 22
	Marcia M. Abbott, Ph.D.

	417a 25
	417a l1
	417a l2
	417a l3
	417a letter 5
	417a letter 6
	417a letter 7 outside boundary
	417a letter 17
	417a letter 19
	417a letter 20
	417a letter16
	417a paper copy for letter 15
	FW  417-A letter 10
	FW  Proposed Zoning Change 18
	FW  Zone Case number 417-A Opposition letter 10
	FW  Zoning Case 417-A letter 11
	FW  Zoning Case 417-A letter 23
	FW  Zoning Case 417-A UPDATE to letter 11
	letter 9 417
	Letter to Planning and Zoning 9.30.22
	Zoning Case 417-A letter 24
	zoning case

	6.06.__Publication of Notice of Intention to Issue Water Revenue Bonds and Tax & Revenue COs
	       ATT_Resolution - Notice of Intent
	6.07.__LEDA Bond Issuance 
	       ATT_COL Resolution
	       ATT_LEDA Resolution



